o ®
% '.:“"’
ISP T R L g

Stock Code: 6698

FireMut

Applied Marerials Co.,LTD

MEEE R ERL S

FineMat Applied Materials Co., Ltd.

2023 Annual Report

The Annual Report may be accessed at:
MOPS: https://mops.twse.com.tw
Company website: https://www.fine-mat.com

Publication date: May 13, 2024



I.  Names, job titles, Tel. Nos. and email of spokesperson and deputy spokesperson
Spokesperson
Name: Li Fan-Chun
Job Title: Vice President, Finance Department
Tel. No.: (06) 601-6388

Email: ir@ fine-mat.com

Deputy Spokesperson
Name: Huang Hsin-Mao
Job Title: Manager, Auditing Office
Tel. No.: (06) 601-6388

Email: ir@ fine-mat.com

II. Addresses and Tel. Nos. of Head Office, Branch Companies and Factories
Company, Factory No. 1 and Factory No. 2
Address: No. 36, Gongye 1st Rd., Annan Dist., Tainan City 709
Tel. No.: (06) 601-6388
Factory No. 3
Address: No. 123, Keji 5th Rd., Annan Dist., Tainan City 709
Telephone: (06) 384-2112

III. Name, Address, Website and Tel. No. of Shareholders Service Agency
Name: Mega Securities, Shareholders Service Dept.
Address: 1F, No. 95, Sec. 2, Zhongxiao E. Rd., Zhongzheng Dist., Taipei City
Website: https://www.emega.com.tw
Tel. No.: (02)3393-0898

IV. Name of the external auditor, and the name, address, and contact number of the CPA firm for the latest
financial report
External auditors: Yeh Fan-Ting, CPA & Lin Yong-Chi, CPA
Firm name: PwC Taiwan
Address: 12F, No. 395, Sec. 1, Linsen Rd., East Dist., Tainan City
Website: https://www.pwc.tw
Tel. No.: (06)234-3111

V. Name of the exchange where the overseas securities are listed for trading and the method to inquire about

the overseas securities information: None.

VI. Company website: https://www.fine-mat.com
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One. A Message to Shareholders
Dear shareholders,
Thank you for attending the 2024 Shareholders' Annual General Meeting of FineMat Applied
Materials Co., Ltd., and thank you for your
support and care to the Company.

The Company has decided to get rid of the risk arising from the single industry’s operations since
2020. In 2020, the Company launched into the semiconductor and national defense equipment
industries with great potential. In 2022, we entered the heat dissipation industry and opened up a new
outlook for the Company's multidimensional operation. Heat-dissipating materials is a new business
entered by the Company, but due to deficiencies in production technology and management in 2022,
the Company did not achieve the expected target in this product. The Company has made
improvements in response to the deficiencies. In 2023, the Company has made significant progress in
the technology and market of thermal materials. The existing products have begun to profit, and the
Company will further develop new product markets and continue to develop the heat dissipation
material market. In the AMOLED mask market, as OLED continues to replace TFT-LCD panels, many
competitors have also entered the market, and product prices will continue to be under pressure. We
will restructure the business model in the AMOLED mask market in order to maintain profitability in
the AMOLED mask market. It is also expected that FineMat will maintain its niche in the market for

its existing MASK products while developing new products and new markets.

We would like to present you the Company’s 2023 business results and outline of 2024 business
plan as follows:
L. 2023 business results
(I) Business plan implementation results
The Company’s 2023 business results are shown as following:
Unit: NT$ Thousand

Item 2023 Actual Actual amount in Increase (decrease) %
2022
Operating revenue 1,121,229 1,250,628 (10.35%)
Gross profit 207,186 321,181 (35.49%)
Operating income (89,716) 21,732 (512.83%)
git income before (11,088) 47,370 (123.41%)
Net income after tax (28,814) 22,709 (226.88%)
Earnings per share (1.3) (0.55) (136.36%)

(EPS)

(IT) Budget execution
The Company did not disclose financial forecasts for 2023.



(IIT) Income, expenses, and profitability analysis

Item 2023 2022

Financial | Ratio of Liabilities to Assets (%) 36.64 40.92
structure E)Z?g—term capital to fixed assets 18437 15737
Solvency | Current ratio (%) 162.40 139.70
Quick ratio (%) 131.53 103.99
Return on total assets (%) (0.26) 1.25
Return on equity (%) (1.50) 1.28
Ratio to paid-in capital (%) | Operating income (13.51) 3.27
Net income before (1.67) 714

tax
Profit margin (%) (2.57) 1.82

(IV) Research and development (R&D)

R&D expenditure in the most recent two years

Unit: NT$ Thousand

revenue (%)

Item 2023 2022
R&D expenses 80,562 79,164
To net operating 719% 6.33%

The Company continues the R&D of unique precision itching special processing
technology to provide customers with services. Innovation and R&D will be the cornerstone of
the competitiveness of companies. In the most recent two years, the Company has invested
capital in R&D proactively. The R&D expenses kept growing. In the future, the Company will
continue the R&D of forward-looking technology and innovative applications, practicing of the
product design, research on mass production and systematic management, in order to continue

deepening the Company’s leading position in the core competitiveness.

II. Outline of 2024 business plan
(I) Business policy

In 2024, FineMat will continue to use etching technology as the foundation to further

deepen its business in the existing fields of precision metal masks and thermal module materials.

Xuhui will expand its precision metal etching technology, broadening the product scope
horizontally and delving deeper into technical advancements vertically. The overall business

guidelines for 2024 are as follows:

1. Transformation into a specialized metal etching foundry.

2. Expand the scope of etching business and explore new customer sources.

3. Upgrade technology and refine production.

(IT) Sales volume forecast and the basis thereof

The Company considers the production capacity planning in reference to the market




analysis by primary research institutions and subject to customers’ forecast demand, and sets
forth its annual sales target based on the past operating performance. Notwithstanding, the
Company doesn’t publish its financial forecast to the public in 2024.
(IIT) Important production & marketing policies
Looking to the future, innovation and R&D will be the cornerstone of the competitiveness
of companies. We will continue to conduct R&D for innovative applications and refinement of
production technology in the future in order to guide the Company through innovative R&D,
and to create profits through advanced technology. In 2024, the Company will focus on the
following production and sales policies.
1. Transform into a professional mask sheet etching manufacturer and collaborate with
strategic partners to develop end customers in mainland China.
Begin mass production of new thermal components.
Expand the business of etching products and venture into the non-OLED Mask market.

4. Expand equipment and increase production capacity.

II1. Future development strategies

Looking back at the AMOLED mask market, as China's market share of OLED panels for
smartphones continues to rise, the competition in China's AMOLED mask market has become
increasingly fierce. FineMat which is not a local enterprise in China has also faced bottleneck in
the AMOLED MASK market development. In the future, FineMat will expand the product range
of metal etching on the basis of metal precision etching, and progress toward the goal of heat
dissipation and semiconductor materials. It is believed that with the continuous innovation and
R&D, FineMat will be able to actively develop the market and production capacity of heat
dissipation and semi-conductor. With the joint efforts of all employees, we are determined to

create better profits for all shareholders and create a better workplace for all employees.

IV. Effect of external competition, legal environment, and overall business environment

The Company’s overall performance operations vary depending on the external market
competition, new laws and regulations issued by the competent authority, and changes in the global
business environment.

In response to said environmental changes, the Company complies with the new laws and
regulations promulgated by various competent authorities, and the applicable laws and
regulations at home and abroad. Meanwhile, the Company also commits to developing new
products and new customers, improve the product technology and provide the consulting
service for technology, and maintains fair partnership with customers in the downstream
segment and provides the omnibearing services to improve the Company’s entire

competitiveness.



Thank for the long-term support and encourage from you to the Company. I hereby extend the most
heartwarming appreciation to all of you on behalf of FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
accordingly.

Wish all of you

good health and all the best

Chairman: Chao Ching-Hsiao



Two. Company Profile
I. Date of establishment: May 25, 2017
II. Company history

Year Item

2007 1. Established ACROSENSE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. officially to engage in
R&D and production of Capacitive Touch Screen, with the capital amounting to
NT$10,000 thousand.

2. Increased capital by NT$388,230 thousand, with the paid-in capital becoming
NT$398,230 thousand after the capital increase.
3. Acquired the investee, Sense Pad TECH Co., Ltd.

2008 Increased capital by NT$260,000 thousand, with the paid-in capital becoming
NT$658,230 thousand after the capital increase.

2009 Issued new shares amounting to NT$9,080 thousand by executing the employee stock
options, with the paid-in capital becoming NT$667,310 thousand after the capital
increase.

2010 Issued new shares amounting to NT$17,780 thousand by executing the employee
stock options, with the paid-in capital becoming NT$685,090 thousand after the
capital increase.

2012 Suspended the R&D and production of touch screen, and invested in development of
the precision etching technology and production of high precision metal masks, and
renamed into FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.

2014 Completed the construction of etching mass production lines, and launched into the
OLED high precision metal mask market successfully.

2015 Obtained ISO90001 and ISO14001 certification.

2016 1. The high precision metal mask, Open Mask, satisfied the quality requirement for
the latest generation of OLED, G6H, and launched into the industrial supply chain
successfully.

2. Decreased capital by NT$191,652 thousand to make up losses, with the paid-in
capital becoming NT$493,438 thousand after the capital decrease.

3. Invested in establishment of the subsidiary, Bai Xu Applied Materials Co., Ltd.

4. Invested in establishment of the indirect subsidiary, Finemat (Shanghai) Applied
Materials Co., Ltd.

2017 Reinvestment in the subsidiary, Htc&Solartech Service (Samoa) Corporation, and the
sub-subsidiary, Solar Applied Materials Technology (Shanghai) CO., LTD. and its
sub-subsidiary, FineMat (HuangShi) Applied Materials Co., Ltd..

2018 1. Management of capital increase by cash NT$40,000 thousand and execution of
employee share options for issuance of new shares for NT$70,000 thousand and
the paid-in capital became NT$603,438 thousand after the capital increase.

2. Approved by Taipei Exchange to engage in public offering and register dealings
for emerging stocks.

3. Completed the short-form merger of the subsidiary, Bai Xu Applied Materials
Co., Ltd.

2019 1. Increased capital in cash by NT$$60,460 thousand, with the paid-in capital
becoming NT$663,898 thousand after the capital increase.

2. Approved by Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation (TWSE) to list stocks on
TWSE.




2020

Acquired 42.22% of the equity of Wave Power Technology Inc., and included the
company into the Group’s operations

Acquired 80.36% of the equity of Etch Home Technology Co., Ltd., and included the

2021 company into the Group’s operations

2022 Participated in the capital increase in cash in the subsidiary, Etch Home Technology
Co., Ltd., and acquired 90.81% of the equity thereof cumulatively.

2024 Acquired 9.19% of the equity of the subsidiary, Etch Home Technology Co., Ltd.,

and acquired 100.00% of the equity in total.




Three. Corporate Governance Report
I. Organizational system
(D) Organization structure
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(IT) Business operations by major departments
By department Functions and operations
Auditi 1. Evaluation and reporting on internal control system and management system
itin . :
O;lf g implementation.
ice . . .
2. Plan and execution of the auditing operation progress.
Help the President manage and execute the Company’s businesses.
President’ 2. Participate in determination of strategies and business targets, and responsible
resident’s : : :
Off; for implementing and executing the same.
ice .. ) :
3. Unit in charge of overall planning about personal data protection.
g p g p
4. Intellectual property management unit
Environmental Per the President’s direction, take charge of planning and supervising the
Safety Office implementation and control of labor safety, sanitation management and

environmental system.

Per the President’s direction, take charge of the Company’s product development,

R&D Division and direct the subordinated unit, New Product Development Dept..

Per the President’s direction, take charge of the Company’s manufacturing
technology supporting, sales technology supporting and customers’ supporting, take
charge of costs, quality and environmental protection technology matters
concurrently, and direct the subordinated units, Product Design Dept., Engineering
Dept. and Quality Assurance Dept.

Technology
Division

Manufacturing | Per the President’s direction, take charge of the overall planning about execution of




Division production, improvement of efficiency and reduction of costs, and timely
completion of production orders, and direct the subordinated units, Manufacturing
Dept. and Production Management Dept..

By department | Functions and operations

Qualit Per the President’s direction, take charge of the overall planning about execution of

y quality matters, establish and promote various quality system to ensure the product

Assurance . . . . . . . .

Division quality, and coordinate with various production units to establish the standardized
system in response to the demand for mass production.
Attain the sales targets per the President’s direction and based on the principles

Operation adhering to quality and environmental management, create the maximum profit for

Division the Company, and direct the subordinated units, Sales Dept. and Business
Management Dept..

Finance Per the Chairman’s direction, take charge of the Company’s finance, accounting,

Division HR and shareholders service affairs, and direct the subordinated units, Finance
Dept., Accounting Dept., Investment Management Dept. and HR Dept..

Sourcing Per the President’s direction, take charge of the procurement of raw materials,

Dept. supplies, equipment, production and operation, and import/export management.

Management | Per the President’s direction, take charge of planning and supervision of

Dept. information security management and facility management.
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. Major Shareholders of Juristic Person Shareholders

December 31, 2023

Name of institutional
shareholder

Major Shareholders of Juristic Person Shareholders

Yi Long Investment
Co., Ltd.

ELAN MICROELECTRONICS CORP. (100.00%),

Wistron Corporation

Taishin International Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. is entrusted with the custody of
the Cathay Taiwan High Dividend Umbrella Securities Investment Trust Fund's
Taiwan ESG Sustainability High Dividend ETF Securities Investment Trust Fund
Special Account (4.79%); New Labor Pension Fund (3.12%); Yuanta Taiwan
Value High Dividend (2.30%); ACER INCORPORATED (1.89%); Taipei Fubon
Bank is entrusted with the Wistron property account (1.54%), Lin Hsien-Ming
(1.47%); Taipei Fubon Bank as trust in the custody of the voting restricted stock
trust account with dividend distribution rights for employees of Wistron Corporation
(1.38%); the Fubon Taiwan High Dividend 30 ETF Fund Account (1.02%); HSBC
(Taiwan) Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. is entrusted with the custody of the investment
account of Morgan Stanley International Co. Ltd. (1.02%); Wistron NeWeb
Corporation (0.99%).

Sheng Tai Co., Ltd.

Chao Chin-Hsiao (48.53%); Ni Hui-Min (7.15%); Li Fan-Chun (7.15%); Chen Chin|
Do Chen (6.02%);
Li Wei-Cheng (6.02%); Li Chung-Jen (6.02%); Wu Lung-Hsiang (6.02%); Yel
Chien-Hung (4.90%);

Li Hsun-Chieh (4.10%); Liao Si-Ren (4.10%)

3. Major Shareholders of Major Shareholders Who are Juristic Persons

-12-



December 31, 2023

Name of institution

Major shareholders of corporate shareholders

ELAN
Microelectronics
Corp.

Yi Long Investment Co., Ltd. (4.09%); Nanshan Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (3.73%);
New System Labor Retirement Fund (3.72%); Yu Long Investment Co., Ltd. (2.33%);
Yeh Yi-Hu (1.97%); Citibank (Taiwan) is entrusted with the custody of the special
investment account of the Central Bank of Norway (1.73%); Standard Chartered in
custody for Swede Bank, Rober Technology (1.51%); Vanguard Emerging Market
Stock Index Fund Account in custody of JPMorgan Chase (1.36%); JPMorgan Chase
in custody for Advanced Star Vanguard Total International Equity Index (1.24%);
Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. (1.03%)

Acer Incorporated

Taishin International Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. is entrusted with the custody of the
Cathay Taiwan High Dividend Umbrella Securities Investment Trust Fund's

Taiwan ESG Sustainability High Dividend ETF Securities Investment Trust Fund
Special Account (7.64%); Hung Rong Investment Co., Ltd. (2.42%); JPMorgan
Chase Bank N.A. Taipei Branch is entrusted for custody of Vanguard Emerging
Markets Stock Index Fund Investment Account (1.31%); Standard Chartered
International Commercial Bank's Business Department entrusted with the custody of
iShares ESG Awareness Morgan Stanley Capital International Inc. Emerging Markets
Index Fund Investment Account (1.26%); JPMorgan Chase Bank (USA) Taipei
Branch, a series of funds belonging to Pioneer Star Fund, which is entrusted with the
custody of the Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund Investment Account
(1.23%); Stan Shih (1.15%); New System Labor Pension Fund (0.97%); ACER
Overseas Depository and Investment Services under the custody of Citibank Taiwan
trust receipts (0.93%); JPMorgan Chase Bank (Taipei Branch) in custody for JP
Morgan Securities Co., Ltd. (0.88%); Citibank (Taiwan) in custody for Norges Bank
Investment Account (0.86%)

Wistron NeWeb
Corporation

Wistron Corporation (21.45%); Chang Gung Medical Foundation (2.28%); Wang
Yung-Shun (1.95%); New System Labor Pension Fund (1.87%); JPMorgan Chase-
American Bank entrusted with JP Morgan Securities Co., Ltd. (1.56 %); Hsieh Hung-
Bo (1.48%); Shin Kong Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (1.28%); HSBC (Taiwan)
Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. is entrusted with the custody of the investment account
of Goldman Sachs International (1.21%); Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd. (1.10%); Chun
Development Co., Ltd. (1.07%)
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4. Disclosure of information about directors’ professional qualification and independent directors’ independence:

May 13, 2024

Conditions

Name

Professional qualifications and
experience

Independence

Number of other
public companies in
which the
independent
director
concurrently serve
as an independent
director

Chairman
Chao Chin-
Hsiao

PhD in Materials, National Sun Yat-Sen
University, with the working experience
needed by the Company’s business for
more than 5 years. Former President of
Solar Applied Materials Technology
Corp., and currently the Chairman of
FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS
CO., LTD. and Wave Power
Technology Inc. With the ability and
experience in business administration,
and free from the circumstances referred
to in Article 30 of the Company Act

Director
Liu Dai-Min

Master of Economic Law, China
University of Political Science and Law
(CUPL), with the working experience
needed by the Company’s business for
more than 5 years. Hold the position in
ELAN Microelectronics Corp., and
serve as a representative of juristic
person director of multiple companies.
With the experience in business
administration and commerce for many
years, and free from the circumstances
referred to in Article 30 of the Company
Act

Director
Chiu Kao-Ling

MBA, University of Pittsburgh, with the
working experience needed by the
Company’s business for more than 5
years. Hold the position in Wistron
Corporation, and serve as a
representative of juristic person director
of multiple companies. With the
experience in corporate governance,
financial accounting and related
industry’s operations, and free from the
circumstances referred to in Article 30
of the Company Act

Director
Ni Hui-Min

Graduated from National Chang-Hua
Senior High School of Commerce, with
the working experience needed by the
Company’s business for more than 5
years. Former Vice President of Solar
Applied Materials Technology Corp.
and currently the Chairman of HTC &
Solar Service Limited. With the
experience in business administration
and commerce for many years, and free
from the circumstances referred to in
Article 30 of the Company Act

None of his spouse or relatives within
the second degree of kinship acts as a
director, and he is free from the
circumstances referred to in Paragraph
3, Article 26-3 of the Securities and
Exchange Act.

None.

None

None

None
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Director
Li Wei-Cheng

PhD in Materials, National Cheng Kung
University, with the working experience
needed by the Company’s business for
more than 5 years. Formerly Project
Manager of Planning Division, ITRI;
Director of Chemical Metallurgy
Division, Solar Applied Materials

Technology Corp., and currently the None
President of FINEMAT APPLIED
MATERIALS CO., LTD. With the
ability and experience in materials
technology and business administration
for many years, and free from the
circumstances referred to in Article 30
of the Company Act
Independent Graduated from Aviation Engineering (1) Not an employee of the Company
Director Department, Air Force Institute of or its affiliated companies.
Chen Cheng- Technology, 2-year program, with the (2) Not a director or supervisor of the
Li working experience needed by the Company or any of its affiliated
Company’s business for more than 5 companies
years. Former President of TYCOONS (3) Not a director, spouse, minor
GROUP Enterprise CO., Ltd., and child thereof, or other natural
currently the Chairman of Huanghua person shareholders who hold
Jujin Hardware Products Co., Ltd. With more than 1% of the total issued None
the industrial experience and also shares of the Company by
experience in business administration nominee arrangement or with top
for many years, and free from the ten ownership.
circumstances referred to in Article 30 (4) Not the manager listed in (1) or
of the Company Act the spouse, relatives within the
second degree of kinship or direct
blood relative within the third
degree of kinship of the person
listed in (2) and (3).
Independent Master of Laws, Soochow University; (5) Not a director, supervisor, or
Director graduated from Department of employee of any juristic-person
Chou Hui-Yu | Accounting, National Cheng Kung shareholder that has 5% or higher
University, and also passed the Civil of the total shares issued by the
Service National Examination for CPA Company, or of top-5 juristic-
successfully, with the working person shareholders of the
experience needed by the Company’s Company, or of the juristic- 5
business for more than 5 years. Former person shareholders who appoint
Vice President of ACTION their representatives to serve as
ELECTRONICS CO., LTD, with the the director or supervisor the
experience in financial accounting and Company in accordance with
industry for many years, and free from Paragraph 1 or Paragraph 2,
the circumstances referred to in Article Article 27 of the Company Act.
30 of the Company Act (6) Not a director, supervisor or
Independent Graduated from Department of employee of any company
director Accounting, National Cheng Kung controlled by the same person
Tseng Chung- | University, with the working experience that holds a majority of the
Nan needed by the Company’s business for directors or voting shares of the
more than 5 years. Former CFO of Company.
Cheng Mei Materials Technology (7) Not a director, supervisor or 1
Corporation, with the experience in employee of any company who is
financial accounting and industry for the same person as, or the spouse
many years, and free from the of, Chairman and President or
circumstances referred to in Article 30 equivalent of the Company.
of the Company Act. (8) Not a director, supervisor,
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Independent

Graduated from the Institute of Business

manager, or shareholder with

Director Administration, National Chiayi more than 5% ownership interest None
Anita Chu University, with the working experience in any companies or institutions

needed by the Company’s business for that have financial or business

more than 5 years. Currently the Vice relationship with the Company.

President of Huikwang Corporation, (9) Not a professional individual

with the experience in financial who, or an owner, partner,

accounting and industry for many years, director, supervisor, or officer of

and free from the circumstances referred a sole proprietorship, partnership,

to in Article 30 of the Company Act company, or institution that,

provides auditing services to the
Company or any affiliated
company of the Company, or that
provides commercial, legal,
financial, accounting or related
services to the Company or any
affiliated company of the
Company for which the provider
in the past 2 years has received
cumulative compensation.

(10) Not a spouse or relative within
the second degree of kinship with
any other director.

(11) Not elected as a government,
juristic person or its
representative according to
Article 27 of the Company Act.

5. Diversity and Independence of Board of Directors:

(1) Diversity of Board of Directors

According to Article 20 of the Company's "Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles”, the
composition of the board of directors shall take diversity into account, and appropriate policies shall be
adopted for diversity in terms of its own operation, business model and development needs. It should
include but not be limited to the following two major standards:
I.  Basic requirements and values: Gender, age, nationality, and culture.
II.  Professional knowledge and skills: A professional background (e.g., law, accounting, industry,

finance, marketing, technology), professional skills, and industry experience.
All members of the Board shall have the knowledge, skills, and experience necessary to perform their
duties. To achieve the ideal goal of corporate governance, the Board of Directors shall possess the following
abilities:

I.  Operational judgment

II.  Accounting and financial analysis

III. Business administration

IV. Crisis management

V. Industrial knowledge

VI. An international market perspective

VIIL. Leadership

VIII.Decision-making
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Practicing of the board member diversity policy in the most recent year:

Term of
office held as
Age an An Leadership
. s independent |Operational| Business Financial | Business Crisis Industrial |international .
Director’s name | Gender di . . . . . & decision
irector judgment |administration| accounting | economics |management| knowledge | market making
Less 3.9 perspective
51~60|61~70|71~80 | than 3
years
years
Chao Chin-Hsiao [Male v v v v v v v
Liu Dai-Min Male v v v v v v v v
ChiuKao-Ling |Female | v v v v v v v v v
Ni Hui-Min Female v v v v v v v v
Li Wei-Cheng  [Male v v v v v v v
Chen Cheng-Li _|Male v v v v v v v v
Chou Hui-Yu Female | v v v v % v v v v v
;S;fg Chung- 1y ple v v v v v v v v v v
Chu Chiu-Pi Female | v v v v v v v v v v

(2) Specific management goals of the board composition diversity policy, and achievement thereof:

A total of three diversity goals have been achieved for the current Board of Directors, namely “independent
directors accounting for more than one-third of the total directors (inclusive),” “female directors
accounting for more than one-third of the total directors (inclusive)” and the number of directors with the
identity of employees of the Company, its parent company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries less than

one-third of the total directors (inclusive).

(3) Independence of the Board of Directors

The Company’s current Board of Directors consists of 9 members, including 4 independent directors, and
2 directors with the identity of the Company’s employees (i.e. 44.44% and 22.22% of the whole Board
members respectively). All independent directors satisfy the requirements about independent directors
imposed by Securities and Futures Bureau, Financial Supervisory Commission. All of the directors and
independent directors are free from the circumstances referred to in Paragraph 3 and Paragraph 4, Article
26-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act. The Company’s Board of Directors acts independently (please
refer to Page 14-16 of the annual report - Disclosure of information about directors’ professional
qualification and independent directors’ independence). For the directors’ educational background, gender

and working experience, please refer to Pages 9-11 of the annual report - Information about directors.
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(V) Names of managers receiving employee remuneration, and state of distribution

Managerial The total
Officers Title Name Stock Cash amount Total amount as a
amount percentage of
net income
President Li Wei-Cheng 0 0 0 0
CSO Chao Chin- 0 0 0 0
Hsiao
Executive Vice Li Chung-Jen 0 0 0 0
President (Note 1)
Vice President Li Fan-Chun 0 0 0 0
Chief Operating Yi-Fan Wang 0 0 0 0
Officer (Note 2)
Accounting officer | Tsai Yu-Chen 0 0 0 0
(Note 3)
Accounting officer | Tsai Hsiu- 0 0 0 0
(Note 3) Chen

Note 1: Executive Vice President Li Chung-Jen retired on September 11, 2023.

Note 2: COO Wang Yi-Fan was appointed on August 09, 2023.

Note 3: Assistant Manager Tsai Yu-Chen, Head of Accounting, stepped down on November 07, 2023. and was succeeded by Manager
Tsai Hsiu-Chen.

(VI) Total of the compensation paid in the most recent two years by the Company and all companies included
in the financial statements to the Company's directors, supervisors, President, and vice presidents in the
most recent two years, and their respective proportions to the net income, as well as the policies, standards
and packages by which the compensation was paid, the procedures through which compensation was
determined, and their association with business performance and future risk:

1. Compensation paid in the most recent two years by the Company and all companies included in the
financial statements to the Company’s directors, supervisors, President, and vice presidents as a
percentage of net income (%) in the most recent two years:

Unit: %
2022 2023

Title The Company | All companies inthe | The Company | All companies in the

financial statements financial statements
Directors (including
independent 29.16 53.08 (20.21) (48.83)
directors)
President and vice 39.61 53.20 (31.75) (49.28)
presidents

2. Policies, standards and packages by which the compensation was paid, the procedures through which
compensation was determined, and their association with business performance and future risk:

(1) Directors (including independent directors)

The Board of Directors resolves the remuneration and transportation allowance of all independent
directors at the rate generally adopted by the peers in the same industry. The remuneration must be
paid, irrelevant with profit or loss retained by the Company. Notwithstanding, independent directors
shall not participate in the annual distribution of remuneration.

No more than 5% of the earnings for the current year shall be allocated as the compensation to
directors, in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation.

The same shall be resolved subject to the liability to be borne by directors and level of their

contribution to the Company, and upon review by Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors.
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Meanwhile, the Company may maintain the liability insurance for all directors.
(2) President and vice presidents
The compensation to the Company’s President and vice presidents consists of salary, bonus and
employee remuneration which are decided subject to the position as held, obligation to be borne and
level of contribution to the Company, and at the rate generally adopted by the peers in the same

industry.

-25-



IV. Corporate governance operations
(I) Corporate governance operations
1. The annual general meeting on August 18, 2021 completed the re-election of whole directors. Each

director shall held the term of office from August 18, 2021 to August 17, 2024.

2. A total of 7(A) Board meetings were held in 2023. Below are the directors’ attendance records:

Actual Attendance Actual
Title Name attendance | by proxy | attendance | Remark
(times) (B) (times) rate (B/A)
Chairman Chao Chin-Hsiao 7 0 100%

. Representative of Yi Long o
Director Investment Co., Ltd: Liu Dai-Min 7 0 100%

. Representative of Wistron o
Director Corporation: Chiu Kao-Ling 7 0 100%

. Representative of Sheng Tai Co., o
Director Ltd. Ni Hui-Min 7 0 100%
Director Li Wei-Cheng 7 0 100%
Independent | o, Cheng-Li 6 1 86%
director
Independent | oy ui-yu 7 0 100%
director
Independent | ..\ Chung-Nan 7 0 100%
director
Independent | , + chy 7 0 100%
director

3. Other matters to be noted:

(1) For Board of Directors meetings that meet any of the following descriptions, state the date, session,
contents of the motions, independent directors' opinions and how the Company has responded to such
opinions:

(a) Conditions described in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act:
The Company has convened a total of 7 Board meetings in 2023. For details of the resolutions,
please refer to Page 53 to Page 55 of the annual report. All Independent Directors passed
unanimously with respect to the matters listed in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act.
(b) Any other resolution(s) by the Board of Directors meetings passed but with independent directors
voicing opposing or qualified opinions in writing: None.

(2) For directors’ avoidance of motions which involves conflict of interest, the names of directors,
contents of the motions, reasons of the recusal for conflict of interest, and participation in voting must
be disclosed:

In the Board meeting of the Company on January 17, 2023, Discussion No. 8: Proposal for the
Company's 2022 annual year-end bonus distribution to managerial officers. When the discussion is
about Chairman, Chao Chin-Hsiao for resolution, Chairman, Chao Chin-Hsiao recused himself, and
Independent Director Tseng Chung-Nan served as the chairman of the meeting temporarily. When
the discussion is about Li Wei-Cheng for resolution, director Li Wei-Cheng recused himself from the
discussion. Upon inquiry by the chair, all the directors passed unanimously by a vote of all directors

present.
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(3) Assessment on the Board of Directors

Evaluation Evaluation period Evaluation scope Evaluation method Content§ of
cycle evaluation
Board of Directors’
self-evaluation
Board of Directors | Board members’
Once per Boar_d memb@rs self—_evaluatiqn ,
year 2023/01/01~2023/12/31 | Audit Commlttee Audit Commlttee s | Note
Remuneration self-evaluation
Committee Remuneration
Committee’s self-
evaluation
Note:

(a) Board of Directors’ self-evaluation: Engagement in the Company’s operation, upgrading of the

Board’s decision-making quality, composition and structure of the Board, election and continuing

education of directors, and internal controls, etc.

(b) Board members’ self-evaluation: Alignment with the goals and mission of the Company, knowledge
of directors’ duties, engagement in the Company’s operations, management of internal relationship
and communication, professionalism and continuing education of directors, and internal controls, etc.

(c) Contents of the audit committee's and the remuneration committee's self-assessment: Level of
participation in the company operations, functional committee awareness, improvement of decision-

making quality of functional committees, composition of functional committees and election of

members, and internal control.
(d) Evaluation results in 2023

i. Board of Directors’ self-evaluation

A. Engagement | B. Upgrading of . D. Election and
. . 5 C. Composition L.
Appraisal in the the Board’s continuing E. Internal
s . and structure of .
standards Company’s decision- education of control
. . . the Board -
operation making quality directors
Performance Good Excellent Excellent Good Good
ii. Board members’ self-evaluation
. A B. C. E.
Alignment D. Internal . .
. : Knowledge | Engagement . . Professionalism F.
Appraisal with the > relationship .
of in the and continuing Internal
standards goals and . s s and .
. directors Company’s . education of control
mission of . . communication .
duties operation directors
the Company
Performance Good Good Good Good Good Good
iii. Audit Committee’s self-evaluation
A. Engagement | B.Knowledge C. Up gradn_lg D. o
. . . of the Audit Composition
Appraisal in the of Audit . E. Internal
R o, Committee’s and structure of
standards Company’s Committee’s L . control
operation duties decision- the Audit
P making quality Committee
Performance Excellent Good Excellent Excellent Excellent
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1v. Audit Committee’s self-evaluation

A. Engagement | B.Knowledge C, Upgradn}g D. ..
. . - of the Audit Composition
Appraisal in the of Audit o, E. Internal
S L, Committee’s and structure of

standards Company’s Committee’s .. . control

operation dutics decision- the Audit

P making quality Committee
Performance Good Good Good Good Good

v. Remuneration Committee’s self-evaluation

A. Engagement in

B. Knowledge of

C. Upgrading of the
Remuneration

D. Composition
and structure of

Appraisal standards the Company’s Remuneration Committee’s the
operation Committee’s duties decision-making Remuneration
quality Committee
Performance Good Good Excellent Excellent

Vi.

Remuneration Committee members’

self-evaluation

A. Engagement in

B. Knowledge of

C. Upgrading of the
Remuneration

D. Composition
and structure of

Appraisal standards the Company’s Remuneration Committee’s the
operation Committee’s duties decision-making Remuneration
quality Committee
Performance Good Good Good Good

(4) Evaluation on enhancement of the functionality of the Board of Directors in the current and the most
recent year and the respective progress reports

(a) The Company has established the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, consisting of
four independent directors. By establishment of the functional committees, the Board of Directors’
functions and powers are divided perfectly. The functional committees act independently to help
the Board of Decision with decision making and enhancement of the corporate governance.

(b) Directors would choose to attend the corporate governance-themed courses covering finance, risk
management, business, commerce, laws, accounting and corporate social responsibility, or other
courses related to internal control system and responsibility for reporting finance, in order to
enhance the knowledge and fulfillment of corporate governance.

(c) The Company has maintained the liability insurance for all directors.

(d) In order to have the corporate governance in place and upgrade the Board’s functions, the
Company adopted the Regulations Governing Board’s Self-Evaluation or Peer Evaluation, and
completed the Board’s 2023 performance valuation pursuant to the Regulations at the beginning
of 2024. For the self-evaluation result, please refer to (3) Board of Directors’ evaluation, and the
result was reported to the Board of Directors on March 14, 2024.

(e) In order to establish the Company’s fair corporate governance, help directors perform their duties
and upgrade the Board’s performance, the Company adopted the standard operating procedure
required by directors.

(II) Operation of the Audit Committee

1. The directors were re-elected on August 18, 2021. The Audit Committee members increased as 4
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members, consisting of the whole independent directors. 3 out of the members are experts in accounting
and finance. The Audit Committee members convene the meeting to review the execution of the
Company’s internal control system and internal audit and also significant business and financial
activities, and to communicate and exchange with the external auditors, in order to supervise the
Company’s operations and risk controls precisely, prior to the Board of Directors meeting on a quarterly
basis.
(1) For the professional knowledge to be held by the Audit Committee members: For details, please refer
to Pages 14-16, Professional Knowledge of Directors (including Independent Directors)
(2) Audit Committee’s annual main line of action (MLA)
€ Adoption or amend the internal control system in accordance with Article 14-1 of the Securities
and Exchange Act.
€ Assessment on the effectiveness of the internal control system.
€ Adoption or amendment, pursuant to Article 36-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act, of
handling procedures for financial or operational actions of material significance, such as
acquisition or disposal of assets, derivatives trading, extension of monetary loans to others, and
endorsements or guarantees for others.
A matter bearing on the personal interest of a director or supervisor.
A transaction involving material asset or derivatives trading.
A material monetary loan, endorsement, or provision of guarantee.
The offering, issuance, or private placement of any equity-type securities.
The hiring, dismissal or remuneration of an attesting certified public accountant.
The appointment or dismissal of a financial, accounting, or internal auditing officer.

Annual financial statements and semi-annual financial statements

L 2R 2R 2R 2% 2R 2% 2R 2

Audit Committee’s performance self-evaluation
2. The Audit Committee held 7 (A) meetings in 2023. The attendance of independent directors is

summarized as follows:

Title Name Actual attendance | Attendance by | Actual attendance Remark
(times) (B) proxy (times) rate (B/A)
Independent Chen Cheng- 6 1 R6%
Director Li
Igdependent Chou Hui- 7 0 100%
director Yu
Independent | Tseng o
director Chung-Nan ’ 0 100%
Independent | \ .0 chy 7 0 100%
director

3. Other matters to be noted:

(1) For the Audit Committee’s operation that meets any of the following descriptions, state the date, session
and contents of the motions of the Audit Committee’s meeting, and Audit Committee’s resolution, and
how the Company has responded to the Audit Committee’s opinions:

(a) Any conditions described in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act unapproved by the Audit

Committee but passed by more than two-thirds of directors: None.
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(b) Other than those described above, any resolutions unapproved by the Audit Committee but passed by

more than two-thirds of directors: None.

(2) For independent directors’ avoidance of motions which involves conflict of interest, the names of
directors, contents of the motions, reasons of the recusal for conflict of interest, and participation in
voting must be disclosed: None.

(3) Communication between independent directors and chief internal auditor/CPAs:

(a) Communication between independent directors and chief internal auditor: Both sides meet with each
other via phone or email from time to time, and also communicate with each other at each Audit
Committee meeting. The communication is considered fair and both sides are considered fulfilling
their obligations to report and explain the results.

(b) Communication between independent directors and CPAs: The Company’s CPAs are used to
fulfilling their obligation to report and explain the audit or review result on financial statements for
the current quarter and other legal requirements. The communication between independent directors
and the CPAs are considered fair too.

(4) Resolutions made by Audit Committee in 2023

How the Board
Conditions . of Directors has
Date of described in Audit responded to
Meeti Contents of Motion Article 14-5 of the | Committee’s A I:i
eeting Securities and resolutions udit S
Exchange Act Cqmmlttee S
opinions
The Company's 2023 business plan
Evaluation report on independence and competence of the
Con_lpany’s external auditors, and appointment of external \% Approved by Approved by all
2023.01.17 | auditors all present
— : - - bers present members.
Approval for the provision of non-certification services Members.
to the Company and subsidiaries by CPAs, their firms
and affiliates
The Company’s 2022 financial statements and business
report
The 2022 earnings distribution plan v
2023.03.15 e P . S{’pig;’:iby Approved by all
The Company’s 2022 statement of the internal control v p present members.
system members.
Proposal for making endorsements/guarantees for the v
subsidiary, Htc&Solartech Service (Samoa) Corporation
2022 earnings distribution changes v Approved by
2023.05.03 all present Appm‘t’ed byba”
The Company’s 2023 Q1 financial statements members. present MEMBETs.
Proposal for loaning of funds to the subsidiary, Etch v
Home Technology Co., Ltd.
Proposal for making endorsements/guarantees for Approved by Approved by all
2023.06.30 P \% all present
subsidiaries members present members.
Loaning of funds of the subsidiary, Solar Applied v
Materials Technology (Shanghai) CO., LTD.
Disposal of the equity of the reinvestment company, Approved by Approved by all
2023.07.28 . . \'% all present
Huangshi Quanyang Photoelectric Technology Co., Ltd. members present members.
2023.08.09 | The Company's 2023 Q2 financial statements v Approved by | Approved by all
all present present members.
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Proposal for license of technology to Huangshi Quanyang
Photoelectric Technology Co., Ltd.

Disposal of equipment of subsidiary FineMat (HuangShi)
Applied Materials Co., Ltd.

members.

2023.11.07

The Company’s 2023 Q3 financial statements

Proposal for approval of 2024 audit plan

Amendments to the Company’s “Internal Control
System”

Formulation of Risk Management Regulations

Establishment of the "Rules Governing Operations in
relation to Finance and Business between Affiliated
Parties"

Transfer of the Company’s Chief Accounting Officer

Investment case in Etch Home Technology Co., Ltd.
(Vietnam)

Proposal for making endorsements/guarantees for
subsidiaries

Proposal for loaning funds to the indirect subsidiary in
Vietnam, VN ETCH HOME TECHNOLOGY

Amendment to loaning of funds of the subsidiary, Solar
Applied Materials Technology (Shanghai) CO., LTD.

Approved by
all present
members.

Approved by all
present members.
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(IIT) Continuing education of directors (independent directors) and managers in the most recent year

Title Name Organizer Date Course name Hours
Chao 2023.08.09 | Circular economic benefits and business model 3
Chai Chi Securities & Futures -
airman n- Institute How to read the financial statements by non-finance
Hsiao 2023.11.07. 1 3
personne
Circular economic benefits and business model
Direct Liu Dai- | Securities & Futures 2023.08.09 3
trector Min Institute 2023.11.07 How to read the financial statements by non-finance 3
7 | personnel
Taiwan Stock Exchange L . . .
) Corporation 2023.07.04 | Cathay Sustainability Finance and Climate Change Summit 6
Chiu p
Director Kao- Taiwan C rat 2023.09.22 Key Global ESG Trends and Cases for Winning Futures 3
Ling W orporate _ )
Governance Association 2023.09.22 The Key to Improving the Effectiveness of the Board of 3
T Directors
Circular economic benefits and business model
Direct Li Wei- | Securities & Futures 2023.08.09 3
rector Cheng Institute 2023.11.07 How to read the financial statements by non-finance 3
© " | personnel
Circular economic benefits and business model
Direct Ni Hui- | Securities & Futures 2023.08.09 3
rector Min Institute 2023.11.07 How to read the financial statements by non-finance 3
" | personnel
Circular economic benefits and business model 3
Independent gﬁen Securities & Futures 2023.08.09
director neng- Institute 2023.11.07 How to read the financial statements by non-finance 3
Li 77 | personnel
Independent Tseng Securities & Futures 2023.08.09 | Circular economic benefits and business model 3
direclior Chung- Institute 2023.11.07 How to read the financial statements by non-finance 3
Nan " | personnel
Taiwan Investor 2023.03.08 Management dispute - corporate governance and the 3
Independent | Chou Relations Institute T responsibilities and powers of independent directors
P
director Hui-Yu | Securities & Futures 2023.08.09 Circular economic benefits and business model 3
Institute T
How about a board meeting? Sharing of Practices on 3
. 2023.06.26 | Common Defects in Board Meetings and Operations of
Taiwan C rat
Goxmangzp Xss;ciation TWSE Listed Companies
2023.07.14 How Lighthouse Plant uses digital transformation to 3
T achieve sustainable development
Independent | Anita Continuing Education Course for Accounting Officers- 3
director Chu Conference on Accounting
National Cheng Kung 2023.07.20- Continuing Education Course for Accounting Officers- 6
. . o Conference on Corporate Governance
University 2023.07.21 — . -
Continuing Education Course for Accounting Officers- 3
Conference on Code of Professional Conduct and Legal
Liability
Securities & Futures 2023.08.09 | Circular economic benefits and business model 3
Institute 2023.11.07 How to read the financial statements by non-finance 3
" | personnel
Finance Continuing Education Course for Accounting Officers- 3
Vice Li Fan- Conference on Accounting
President Chun National Cheng Kung 2023.11.16- Continuing Education Course for Accounting Officers- 6
University 2023.11.17 Conference on Corporate Governance
o Continuing Education Course for Accounting Officers-
Conference on Code of Professional Conduct and Legal 3
Liability
Chief Yi-Fan Securities & Futures 2023.08.09 | Circular economic benefits and business model 3
Operating Wan Institute 2023.11.07 How to read the financial statements by non-finance 3
Officer & 7" | personnel
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2. Information about operation of Remuneration Committee
(1) The Company’s Remuneration Committee added one member upon the re-election on November 5,
2021. For the time being, the Committee consists of 4 members.
(2) The current members’ term of office commences form November 5, 2021 until August 17, 2024. The
Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings in 2023.

The attendance of the Committee members is summarized as follows:

. Actual attendance | Attendance by | Actual attendance

Job Title Name (times) (B) proxy (times) rate (B/A) Remark
Convener Eihen Cheng- 2 1 67%
Committee | Chou Hui- 3 0 100%
member Yu
Committee | Tseng o
member Chung-Nan 3 0 100%
committee | iia Chu 3 0 100%
member

(3) Other matters to be noted:

(a) If the Board of Directors does not adopt or amend the suggestions of the Remuneration Committee,
it is necessary to state the date, term, motion contents, directors resolution outcomes and the
Company's handling of the Remuneration Committee's opinions (e.g. if the board approved the
remuneration which is higher than the Committee's recommendations, the differences and the
reasons thereof shall be stated): None.

(b) If a member has an objection or reservation on a resolution on a matter that is recorded or stated in
a written statement, the following shall be stated: the Remuneration Committee meeting date,
session, proposal, opinions of all members, and handling of the opinions of the Remuneration
Committee: None.

(4) Resolutions made by Remuneration Committee in 2023

The Company's
Date of Resolution by the response to the
Meetin Contents of Motion Remuneration Remuneration
J Committee Committee’s
opinions
The 2023 managerial officers' remuneration policy
2023.01.17 Remuneration to the new managers Approved by all Approved by all
present members. present members.
Allocation of 2022 year-end bonus to the Company’s
managers
The 2022 employee remuneration and directors’
2023.03.15 remuneration distribution proposal Approved by all Approved by all
Adjustment of the salary of the Chairman. present members. present members.
0231107 The 2024 managerial officers' remuneration policy Approved by all Approved by all
T Remuneration to the new managers present members. present members.
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(VD) Operation of the Risk Management Committee
1. Composition of the Risk Management Committee
The Company appointed the Risk Management Committee in November 2023. The Committee is
composed of 4 independent directors and 3 senior executives. The Committee is chaired by Independent
Director Tseng Chung-Nan who possesses many years of finance and accounting expertise and
management experiences meeting the professional abilities required for the Company’s Risk

Management Committee. The members of the Company's Risk Management Committee are as follows:

Duties of
. Independent .
Name Committee . Expertise
director
Members
Tseng Chung-Nan | Chairperson Yes Finance and accounting expertise,
and Committee business management, corporate
Members governance
Chao Chin-Hsiao | Committee No Leadership, management, and
member technical expertise
Li Wei-Cheng Committee No Operational judgment, management,
member and technical expertise
Chen Cheng-Li Committee Yes Operational judgment, management,
member and industry knowledge
Chou Hui-Yu Committee Yes Finance and accounting expertise,
member legal expertise, business economics
Anita Chu Committee Yes Finance and accounting, business
member economics, business management
Li Fan-Chun Committee No Finance and accounting expertise,
member business management, corporate
governance

2. The operation of the Risk Management Committee:

The Company's risk management procedures include: risk identification, risk analysis, risk assessment,
risk response, and supervision and review mechanism. Through the above procedures, each unit should grasp
the scope of operational risks and implement appropriate measures to ensure effective management of relevant
operational risks. In addition to the compilation of the overall impact that various risks may have on the
Company through cross-department communication and data collection, the level of impact of each risk
is also linked to the Company's short, medium and long-term business goals to control the Company's
tolerance to risk impacts.

After the resolution is passed by the Board of Directors on November 7, 2023, the Company
established the "Risk Management Committee" and the "Risk Management Working Group" directly under
the Committee. The first term of office of the committee members is from November 7, 2023 to August 18,
2024 (It is equivalent to the last term of the current Board of Directors and will be re-elected at the time of
re-election of directors); the Company has also approved the "Risk Management Best Practice Principles"
and "Risk Management Policy and Procedures" on the day of the previous session of the Board of Directors,
and has announced and implemented it concurrently.

To implement the risk management mechanism, the Company is expected to start risk assessments on

an annual basis starting 2024. The report of the assessment results should be submitted to the Risk
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Management Committee and the Board of Directors, and the content should include various risks faced by
the Company during the assessment year and the countermeasures, expected improvement plans, and more.
The risk management working group will conduct follow-up tracking to ensure the effective operation and
execution of the Company's risk management.

With the aim to strengthen the risk management awareness of the Company's employees, the Company
also plans to organize risk management education and training from time to time in 2024 (e.g. introduction
to the basic concepts of risk management, sharing of risk management practices and cases, etc.) to enhance

the concept of risk control and management for implementation.
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(IX) Corporate governance best practice principles and other relevant guidelines, if any, and the access to

such principles:

In addition to the “Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles,” the Company also adopted the
“Rules and Procedure for Shareholders' Meeting”, “Code of Ethical Behavior,” “Rules of Procedure for
Board of Directors Meetings,” “Ethical Management Best Practice Principles,” “Procedures for
Handling Material Inside Information,” “Standard Operating Procedure for Handling Directors’
Requirements,” “Regulations Governing Board’s Self-Evaluation or Peer Evaluation” and
“Whistleblowing System Regulations,” in order to govern shareholders’ equity, enhance the Board of
Directors’ functions, respect stakeholders’ interest and right and upgrade information transparency,
hoping to establish a fair corporate governance system step by step to help improve the corporate
governance performance results. For the relevant information about the Company’s corporate

governance system, please visit MOPS or the Company’s website.

(X) Other information material to the understanding of corporate governance within the Company

1.

The Company communicates the education about laws and regulations related to the “Insider
Trading Prevention Management Operations” to directors, managers and employees at least once per
year.

Annual communication of the education about laws and regulations related to the “Insider Trading

Prevention Management Operations” in 2023:

(1) The Company engaged in the communication of education about legal compliance, prevention
of insider trading promotion and non-arm’s length transaction cases to the directors and managers
on July 14, 2023, August 10, 2023, August 3, 2023, October 19, 2023, November 14, 2023, and
December 4, 2023.

(2) The Company engaged in the communication of education on the scope of material internal
information and non-disclosure requirements to the employees on December 3, 2023, in order to
improve the colleagues’ awareness toward compliance with the laws and regulations governing
insider trading.

2. Identification of and communication with stakeholders, and their contact information

(1) Identification of and communication with stakeholders

Counterpart Communication method Key concerns
Employees | a. Symposium between the President and v'Occupational health
employees, worker welfare committee meetings, and safety

intra-department communication meetings, labor-
management meetings, and mobilization
meetings.

Employee complaint mailbox, whistleblowing
mailbox for corruption or violation of the code of
professional ethics, confidential complaint
system, and the website of FINEMAT APPLIED
MATERIALS CO., LTD.

Employees’ satisfaction survey on welfare
policies

v'HR recruitment and
retention

v'Labor-management
relationship

v'HR training

v'Employee welfare and
privacy

Customers

Periodic communication and discussion meeting

v’ Customer service
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b. Response to questionnaire v'Legal compliance
c. On-site audit and discussion v'Product management
d. Customer complaint system v'Quality management
e. Customer satisfaction control v'Fair trade
Investors a. Annual general meeting v'Legal compliance
b. Annual report v'Business performance
c. Conference or phone meeting with institutional v'Dividend policy
investors v'Business policy
d. MOPS v'Corporate governance
e. Investor Relations on the Company’s official
website
Suppliers a. Review report or meeting v'Legal compliance
b. Explanation about HSE & corporate social v'Supplier management
responsibility management v'Fair trade
c. Questionnaire and audit & interview v'Green procurement
d. Cooperative projects on HSE & corporate social v'Occupational health
responsibility management with suppliers and safety
Government | a. Participate in the operation of functional v'Energy and water
agency organizations of the science park bureaus resource consumption
b. Participate in hearings for laws & regulations, v Air pollution and gas
workshops or policy announcement meetings emission
organized by the competent authority v'Use of chemicals
v'Occupational health
and safety

(2) Stakeholders’ contact information

a. Customers

Contact Person: Vice Director Lin Po-Yuan, Operation Division
Tel: (06)60106388, Ext. 1202
Fax: (06)38402599

Email: stevenhsu@fine-mat.com

b. Suppliers

Contact person: Materials Department Hung Kai-Chen, Section Manager
Tel: (06)60106388, Ext. 1508
Fax: (06)38402599

Email: angelhung @fine-mat.com

c. Employees

Contact person: Human Resources Department Ching-Hui Chen - Vice Section Manager

Tel: (06)60106388, Ext. 1503
Fax: (06)38402599

Email: sammychen @fine-mat.com

d. Contact information for whistleblowing against corruption and violation of the code of

professional ethics

Contact person: Audit Office

Tel: (06)60106388, Ext. 1304
Fax: (06)38402599

Email: samuel @fine-mat.com
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(XI) Status of Internal Control System

1. Declaration of internal control system:

FineMat Applied Materials Co., Ltd.

Statement of the Internal Control System
Date: March 14, 2024

The Company's internal control system for 2023 as per the results of our self-assessment is hereby declared
as follows:

L

IL

I1I.

Iv.

VL

VIL

The Company is clearly aware that the establishment, implementation, and maintenance of an internal
control system are the responsibility of the Company's Board of Directors and managers, and the
Company has established such a system. It aims to provide reasonable assurance for the achievement
of the objectives, namely the effectiveness and efficiency of operations (including profitability,
performance, and asset security protection), the reliability, timeliness, and transparency of financial
reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Some limitations are inherent in all internal control systems. No matter how perfect the design is, an
effective internal control system can only provide a reasonable assurance regarding the achievement
of the above three intended objectives; moreover, due to changes in the environment and
circumstances, the effectiveness of the internal control system may change accordingly. However, the
Company's internal control system is equipped with a self-monitoring mechanism. Once a defect is
identified, the Company will take action to rectify it.

The Company judges whether the design and implementation of the internal control system is effective
based on the criteria for judging the effectiveness of the internal control system set out in the
Regulations Governing Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public Companies (hereinafter
referred to as the "Regulations"). Said criteria under the Regulations are divided into five constituent
elements as per the management and control process: 1. control environment, 2. risk assessment, 3.
control activities, 4. information and communication, and 5. monitoring activities. Each constituent
element includes several items. For said items, please refer to the Regulations.

The Company has adopted the aforesaid judgment criteria for the internal control system to determine
whether the design and implementation of the internal control system are effective.

Based on the results of the assessment in the preceding paragraph, the Company is of the opinion that,
as of December 31, 2023, the internal control system (including the supervision and management of
its subsidiaries), including the understanding the effectiveness of operations and the extent to which
efficiency targets are achieved, reliable, timely, and transparent reporting, and compliance with
applicable rules and applicable laws and regulations, is effective and can reasonably assure the
achievement of the foregoing objectives.

This statement will form the main content of the Company's annual report and prospectus and will be
made public. If the disclosed content above is false or there is material information concealed
deliberately or otherwise, the Company will be legally liable pursuant to Articles 20, 32, 171, and 174
of the Securities and Exchange Act.

This statement has been approved by the Company's Board of Directors on March 14, 2024. Among
the nine directors present, none of them expressed objections. All the others agreed with the content of
this statement. Therefore, this statement is hereby declared.

FineMat Applied Materials Co., Ltd.
Chairman: Chao Ching-Hsiao Signature and seal

President: Li Wei-Cheng Signature and seal
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2. Audit report on internal control system: None

(XII) Punishments received by the Company and its internal personnel pursuant to laws and punitive actions
issued by the Company against its internal employees in violation of the internal control system provisions

from the most recent year until the date of publication of the annual report, that may significantly impact

shareholders' equity or security price, and major deficiency and correction status: None.

(XIII) Important resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting and Board of Directors meeting from the most recent

year until the date of publication of the annual report:

1. Important resolutions of the annual general meetings

Date Important resolution Implementation
1. Ratification of the 2022 The motion was approved as proposed, after
business report and financial 98.34% votes were cast in favor of the motion.
statements.
2. Ratification of the 2022 The Board of Directors resolved on March 15, 2023
2023.06.13 earnings distribution plan to approve that no earnings should be distributed,
and announced the resolution on the MOPS on the
same day. The motion was approved as proposed,
after 98.11% votes were cast in favor of the motion
at the annual general meeting.
2. Important resolutions of the Board of Directors meetings
Date Important resolution
2023.01.17 | 1. The Company's business plan for 2023.
2. Evaluation report on independence and competence of the Company’s external
auditors, and appointment of external auditors.
3. Amendments to the Company’s “Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles”.
4. Amendments to the Procedures for Handling Material Inside Information.
2023.03.15 | 1. The 2022 employee remuneration and directors’ remuneration distribution proposal.
2. The 2022 financial statements and business report.
3. 2022 earnings distribution proposal.
4. The 2022 statement of the internal control system.
5. Proposal for making endorsements/guarantees for the subsidiary, Htc&Solartech
Service (Samoa) Corporation.
6. Appointment of the Company’s Chief Corporate Governance Officer.
7. Date, venue and agenda of 2023 annual general meeting.
2023.05.03 | 1. 2022 earnings distribution change.
2. The Company’s 2023 Q1 financial statements.
2023.06.30 | 1. Proposal for loaning of funds to the subsidiary, Etch Home Technology Co., Ltd.
2. Proposal for making endorsements/guarantees for subsidiaries.
3. Loaning of funds of the subsidiary, Solar Applied Materials Technology (Shanghai)
CO., LTD.
2023.07.28 | 1. Disposal of the equity of the reinvestment company, Huangshi Quanyang
Photoelectric Technology Co., Ltd.
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2023.08.09

The Company's 2023 Q2 financial statements.
Appointment of the Chief Operating Officer.
Disposal of equipment of subsidiary FineMat (HuangShi) Applied Materials Co., Ltd.

2023.11.07

S o el Pl e

%

The Company's 2023 Q3 financial statements.

Approval of the 2024 annual audit plan.

Amendments to the Company’s “Internal Control System”.

Formulation of Risk Management Regulations.

Establishment and appointment of the Risk Management Committee.

Establishment of the "Rules Governing Operations in relation to Finance and Business
between Affiliated Parties".

Transfer of the Company’s Chief Accounting Officer.

. Proposal for making endorsements/guarantees for subsidiaries.

9. Proposal for loaning funds to the indirect subsidiary in Vietnam, VN ETCH HOME

10.

TECHNOLOGY.
Amendment to loaning of funds of the subsidiary, Solar Applied Materials
Technology (Shanghai) CO., LTD.

2024.01.17

1. The Company's business plan for 2024.

Evaluation report on independence and competence of the Company’s external
auditors, and appointment of external auditors.

Amendments to the “Division of Duties and Powers Table”.

Proposal for making endorsements/guarantees for subsidiaries

Termination of the non-competition restrictions imposed on the Company’s managers.

2024.03.14

AN S el IR

The 2023 employee remuneration and directors’ remuneration distribution proposal
The 2023 financial statements and business report.

2023 earnings distribution proposal.

The 2023 statement of the internal control system.

Proposal for making endorsements/guarantees for subsidiaries

Amendment to loaning of funds of the subsidiary, Solar Applied Materials
Technology (Shanghai) CO., LTD.

7. Full re-election of the Company's directors.

8. The nomination period, number of seats to be elected, and location for acceptance and

10.

handling the nomination of candidates for directors (including independent directors).
Discussion on the nomination of candidates for directors (including independent
directors).

Termination of the non-competition restrictions imposed on the directors of the

Company and their representatives.

. Date, venue and agenda of 2024 annual general meeting.

2024.05.08

1. The Company’s 2024 Q1 financial statements.

Proposal to provide capital loans and matters for the reinvested company.

The company plans to participate in the cash capital increase of its subsidiary ETCH
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HOME TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

4. Subsidiary Solar Applied Materials Technology (Shanghai) CO., LTD.’s capital loan
case to others.

5. Change of registered capital of the reinvested company Solar Applied Materials
Technology (Shanghai) CO., LTD..

6. Promotion and salary adjustment case for deputy general manager.

(XIV) The main contents of important resolutions of the Board passed but with directors or supervisors voicing
opposing opinions on the record or in writing during the most recent year and up to the date of publication
of the annual report: None.

(XV) A summary of resignations and dismissals, during the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal
year up to the date of publication of the annual report, of the company's chairperson, general manager,
chief accounting officer, chief financial officer, chief internal auditor, chief corporate governance officer,
and chief research and development officer:

Resignation and dismissal of relevant personnel of the Company

May 13, 2024
Title Name Inauguration Date of Reasons for resignation or
date resignation dismissal
R&D Supervisor |Li Chung-Jen  |2018.08.14. 2023.09.11. Retirement
Accounting Tsai Yu-Chen  [2022.05.04. 2023.11.07. Resignation
Manager

V. Disclosure of external auditors' fees:
(D  Disclosure of external auditors' fees

Disclosure of external auditors' fees:

Unit: NTD thousand
CPA firmname | CPA’sname | Audit period | Audit fees Non-audit fees Total | Remark
Lin Yong-Chi | 2023.01.01~
Yeh Fan-Ting | 2023.12.31. | 780 1,521 3,301

Note: Non-audit fees mainly include translation of financial reports in English, taxation, business registration, and professional
consultation.

PwC Taiwan

(I) If a change of CPA firm results in a lower audit fee for that year compared to the previous year, please

disclose the amount of audit fees before and after the change, and causes thereof: N/A.

(II) If the audit fee was reduced by more than 10% from the previous year: please disclose the reduction in the

audit fees, and percentages and causes thereof: N/A.
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VI. Information about replacement of CPAs:
(I) About the former CPAs

Date of replacement Replaced as of 2023 Q1 upon approval of the Board of Directors on January
17,2023

In response to the adjustment of the internal administrative organization of
PwC Taiwan. The external auditors responsible for certifying the Company’s

Cause of replacement financial statements have been changed from Lin Tzu-Yu, CPA and Lin

and remark Yong-Chi, CPA into Lin Yong-Chi, CPA and Yeh Fan-Ting, CPA as of
2023 Q.
To specify whether the Parties involved .
. CPA Client

client or CPA Status
terminates or rejects the — -
appointment Voluntary termination of the appointment Not anolicable

pp No longer accept (continue) the appointment PP )

Issuance of the audit
report other than the
audit report containing
unqualified opinions in
the most recent two
years, and cause thereof

None

Accounting principles or practices
Disclosure of financial report
Disagree with the Yes Scope or steps of audit
. Others
issuer?
None. \
Explanation
Other disclosures
(To be disclosed under
the subparagraphs None
6.1(4) ~ (7) of Article
10 of the Regulations.)

(II) About the succeeding CPAs

Name of Firm PwC Taiwan
CPA’s name Yeh Fan-Ting
Date of appointment Replaced as 0f 2023 Q1 upon approval of the Board

of Directors on January 17, 2023

Consultation about the accounting treatment of
or application of accounting principles to a
specific transaction or the type of audit opinion Not applicable.
that might be rendered prior to the formal
engagement, and the consultation result.

Written opinion from the succeeding CPA
regarding the matters disagreed by the former Not applicable.
CPA
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(IIT) The former CPA’s response to the items referred to in Subparagraphs 6 (1) and (2) 3 of Article 10 of the
Regulations: N/A.

VII. Where the Company's Chairman, President, or any managerial officer in charge of finance
or accounting matters has in the most recent year held a position at the firm of its external
auditor or at an affiliated company of such firm, the name and position of the person, and
the period during which the position was held, shall be disclosed. The term "affiliated
company of the CPA’s firm” means one in which the CPAs at the firm of the external
auditors hold more than 50 percent of the shares, or of which such CPAs hold more than
half of the directorships, or a company or institution listed as an affiliated company in the
external publications or printed materials of the firm of the external auditors: None.

VIII. Any transfer of equity and changes in the pledge of equity by a director, supervisor, or
shareholder with a stake of more than 10 percent from the most recent year until the date
of publication of the annual report

(I)  Changes in the equity of directors, independent directors, managers and major shareholders

2023 2024 as of May 13

Title Name Increase Increase Increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease) | (decrease) | (decrease)
in shares in shares in shares in shares
held pledged held pledged
Chairman/Major | Chao Chin-Hsiao — — — —
shareholder
Director/Major Representative of Yi Long — — — —
Shareholder Investment Co., Ltd: Liu Dai-Min
Director/Major Representative of Wistron — — — —
Shareholder Corporation: Chiu Kao-Ling
Director Representative of Sheng Tai Co., — — — —
Ltd.: Ni Hui-Min

Director/President | Li Wei-Cheng — — — —
Independent Chen Cheng-Li — — — —
director
Independent Chou Hui-Yu — — — —
director
Independent Tseng Chung-Nan — — — —
director
Independent Anita Chu — — — —
director
Executive Vice Li Chung-Jen (Note 1) — — — —
President
Vice President Li Fan-Chun — — — —
Chief Operating Yi-Fan Wang (Note 2) — — — —
Officer
Accounting Tsai Yu-Chen — — — —
officer (Note 3)
Accounting Tsai Hsiu-Chen
officer (Note 3)
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Note 1: Executive Vice President Li Chung-Jen retired on September 11, 2023; therefore, the change in shareholding is disclosed
up to September 11, 2023.

Note 2: CSO Wang Yi-Fan was inaugurated on August 9, 2023. The change in shareholding is disclosed on August 9, 2023.

Note 3: Assistant Accounting Manager Tsai Yu-Chen stepped down on November 7, 2023; therefore, the change in shareholding is
disclosed up to November 7, 2023. Manager Tsai Hsiu-Chen took over as the accounting officer on November 7, 2023, and
the change in shareholding is disclosed on November 7, 2023.

(IT)  Whether the counterpart of transfer of shares by any director, supervisor, manager or major shareholder

of the Company in the most recent year is a related party: None.

(III) Whether the counterpart of pledge of shares by any director, supervisor, manager or major shareholder

of the Company in the most recent year is a related party: None.
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X. Number of shares held by the Company, and the Company's directors, supervisors and managers,
and the entities directly or indirectly controlled by the Company in a single investee, and
consolidated shareholding percentage of the above categories

December 31, 2023; Unit: Shares; %

Investment by directors,
Investment by the SUPCTVISOTS, Managers and Comprehensive
Company (Note 1) . enterprlses con.tro!led investment
Investee either directly or indirectly
by the Company
Number of Shareholding Number Shareholding Number of Shareholding
shares of shares shares

Sense Pad TECH CO.,
LTD 7,580,000 100.00 0 0.00 | 7,580,000 100.00
Htc&Solartech
Service (Samoa) 8,575,900 73.73 0 0.00 | 8,575,900 73.73
Corporation
Wave Power 12,736,987 37.35 | 3,697,423 10.84 | 16,434,410 48.19
Technology Inc.
Etch Home
Technology Co., Ltd. 4,268,000 90.81 0 0.00 | 4,268,000 90.81
(Note 4)
GalloptechInternation
Company Limited 0 0.00 | 1,934,400 49.00 | 1,934,400 49.00
Etch Home
Technology Co., Ltd. 0 0.00 | 4,680,000 100.00 | 4,680,000 100.00
(Vietnam)
Finemat (Shanghai)
Applied Materials 0 0.00 | Note 2 100.00 Note 2 100.00
Co., Ltd.
Solar Applied
Materials Technology 0 0.00 | Note 2 73.73 Note 2 73.73
(Shanghai) CO., LTD.
FineMat (HuangShi)
Applied Materials 0 0.00 | Note 2 73.73 Note 2 73.73
Co., Ltd.
Huangshi Quanyang
Iéléiﬁ?ﬂﬁfgy‘cco - 0 0.00 | Note?2 0.00 | Note2 0.00
(Note 3)

Note 1: The Company’s investment under equity method.

Note 2: N/A, as the company is a limited company.

Note 3: The equity of Huangshi Quanyang Photoelectric Technology Co., Ltd. held by Solar Applied Materials Technology (Shanghai)
CO., LTD. has been sold to Huan Cai Xing Technology (Ningbo) Co., Ltd. on August 4, 2023.

Note 4: The Company has acquired 100% equity of Etch Home Technology Co., Ltd. on January 17, 2024.
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Four. Information on Capital Raising
I. Capital and Shares
(D Source of capital
Unit: Thousand Shares; NTD thousand

Authorized capital Paid-in capital Remarks

Issue Capital

price | Number of amount Number of amount Source of share capital increased by
(NTD) shares shares p assets other
than cash

Year/

Month Others

2007/05 | 10 1,000 10,000 1,000| 10,000/ Mitial capital at the time of — Note 1
incorporation

Capital increase in cash by
2007/08 10 50,000 500,000 31,000] 310,000 NT$300.000 thousand — Note 2

Capital increase in cash by
2007/12 10 50,000 500,000 39,823| 398,230 NT$88.230 thousand — Note 3

Capital increase in cash by
2008/04 24 80,000 800,000 65,823 658,230 NT$260.000 thousand — Note 4

Capital increase by
2009/11| 10 80,000 800,000 66,731  667.310 z’l‘)fico‘g;“g employee stock — Note 5

NT$9,080 thousand

Capital increase by

2010/02 | 10 80,000 800,0000 66,753 667,530 g’;fico‘g;ng employee stock — Note 6

NT$220 thousand

Capital increase by
2010/07 | 10 80,000 800000 68,509 685,090 N $17.360 thousand by — Note 7
executing employee stock

options

Capital reduction to make up
2016/09 10 80,000 800,000 49,344| 493,437 |losses — Note 8
(NT$191,652) thousand

Capital increase by
2018/04 | 10.36 80,000 800000 53344 533,438 N1$40,000 thousand by — Note 9
executing employee stock

options

Capital increase in cash by —

NT$40,000 thousand Note 10

2018/05 15 80,000 800,000 57,344 573,438

Capital increase by
2018/07 | 12 80,000 800000 60344 603,438/ 1$30.000 thousand by — Note 11
executing employee stock

options

2018/02 - 100,000 1,000,000 60,344| 603,438 — Note 12

Capital increase in cash by —

NT$60,460 thousand Note 13

2019/12 68 100,000 1,000,000 66,390 663,898

Note 1: Jin-Shou-Shang-Zi No. 09632174130 dated May 25, 2007

Note 2: Jin-Shou-Shang-Zi No. 09632636940 dated August 21, 2007
Note 3: Jin-Shou-Shang-Zi No. 09633310660 dated December 24, 2007
Note 4: Jin-Shou-Shang-Zi No. 09701090020 dated April 16, 2008
Note 5: Jin-Shou-Shang-Zi No. 09801270100 dated November 20, 2009
Note 6: Jin-Shou-Shang-Zi No. 09901025990 dated February 5, 2010
Note 7: Jin-Shou-Shang-Zi No. 09901172340 dated July 30, 2010

-61-



Note 8: Jin-Shou-Shang-Zi No. 10501221550 dated September 8, 2016
Note 9: Jin-Shou-Shang-Zi No. 10701052100 dated May 15, 2018

Note 10: Jin-Shou-Shang-Zi No. 10701061080 dated June 13, 2018
Note 11: Jin-Shou-Shang-Zi No. 10701082510 dated July 20, 2018

Note 12: Jin-Shou-Shang-Zi No. 10801007770 dated February 27, 2019
Note 13: Jin-Shou-Shang-Zi No. 10801181000 dated December 24, 2019

Authorized capital

Type of share | Number of shares | Number of shares Remarks
. . Total
issued unissued
Common shares 66,389,753 33,610,247 100,000,000 TWSE-listed stocks

Information relevant to the shelf registration system: N/A.

(IT) Shareholders’ structure

April 21, 2024; unit: persons; shares; %

Shareholder Other Foreign
structure| Government | Financial o . institutions | Treasury
. o juristic Individuals Total
agencies |institutions ersons and stock

Number P foreigners

Number of person 0 2 176 23,456 33 1 23,668
Number of shares held 0 24,000 17,152,664 47,782,510 828,579 602,000 (66,389,753

Shareholding 0 0.04 25.84 71.97 1.25 0.90 100.00

(IIT) Distribution of equity

Type of share: Common shares, at par value NT$10 per share
April 21, 2024; Unit: person; share; %

. Number of Number of shares .
Shareholding range shareholders held Shareholding

1~999 17,906 313,130 0.47
1,000~5,000 4,648 8,782,571 13.23
5,001~10,000 511 4,017,347 6.05
10,001~15,000 168 2,163,804 3.26
15,001~20,000 125 2,341,357 3.53
20,001~30,000 91 2,365,563 3.56
30,001~40,000 60 2,154,661 3.25
40,001~50,000 34 1,577,674 2.38
50,001~100,000 59 4,160,480 6.27
100,001~200,000 37 5,180,751 7.80
200,001~400,000 15 4,297,338 6.47
400,001~600,000 3 1,461,573 2.20
600,001~800,000 3 1,918,787 2.89
800,001~1,000,000 1 811,545 1.22
More than NT$1,000,001 7 24,843,172 37.42

Total 23,668 66,389,753 100.00

Note: No preferred stock is issued by the Company.
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(IV) List of major shareholders

Names of shareholders with a stake of 5 percent or greater, or in the first ten places, and number of

shares and shareholding

April 21, 2024; Unit: Shares; %

Name of Major Shareholder Shares held Shareholding

Yi Long Investment Co., Ltd. 8,900,373 13.41
Chao Chin-Hsiao 6,396,814 9.64
Wistron Corporation 4,589,258 6.91
Fan Wen-Hsing 1,463,000 2.20
Li Chung-Jen 1,292,153 1.95
Zong Long Investment Co., Ltd. 1,149,238 1.73
Li Wei-Cheng 1,052,336 1.59
Ni Hui-Min 811,545 1.22
Rong Feng Industrial Co., Ltd. 679,000 1.02
Li Fan-Chun 637,787 0.96

(V) Information on market value, net worth, earnings and others during the most recent two years
Unit: Thousand Shares; NTD thousand

As of March 31,
Item 2022 2023 2024
Market price per Highest 63.00 44.25 41.25
share Lowest 26.00 27.65 29.75
Average 35.61 33.01 36.67
Book value per Before distribution 19.35 18.30 18.07
share After distribution 19.35 18.30 18.07
Weighted average shares 66,390.00 66,390.00 66,390.00
. Earnings (losses) per share
Earnings (losses) (beforegreirospegtfve adjustment) (0.55) (1.30) (0.29)
per share -
Earnings (losses) per share (after (0.55) (1.30) (0.29)
retrospective adjustment) ) ' )
Cash dividend 0.00 0.00 -
Dividend per Stock - - - -
share dividend - - - -
Cumulative unpaid dividends - - -
Return on Price-to-earnings ratio (64.75) (25.39) -
investment Price-to-dividend ratio Note 1 Note 1 -
Cash dividend yield (%) Note 1 Note 1 -

Note 1: No dividend was distributed in 2022 and 2023.

(VI) Dividend policy and implementation
1. Dividend policy:

According to Article 17 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation, if the Company has a profit
in the annual final account, it shall first pay tax and make up for past losses, followed by the
appropriation of 10% legal reserve. If the legal reserve amounts to the Company's paid-in capital, the
appropriation may be omitted; the remaining amount is for setting aside or reversing the special
reserve according to laws and regulations, together with the accumulated undistributed earnings, the
Board of Directors shall propose an earnings distribution proposal. These shall be distributed after
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the board resolution.
The Company's policy of dividend distribution shall be subject to the Company's current and

future investment environment, capital needs, domestic and international competition, resource
budget and so on factors, considering the shareholders’ interests and taking a balance on the dividends
and the company’s long-term finance planning. The Board of Directors drafts an appropriation
proposal each year in accordance with the law, and executes it as resolved. The Company is currently
in the stage of transformation, and has plans to expand production lines and capital needs in the next
few years.

Moreover, aiming to improve the Company's capital structure and maintain a good capital
adequacy ratio, the balanced dividend policy will be adopted, and the earnings shall be distributed in
accordance with the provisions of the preceding paragraph. The shareholders' bonuses for the year
can be distributed in the form of cash or shares. When there are earnings from the final settlement of
the fiscal year, the distribution of the shareholders profit-sharing dividends is between 10% to 80%
of the distributable earnings for the year, of which the percentage of cash dividends shall not be less
than 10%.

2. Execution:

The Company’s Board of Directors resolved on March 14, 2024 that the Company should not
distribute the earnings in 2023.

3. Expected significant changes in the dividend policy: None.

(VII) The effects of stock bonus proposed at this shareholders’ meeting on business performance and earnings
per share: N/A.

(VIII) Remuneration to employees, directors and supervisors
1. The percentages or ranges with respect to remuneration to employees, directors and supervisors, as set
forth in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation:

According to Article 14 of the Articles of Incorporation, remuneration must be paid to all
directors for their performance of their job duties, irrelevant with profit or loss retained by the
Company. The Board of Directors is authorized to decide the remuneration subject to the level and
value of the Company’s engagement in and contribution to the Company’s operation, at the rate
generally adopted by the peers in the same industry. Meanwhile, Article 16-1 thereof also provides
that 8%~15% of the earnings for the current year concluded by the Company shall be distributed as
the employee remuneration, and no more than 5% thereof as the director remuneration, provided that
the earnings must first be taken to offset against cumulative losses, if any. The director remuneration
may be paid in cash. The employee remuneration may be paid, in cash or stock, to employees of
affiliated companies that satisfy certain criteria.

The earnings for the current year referred to in the preceding paragraph refer to the income before

the income before tax earned for the current year less the employee remuneration and director
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remuneration.

The distribution of remuneration to employees and directors shall be decided per the resolution
adopted by a majority of the directors present at a meeting of the Board of Directors attended by more
than two-thirds of the whole directors, and reported to a shareholders’ meeting.

The basis for estimating the amount of employee remuneration and director remuneration, for
calculating the number of shares to be distributed as the stock dividends, and the accounting treatment
of the discrepancy, if any, between the actual distributed amount and the estimated figure, for the

current period: No difference.

. Distribution of remuneration approved by the Board of Directors:

(1) The Company’s Board of Directors already resolved on March 14, 2024 that no remuneration should
be distributed to directors and employees. The amount to be distributed per the resolution had no
difference from that estimated in 2023.

(2) The amount of any employee remuneration distributed in stocks, and the size of that amount as a
percentage of the sum of the net income stated in the parent company only financial reports or
individual financial reports for the current period and total employee remuneration: N/A, as the
Company didn’t distribute employee remuneration in stocks this year.

4. The actual distribution of employee and director remuneration for the previous fiscal year (with an

indication of the number of shares, monetary amount, and stock price, of the shares distributed), and,
if there is any discrepancy between the actual distribution and the recognized employee or director
remuneration, additionally the discrepancy, cause, and how it is treated.

The Company’s Board of Directors already resolved on March 15, 2023 that no remuneration should
be distributed to directors and employees. The amount to be distributed per the resolution had no
difference to that estimated in 2022.

(IX) Repurchase of the Company’s shares:

1.

Repurchase of the Company’s shares (already executed):

Session of repurchase

First repurchase in 2021

Purpose of repurchase

Transfer shares to employees

Date of resolution of the Board of Directors

November 5, 2021

Repurchase period

November 8, 2021 to January 4, 2022

Range of repurchase price

NT$27.34 to NT$57.70 per share

Type and quantity of shares repurchased

602,000 shares of common stock

Amount of shares repurchased

NTS$24,221,164

The number of the shares repurchased as a percentage

percentage of the Company’s total issued shares

60.20%
of the number scheduled to be repurchased
Number of shares cancelled and transferred 0 share
Cumulative number of the Company’s shares held 602,000 shares
Cumulative number of the Company’s shares held as a 0.91%

2. Repurchase of the Company’s shares (pending): None.
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II. Information about corporate bonds: None.
III. Information about preferred shares: None.
IV. Issuance of overseas depository receipts: None.

V. Information about employee stock warrants
(I) Status of the Company’s employee stock warrants which have not yet been expired: None.
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Five. Overview of Operation
I. Business activities

@

1.

Scope of Business
The Company primarily engages in the following business activities:

The Group primarily engages in the business activities, such as Electronics Components
Manufacturing, Wholesale of Electronic Materials, Communication Mechanical Equipment
Manufacturing and Instrument Manufacturing. The primary business lines include production and sale
of the high-precision metal masks for key processes of new-generation AMOLED displays, production
and sale of Vapor Chamber, production of precision cleaning and regeneration, biomedical equipment
and consumable materials and contact lens printing stencil masks, and design and development of
high-power microwave/millimeter wave meters, radar microwave emission source production, high-
temperature resistant electronic products, and manufacturing and maintenance of semiconductor
equipment components. The Group’s market applications cover semiconductor, solar energy, vacuum
equipment, heat dissipation and national defense industry, etc..

The Company’s business activities registered with the Ministry of Economic Affairs are stated as
following:

I.  CCO01080 Electronics Components Manufacturing

II. CCO01110 Computer and Peripheral Equipment Manufacturing
II. CCO01120 Data Storage Media Manufacturing and Duplicating
IV. F119010 Wholesale of Electronic Materials

V. CAO01050 Steel Secondary Processing
VI. CA02990 Other Metal Products Manufacturing

VIL

CB01010 Mechanical Equipment Manufacturing

VIIL.ZZ99999 All business items that are not prohibited or restricted by law, except those that are

subject to special approval.

2. Business ratio

Unit: NTD thousand; %

Item 2022 - - 2023 ; -
Sales value | Business ratio | Sales value | Business ratio
Metal mask 547,580 43,78 490,470 43.74
Precision cleaning and regeneration 125,580 10.04 90,578 8.08
Microwave and semiconductor 437,189 34.96 411,448 36.70
components
Optical bonding materials 10,475 0.84 0 0.00
Thermal Module 123,909 991 117,051 10.44
Others 5,895 0.47 11,682 1.04
Total 1,250,628 100.00 1,121,229 100.00

3. The Company’s current main products (services)

(1) High-precision metal masks for displays exclusively

(2) Thermal Module materials
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4.

D

1.
(1) Metal mask

(3) Precision cleaning service

(4) Various precision itching products
(5) Vacuum microwave tube

(6) Vacuum feedthrough components
(7) Optical adhesive

New products (services) planned to be developed

(1) Development of new generation thermal components

Overview of industry

Current status and development of the industry

The Company is primarily engaged in metal precision etching. At present, the main products are
precision metal masks required for the AMOLED panel vapor deposition process. In recent years, the
trend for mobile phones equipped with OLED panels has become apparent increasingly. The high-
end mobile phones continued to be equipped with OLED panels. Meanwhile, giving the declining
costs, the OLED panels have also extended to the mid-end mobiles.  Given the increasingly
matured OLED technology, the OLED panel commercialization trend has been emerging and the
market scale kept growing. According to CINNO Research statistics, the global AMOLED
smartphone panel shipments in 2023 will be about 690 million pieces, a year-on-year growth of 16.1%,
of which the shipments in the fourth quarter increased by 30.9% year-on-year and increased by 35.1%
month-on-month. Among them, flexible AMOLED smart phone panels accounted for 77.8%, an
increase of 9.2 percentage points year-on-year. According to the survey data of Sigmaintell, the
shipment of OLED panels in mainland China will be about 290 million pieces in 2023, with a year-
on-year growth of about 71.7%, accounting for 43.3% of the global market share, with an increase of
about 14 percentage points.

¥2014-¥2023 Worldwide smartphone panel shipments {Mil.%:)

2114 25 0%

1906 1954

1938
2000 7, 20.0% 1867 1912
18 1784 18.1%
15.0%
1503 3
1500 10.7%
72
S0
1000 -2.1% _
.55 B 4 55 5.0%
S00 -15.0%
a 25.0%

Y2014 Y2015 Y2016 Y2017 Y2018 Y2019 Y2020 Y2021 Y2022 Y2023

— Shiprmentmil]  =——Y0Y(%)

Source: Sigmaintell mobile phone panel shipment report in Dec.23
* Open cell base

Source of the chart: Sigmaintell
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As the market penetration of OLED mobile phones expands, IT will be the next key battlefield
for OLED. After 2025, the development and introduction of new technologies will break the size
limitations of FMM and evaporator, coupled with the commercialization of high-life materials, and
the successful mass production of high-generation production lines, which will help increase the
market penetration rate of various OLED applications. According to Omdia, the sales amount of
OLED materials market is expected to reach US$2.6 billion by 2024; it is expected to reach US$2.9
billion in 2025.
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
mEE for WOLED/QD OLED 269 398 567 680 712 765 841
s for EMM OLED 821 897 1,119 1514 1,715 1,905 2,089
e OLED material total 1,001 1,295 1,686 2195 .. 2M6. _ 267 |20

20 e o a8 =]
1 2022 Omdia
Source of chart: omdia

(2) Heat dissipation materials

Thermal module materials refer to another main product developed by the Company. The
average heat generated by a 4G mobile phone ranges from 4W to 5W, which may be solved by
addition of graphite sheet to the casing of the phone. The chip processing of 5G mobile phones will
be increased by five times the current level and, therefore, the power consumption will be increased
by 2.5 times the current level. That is, as the power consumption of a 5G mobile phone attains
10~15W, the heat generated by it will be doubled. Therefore, it is expected that the probability for
application of heat pipes and heat plates will increase, thus benefiting the development of mobile
thermal materials. Further, in response to the increasingly powerful computing power of high-
performance computing (HPC) chips, the "thermal” capability of packaging substrates has been
valued increasingly. The demand for products with heat management and control functions has been
growing in the semiconductor market. Therefore, the thermal materials market outlook is promising.
The industry is conducting research on various methodologies, and the rapid heat dissipation with
thermal materials also catches the public eyes. The rise in data center PUE is expected to drive the
growth of the heat dissipation industry. This trend will be accelerated by the wider adoption of Al
servers. What deserves attention is the strong demand for heat dissipation in Al servers. The strong
demand in the heat dissipation industry for Al servers is regarded as an important driving force for
the heat sink market in 2024. The expansion of application fields of Al technology and high-
performance computing will result in a corresponding increase in the demand for heat sinks, which
may promote the development of the heat sink market. For 3C products, the thermal materials must
be light, thin and short. Therefore, more and more thermal materials are processed by etching
technology. With the precision etching technology, the Company can provide customers with metal
thermal materials in line with the demand for fine processing.

(3) Vacuum microwave tubes and semi-conductor equipment parts and components: Please refer to the
annual report of the Company's subsidiary, Wave Power Technology Inc. (stock code: 6895).
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2. Correlation of the upstream, midstream and downstream segments of the industry:
{Metal Masks)

As one of the Company's main products, it refers to the precision metal mask applied in the key
process of AMOLED panels. Since the AMOLED display uses small molecule organic
electroluminescent materials, it must apply the Thermal Evaporation to evaporate multi-layer organic
film materials. In the production process of full-color panels subject to mass production, in order to
avoid mutual contamination between different materials, multi-chamber vacuum equipment and metal
masks bearing different pictures are needed by the evaporation process of different frequency and color
light-emitting films.

Chart of the relationship among the upstream, midstream and downstream segments in the OLED metal
masks industry

Location of Scope of Business | Explanation

the industry

INVAR alloy plate refers to a nickel-iron alloy, applied to the
INVAR alloy . o L .
Upstream sheet production of fine metals with its characteristics, including low

thermal expansion coefficient, lightweight and flatness.
Primarily by the metal precision etching, the INVAR alloy is made

Midstream OLED metal into a fine metal mask, which may etch the hole position accurately

masks and effectively, and also solve the overheating and bending problems

about the metal mask.

The AMOLED panel production process applies the evaporation
technology and, therefore, needs the fine metal masks, in order to
have the organic materials deposited on specific positions correctly in
the evaporation process.

Downstream OLED panels

{ Thermal materials )

Another main product of the Company refers to the heat dissipation materials, which comprise of
vapor chambers primarily for the time being. Heat dissipating materials refer to materials that can
effectively transfer or dissipate heat from a heat source. These materials usually have good thermal
conductivity, which can quickly conduct heat to the material surface, and then release the heat through
radiation, convection or thermal conductivity. Thermal materials play an important role in many fields,
particularly in electronic products, automobiles, buildings, and industrial devices.

Heat sink is a commonly used heat dissipating material that plays an important role in many
electronic devices and industrial applications. They are usually made of metal materials such as copper,
aluminum or stainless steel, which have high thermal conductivity and good heat dissipation effect, and
are used to disperse heat and increase the surface heat dissipation area. The design of heat dissipation
fins is usually flat, with many protrusions and depressions on the surface, to increase the surface area
and provide more heat dissipation surface. Some heat dissipation fins have a larger heat dissipation
surface that can be directly pasted on the heat dissipation component to improve heat dissipation
efficiency. Heat sinks are usually installed on the surface of components that require heat dissipation,
such as CPUs, GPUs, and power chips. They use their good thermal conductivity to conduct heat from
these electronic components to the surface of the heat sink, and then dissipate heat through the air or
other heat dissipation systems.
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Chart of the relationship among the upstream, midstream and downstream segments in the thermal
materials industry

Location of

Scope of Business | Explanation

the industry
The oxygen-free copper refers to 99.995% pure copper metal,
free from hydrogen embrittlement, and with high electrical and
Oxygen-free o .
thermal conductivity, and also good processing performance
Upstream copper, copper

and welding performance, corrosion resistance and low
temperature performance. Applicable as the metal shells of the
VCs.

alloy, stainless steel

Midstream | Thermal materials | a fine metal sheet, which may be used as the metal shell of the

Primarily by the metal precision etching, the metal is made into

VC or thermal module materials.

Downstream | Thermal Module

A modular unit used for thermal purposes of systems, devices
or equipment.

{Vacuum microwave tubes and semi-conductor equipment parts and components )

Please refer to the annual report of the Company's subsidiary, Wave Power Technology Inc. (stock code:
6895).

3.

Industrial development trend

Given the increasing penetration rate of OLED panels, expansion of applications thereof and
growth of the OLED panel market, the rapid development of the upstream OLED material market is
driven and, therefore, the demand for metal masks is increasing.

As the performance requirements of electronic products and industrial devices continue to
increase, the requirements for heat dissipation performance are also increasing. In the future, heat
sinks will be developed towards more efficient heat dissipation technology, including new heat
dissipation materials, structural design and innovation of heat dissipation system. Heat sinks will have
amore lightweight and integrated design to meet the needs of product lightweight and miniaturization.
This includes the use of lightweight materials, changing the structure and shape of the heat sink, and
integrating the heat sink with other components.

On the Vacuum microwave tubes and semi-conductor equipment parts and components: Please
refer to the annual report of the Company's subsidiary, Wave Power Technology Inc. (stock code:
6895).

Competition

Given the successive release of OLED production capacity, the demand for metal masks needed
by evaporation continues growing. However, the fierce competition from downstream AMOLED
panel manufacturers has also caused the price of the metal mask market to continue to be sluggish.
Furthermore, under the influence of the localization of the supply chain in China, the Company is in
a difficult situation in the metal mask market. Hence, the Company decided to change the business
model of mask and no longer produce and sell complete masks, but to focus on the etching of metal
masks. FineMat prepares to transform into a professional mask sheet etching manufacturer and
collaborate with strategic partners to develop end customers in mainland China.

In the context of the development of ultra-thin and lightweight electronic products, it is a great
challenge to control the thickness of the VC reasonably. The more occupied areas are, the better
thermal effect will be. However, given the demand for lightweight and thin products, the welding
accuracy requirement becomes stricter when the thickness is less than 0.4mm. Therefore, it is more
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difficult to carry out the production. The Company may satisfy the demand for ultra-thin products by
virtue of the high-precision etching technology, in response to the requirement for fineness in the

market.

On the Vacuum microwave tubes and semi-conductor equipment parts and components: Please
refer to the annual report of the Company's subsidiary, Wave Power Technology Inc. (stock code:

6895).

(III) Overview of technology and R&D

1. Overview of technological arrangement in business operations and R&D

The Company takes the precision etching technology as the core technology. Through so many
years, the Company has established the G2.5 to G6H manufacturing technology for metal sharing and
support masks covering the entire OLED panel industry based on its own R&D results. Meanwhile, it
can provide customers with the complete solutions applicable through the whole life cycle of products
from design consultation, mask etching, preparation for frame, meshing and spot welding to cleaning
and regeneration. The Company own the technology and production capacity for the production lines
covering optical mask design and production, sheet-to-sheet and roll-to-roll lamination/ exposure/
development/ etching/ removal/ cleaning, precision measurement, mesh meshing, and laser spot
welding. The Company continues to research and develop innovative process equipment and operating
methods, improve the yield rate and efficiency, and promote products to the application of bio-medical
devices and thermal materials industry. The Company has achieved remarkable results in this regard.

2. Personnel involved in research & development and their educational background and employment history

Unit: Person; %

Item 2022 2023
Number of persons Percentage Number of persons Percentage
PhD/Master 10 15.87 7 18.92
Bachelor 42 66.67 17 45.95
Senior High
11 17.46 13 35.13
School
Total 63 100.00 37 100.00
3. R&D expenses invested each year for the most recent five years
Unit: NTD thousand; %
Item 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
R&D expenses (A) 21,717 32,798 70,471 79,164 80,562
Net operating revenue (B) 854,165 620,635 856,083 1,250,628 1,121,229
To net operating revenue
2.54 5.28 8.23 6.33 7.19
(A)/(B)
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4. Technology or product developed successfully in the most recent five years

Item dT:\fglr(l) (;:(?Zuocrcgzggﬁg Main purpose and function
Impression regulator and Make contact lens printing molds and precision connecting rods of
minimally invasive surgical minimally invasive surgical instruments with the precision itching
instrument connecting rod technology

) G2.5 FMM OLEDO0G?2.5 precision metal mask with etching and meshing

accuracy for £5um.
Manufacturing technology for metal sharing and support masks no

3 G3.5Q CMM/STICK more than OL%EDOGS.SQg}i/n size. y o

Manufacturing technology for metal sharing and support masks no

4 GOHOCMM more than OL%EDOG6H iiysize. ¢ °

Precision (accuracy fort 3um) metal mask etching technology.
5 FMM itching technology The results are applied to the production of shared and supported
(accuracy fort 30um) mask products.
6 87/12” Wafer Mask Precision metal masks applied in the process of OLEDoS.
Using 100~200um-thickness Invar sheet as the substrate, and
) making CVD coating masks for assembly of flexible OLED
For encgpsulatlpn of new panel occupying an area of 1700x1100 mm and with a
generation flexible OLED . . .

7 | panels fhmensmne.ll accuracy for £30um. It also del.lvers the technology
(TFE Mask) Ceramic Insulation | I preparation of mask frame and spot welding and also metal
Coating mask ceramic insulation coating technology, and satisfies the

need of production process CVD Mask for assembly of
G2.5~G6H new generation flexible OLED panel.
A thermal-conductive pad that can be applied to any heat-

8 | Thermal Conductive Pad dissipating mechanism to deliver high-efficiency thermal-

conductive performance.

(IV) Long-term/short-term business development plan

1.
O]

Short-term business plan

Collect sufficient market information to meet customers’ diversified and timely product needs, and

develop new customers for metal etching and heat dissipation materials, and continue to expand the

sales and market share of the existing products.

In the AMOLED metal mask market, the Company transforms into a professional mask sheet etching

manufacturer, cooperates with strategic partners to develop end customers in mainland China, and

expands the Company's mask sheet shipments.

Improve the employees’ education and training, train excellent talents proactively, improve work

efficiency and business management capabilities, perfect the welfare system, unify the staff’s

centripetal force and improve business performance.

2. Long-term development plan

O)

@

Expansion of equipment, production capacity and technology. Expand the business scope of the

Company's etching products and strive to expand the non-AMOLED metal mask market.

With respect to the technological evolution of the ultra-thin VC, the Company improves the

development of thermal performance of the ultra-thin VC, and the structure thereof, and keeps

improving the yield rate by developing and improving the process.

Provide technical consulting service in a timely manner, in order to maintain fair partnership with the
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®

customers in the downstream segment; control the market trend at any time, work with customers in
the product development and launch schedule to improve the Company’s competitiveness.
In response to the enterprise’s expansion needs, make good use of the capital market, and reduce the

capital cost. Maximize the effectiveness of capital utilization to the utmost.

II. Overview of Market and Production & Marketing

(I)  Market analysis

1. Territories where the main products are sold

Unit: NTD thousand; %

Item 2022 2023

Sales value Percentage Sales value Percentage
Domestic sales 617,892 49 .41 529,214 47.20
Export 632,736 50.59 592,015 52.80
Total 1,250,628 100.00 1,121,229 100.00

2. Market share

The Company decided to change the business model of mask from 2024 and no longer produce
and sell complete masks, but to focus on the etching of metal masks. FineMat prepares to transform
into a professional mask sheet etching manufacturer and collaborate with strategic partners to develop
end customers in mainland China. This is because FineMat is no longer a supplier of direct-to-panel
manufacturers, but a manufacturer of metal masks. Therefore, FineMat's customers will spill over
beyond the original customer group, and the overall mask sheet shipments will increase.

In the context of the development of ultra-thin and lightweight electronic products, it is a great
challenge to control the thickness of the VC reasonably. The more occupied areas are, the better thermal
effect will be. However, given the demand for lightweight and thin products, the welding accuracy
requirement becomes stricter when the thickness is less than 0.4mm. Therefore, it is more difficult to
carry out the production. The Company may satisfy the demand for ultra-thin products by virtue of the

high-precision etching technology, in response to the requirement for fineness in the market.

. Future market demand and supply, and market's growth potential

The main applications of AMOLEDs are concentrated in smart phones, VR devices and wearable
devices. Among the other things, the demand for smart phones is the largest, primarily because of the
demand for alternates. That is, the LCD displays may be replaced with the high-end flagship models
at the very beginning, and the demand may keep penetrating downwards. For the time being, AMOLED
panels have become the basic configuration of high-end mobile phones under various brands basically.
Meanwhile, due to the emerging new mobile phone models, such as those equipped with folding
screens and flexible screens, the flexible AMOLED panel market is growing rapidly. Given the
improving production capacity and yield rate of panels, the AMOLED panel cost declines again.
Therefore, it is penetrating into the mid-end and low-end mobile phone markets now. It is expected
that the OLED penetration rate will keep increasing in the fields of smart phones, wearable devices,
tablets, NBs, TVs, and automobiles.

Heat dissipation was originally a mature industry with steady growth. However, with the
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popularization of high-performance electronic products and 5G communications, the expanding
demand for heat dissipation and the continuous evolution of heat dissipation technology have once
again brought growth opportunities to the entire industry. Currently, the Company's main heat
dissipating materials are metal materials for active heat dissipating components, heat sinks for chip
encapsulation, and vapor chamber components for mobile phones. With the growing demand for high-
performance chips and various smart devices that grow with it, the demand for micro heat dissipation

will continue to increase.

Competitive niche
® Professional management team with insight into industry development trends

The Company has a strong R&D team specialized in the technologies for materials, machine,
chemicals and microwave, and focuses on medium and long-term industrial chain development
planning. In response to the huge demand for production capacity in the market, the demand for high-
precision masks and VC components will continue to grow. The Company will continue to improve
the etching technology, optimize the manufacturing process, and improve production efficiency.
Meanwhile, it will also integrate the Group’s resources to provide customers with more comprehensive
and rea-time technical support and services.

@ High technical autonomy raises the entry threshold

In consideration of the concept about partnership with customers, the Company understands its
product specifications and requirements from the customers’ point of view, and discusses the
workmanship of high-specification products with customers based on the niche that the management
team holds the professional technical knowledge, intensifies the cooperative relationship between both
parties, obtains technical specification decisions, and establishes the entry threshold for competitors.
® Product precision and regional advantages

China's OLED industry is still in the stage of rapid growth, and more cooperation between
upstream, midstream and downstream industries is needed to promote the healthy growth of the
industry. Coupled with the unstoppable trend of China's localization policy, the Company, based on its
geographical and cultural advantages, has accelerated its industrial layout and cooperated with various
Chinese manufacturers to provide service for terminal panel manufacturers. It is believed that with the
CMM MASK production technology of FineMat for many years, it will help the partners to become
the most trustworthy partners of the end customers.

In the thermal industry, the Company provides customers with the ultra-thin VC materials with
excellent technical quality based on the outstanding metal etching technology. In the context of the
development of ultra-thin and lightweight electronic products, it is a great challenge to control the
thickness of the VC reasonably. The Company may satisfy the demand for ultra-thin products by virtue

of the high-precision etching technology, in response to the requirement for fineness in the market.
Analysis on positive and negative factors for future development and responsive measures:

® Favorable factors
A. Different from the large-size OLED panel production process, the technical threshold for
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precision metal etching technology is high, and few manufacturers engaged in the high-
precision masks. Small and medium-sized OLED panels must apply the masks for evaporation.
The more precise the opening on the mask is, the higher the panel resolution is. Due to the
bottleneck of production capacity and the competition of technology upgrade, the Company
will focus on high-precision metal etching technology in the short term to produce mask sheets
with the same high-precision specifications, and cooperate with the OLED mask
manufacturers. The specification mask has been successfully certified by customers and
introduced for mass production.

B. High technical threshold for ultra-thin heat dissipation. With the high-precision etching
technology, the Company may complete the 0.25mm product for the time being. The
Company is one of the few manufacturers which may satisfy such precision requirements. Its

future is promising in terms of its product characteristics and development.

@ Negative factors and countermeasures

A. The supply of main raw materials rely on international renowned manufacturers. Due to the
exclusivity of the OLED evaporation process and specifications, the raw materials and supplies
of the current masks are provided by few international renowned manufacturers. Meanwhile,
some high-specification materials (FMM) have been ordered by Japan-based manufacturers
and, therefore, it is impossible for them to supply the same to other suppliers. Therefore, the
entire industrial development is limited.

Countermeasures:

The Company maintains the close cooperative relationship with suppliers, and also establishes
the inventory management mechanism for various materials and supplies, and execute short-,
medium- and long-term supply contracts, if necessary, in order to reduce costs. Insofar as the
product quality remains unaffected, the Company will look for alternative materials proactively,
in order to mitigate the risk over the materials price volatility and shortage of materials.

B. The exported part of the Company's products is mainly denominated in USD, and the main raw
materials are also procured from foreign suppliers. Besides, the net cash positions held by the
Company are mostly denominated in USD, and the foreign exchange rate fluctuations will
impose specific impact to the Company’s profit.

Countermeasures:

The Company expands the accounting and financial department and hires professionals with
experience in investment projects to keep observing and evaluating the changes in the market.
Meanwhile, the Company keeps in touch with bank’s foreign exchange department to verify
the trend and changes of foreign exchange rate at home and abroad, in order to mitigate the

negative impact posed by the changes in foreign exchange rates.
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(I) Important purposes and production processes of main products

1. Important purposes of main products

Product items

Main purpose and function

Metal mask

It is primarily applied to the metal mask used in the OLED panel luminescent
dye pigment thermal evaporation process. Different mask patterns are required
to complete the thermal evaporation process for luminescent films of different
colors.

Precision cleaning and
regeneration

Have the equipment components, such as optoelectronics and semiconductors,
go through the precise cleaning and regeneration processing to make them
meet the quality required by the production process.

VC materials

Primarily by the metal precision etching, the metal is made into a fine metal
sheet, which may be used as the metal shell of the VC or thermal module
materials.

2. Production processes of main products:
[ Metal Mask/Vapor Chamber ]

Metal Lamination ‘ ! :
substrate Exposure Development Baking

Packaging <] Solidworks <j Stretching <:| Etching

Note: There is no "stretching" process applied in the production process of Vapor Chamber.

[ Precision cleaning ]

_— Acid . _ Melting
ismantling cleaning Measuring Sandblasting ‘ spraying
. . Integer
. High-pressure
Packaging <] Inspection <] water washing <] type

3. Supply of main raw materials

Main raw materials Status of supply
INVAR alloy sheet Fair
Oxygen-free copper Fair
Copper alloy Fair
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5. Statement of production volume and value in the most recent two years

Unit: Thousand pcs; NTD thousand

Production 2022 2023
volume and value
Year | production | Production | Production | Production | Production | Production

Main products o capacity volume value capacity volume value

y departmen

Metal mask 149 97 334,088 149 86 349,121
Precision cleapmg 360 92 68,361 360 232 14,114
and regeneration

Microwave and

semiconductor 16 19 251,275 17 13 219,632
components

Optical bonding 10,000 548 5,125 0 0 0
materials

Thermal Module 18,000 12,907 149,684 18,000 14,302 107,033
materials

Total 28,525 13,663 808,533 18,526 14,633 689,900

6. Production volume and value for the most recent two years

Unit: Thousand pcs; NTD thousand

Sales volume 2022 2023

Q vate vear | Domestic sales Export Domestic sales Export

Main products (o8 Volume | Value | Volume Value Volume Value Volume Value
by department)

Metal mask 70 60,760 23 486,820 51 44,795 32 445,675
Precision cleaning - 5139 | - 120,441 | - 1405 | - 89,768
and regeneration

Microwave and

semiconductor 15 422,112 1 15,077 14 389,878 1 21,570
components

Optlcgl bonding 534 10,475 i i i i )
materials

Thermal Module 115 701 | 119406 | 200 4,503 | 7,591 89,445 | 6,810 27,606
materials

Others - - - 5,895 - 3,691 - 7,396
Total 13,400 | 617,892 224 632,736 | 7,656 529,214 | 6,843 592,015

Note: The sales were classified based on the countries where the cutomers resided.
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[I1. The number of employees employed for the most recent two fiscal years, and during the
current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report, their average years

of service, average age, and education levels

March 31, 2024

As of March 31,
Year 2022 2023 2004
Supervisors 70 72 64
Number Indirect 180 105 103
of employees Direct 275 247 220
Total 525 424 387
Average age 35.67 37.08 32.45
Average years of service 3.22 4.09 3.77
Doctoral Degree 2 7 7
Distribution Master 7 25 23
of education College/University 47 201 194
attainment Senior High School 34 185 158
Below Senior High School 10 6 5

IV. Information about environmental protection expenditure

Any losses suffered by the company in the most recent fiscal year and up to the annual report
publication date due to environmental pollution incidents (including any compensation paid and any
violations of environmental protection laws or regulations found in environmental inspection, specifying
the disposition dates, disposition reference numbers, the articles of law violated, and the content of the
dispositions), and disclosing an estimate of possible expenses that could be incurred currently and in the
future and measures being or to be taken. If a reasonable estimate cannot be made, an explanation of the
facts of why it cannot be made shall be provided.

(I)  Losses due to environmental pollution

Date of Reference Violation of laws and | Contents of violation Penalty
punishment | number of the | regulations details
penalty
document
The subsidiary Etch Home Fine of NTD
Taoyuan City Paragraph 1 and Paragraph | Technology Co., Ltd. installed | 320,000 and
2024.01.26 Government 2, Article 24 of the Air and operated regularly without | suspension
T Letter No. Pollution Control Act and | obtaining a permit for the of work
1130022710 Article 63 installation and operation of
permanent pollution sources.

Note: Date of shutdown of Etch Home Technology Co., Ltd.: 1/31 - 2/18 (2/8 - 2/14 is the Chinese New Year period).
The actual shutdown was 8 working days, during which annual in-factory repairs were conducted. No impact on
the overall operation.

D0

1. Scrubbing tower installation and documentation application completed.

Estimated amount of current and possible future occurrences and responsive measures

2. The estimated amount that may be incurred in the future: Consultancy fee of NTD 20,000.

-83-



V. Labor-management relationship

)

1.

)

List any employee benefit plans, continuing education, training, retirement systems, and the status

of their implementation, and the status of labor-management agreements and measures for

preserving employees' rights and interests.

Employee benefit plans

a. According to the “Work Rules,” the Company provides allowances and bonuses, such as
marriage allowance, mourning rituals for funerals of lineal relatives by blood, and childbirth

allowance.

b. The Company also maintains the labor insurance and national health insurance pursuant to the

government laws and regulations. Meanwhile, for sake of employees’ safety, the Company also
maintains the group insurance to secure the employees and provide more benefits additionally.
Continuing education and training of employees
The Company plans the sound education and training programs for employees, e.g. the orientation,
professional technology and personal performance training courses.
Employees’ retirement system and implementation thereof
The Company contributes 6% of the salary per employee to the employee’s personal pension
account under the new system according to the Labor Pension Act on a monthly basis.
Labor-management agreements
The relevant requirements posed by the Company all comply with the Labor Standards Act. So far,
the labor-management relationship has been considered amicable and free from any labor dispute
to be settled.
Measures for preserving employees' rights and interests.
The Company has adopted the Work Rules and various management regulations and systems which
expressly define the employees’ right and obligation and benefits, in order to maintain employees’

interest and right.

List any losses suffered by the Company in the most recent fiscal year and up to the date of
publication of the annual report due to labor disputes, and disclosing an estimate of possible
expenses that could be incurred currently and in the future and measures being or to be taken. If a
reasonable estimate cannot be made, an explanation of the facts of why it cannot be made shall be

provided: None.
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VI. Cyber security management:

() Describe the cyber security risk management framework, cyber security policies, concrete

management programs, and investments in resources for cyber security management:

1. Cyber security risk management framework:

The Company has its information unit responsible for establishing the cyber security policy, and

preventing and managing any crisis in the Company’s cyber security.

The Company executes the information security operations, and establishes the “Cyber Security

Response Team” in response to the information security incident framework.

A. Cyber Security Response Team members: Consisting of the information personnel, responsible
for reporting and processing the Company’s information security incidents.

B. Cyber Security Response Team Supervisor: Served by the IT officer, responsible for reviewing

the response and escalating the case to his/her supervisor.

C. The Company’s internal control system include the information security-related management

regulations, and undergoes periodic audit and review and keeps improving to provide the IT

system with a safe and uninterrupted business environment.

2. Cyber security policy

equipment, personnel, anti-virus and anti-hacking information into the security management
mechanism, and also establish a set of preventive and urgent response policies and communicate the

cyber security problem in a timely manner, in order to ensure the safety in the Company’s information

Include the operating environments for the Company's computer system, network, data,

operation.

3. Concrete management programs:

@ HR safety management and education & training

@ Computer system security management

A.

Operating procedure and liability of the system.

B. Online operation security management

C. Prevention of computer virus and malicious software
D.

E. Computer media security management.

F.

Software access security management.

Security management in the exchange between data and the media.

® Network security management

A. Network security planning and management

B.
C.

Intranet security management

Internet security management

@ System access control

A. System access control requirements

-85-



B. System access and application supervision
® Tangible equipment, peripheral and environmental security management

® Information security incident urgent response mechanism

4. Resources invested in the cyber security management
The Company checks and takes an inventory of the information security equipment, services and
human resource each year to prepare the resources related to information security management.

(IT) List any losses suffered by the Company in the most recent two fiscal years and up to the date of
publication of the prospectus due to significant cyber security incidents, and potential effects to be
caused and responsive measures to be taken; if a reasonable estimate cannot be made, an explanation

of the facts of why it cannot be made shall be provided: None.

VII. Important Contracts

May 13, 2024
Nature of Parties Duration of Main Contents Restrictive Clauses
contracts Contract
The year of right
Industrial land (site | transfer shall be
Landuse | Daye City Land 2016/01/08~ | for plant of FineMat | subject to the year
right Resources Bureau 2068/01/07 (HuangShi) Applied | when the certificate of
Materials Co., Ltd.) | national land use is
transferred.
License of ilsgﬁ/é ztlsé ltl:rrflss hi) 2022/09/28~ {;:lcclfrrll;fo(; for None. Discontinued on
technology Co.. Ltd. 2027/09/27 etching 2023/11/30
%\(/)Irlld-—tfll‘ﬂl O-Bank 2020/01/20~ Loan contract Land
£ 2025/07/15 House and building
loans
Mid- and
2021/09/24~ Land
ong-term | CTBC Bank 2026/09/24 | L0an contract House and building
Mid- and
: 2020/12/15~
long-term | Cathay United Bank 2025/12/15 Loan contract None
loans
ivlrlld- tallﬁl O-Bank 2020/09/25~ Loan contract None
ong-te ) 2025/08/15
loans
Mid- and | The Shanghal 2022/08/25~
long-term | Commercial and 2025/08/25 Loan contract None
loans Savings Bank Ltd.
The year of right
Industrial land (site | transfer shall be
Landuse | An Thinh Hoa Binh | 2020/09/03~ | for plant of Etch subject to the year
right Real Estate Co., Ltd. | 2057/02/02 Home Technology when the certificate of
Co., Ltd. (Vietnam)) | national land use is
transferred.
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Huangshi Quanyang .
License of | Photoelectric 2023/09/20~ {;fg;l;fo()f for None
technology | Technology Co., 2028/09/19 nology

etching

Ltd.

Chin Hsien 2024/02/01~ | Etch Home
Plant lease Enterprise Co.. Ltd. | 2029/01/31 Technology Co., None

P Co Ltd. Luzhu Plant

Note: For the subsidiary, Wave Power Technology Inc., please refer to the annual report of Wave Power
Technology Inc. (stock code: 6895).
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Six. Overview of Finance
I. Condensed Balance Sheet and Statement of Comprehensive Income for the most recent
five years
(D Condensed Balance Sheet and Statement of Comprehensive Income for the most recent five years
1. Condensed Balance Sheet (Consolidated)
Unit: NTD thousand

Financial data in the most recent five years Financial data as
Item of March 31,
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Current asset 1,070,764 964,538 1,039,981 1,382,820 1,647,568 1,468,301
Property, plant and equipment 554,024 988,539 1,304,085 1,350,136 1,166,213 1,157,001
Intangible assets 2,881 80,569 74,536 65,964 57,557 54,546
Other assets 180,077 261,909 231,045 315,716 293,352 309,774
Total assets 1,807,746 2,295,555 2,649,647 3,114,636 3,164,690 2,989,622
Before 275,123 270,586 661,276 989,852 1,014,497 938,725
Current distribution
liabilities  |After 381,347 303,781 661,276 989,852 1,014,497 938,725
distribution
Non-current liabilities 75,603 326,296 289,379 284,737 145,167 106,542
Before 350,726 596,882 950,655 1,274,589 1,159,664 1,045,267
Total distribution
liabilities  |After 456,950 630,077 950,655 1,274,589 1,159,664 1,045,267
distribution
Equity attributable to owners 1,344,892 1,247,117 1,213,405 1,284,325 1,215,066 1,199,567
of the parent
Share capital 663,898 663,898 663,898 663,898 663,898 663,898
Additional paid-in capital 396,582 396,582 396,701 503,465 526,972 522,909
Before
. clore 1 200,61 193,51 151 47,62
Retained  |distribation 301,998 00,619 93,518 51,957 66,386 7,626
carnings |After 195,774 167,424 193,518 151,957 66,386 47,626
distribution
Other equity (17,586) (13,982) (16,525) (10,808) (18,003) (10,679)
Treasury shares 0 0 (24,187) (24,187) (24,187) (24,187)
Non-controlling interests 112,128 451,556 485,587 555,722 789,960 744,788
Before 1,457,020 1,698,673 1,698,992 1,840,047 2,005,026 1,944,355
. distribution
Total equity ARG
Her 1,350,796 1,665,478 1,698,992 1,840,047 2,005,026 1,944,355
distribution

Note 1: The financial data of Q1 2024 were audited by the CPAs.

Note 2: In consideration of the incomplete fiscal year, the figures after distribution are omitted.
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2. Condensed Balance Sheet (Parent Company Only)
Unit: NTD thousand

Financial data in the most recent five years Financial data as
Item of March 31,
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Current asset 773,065 329,574 379,334 488,889 448,529
Property, plant and equipment 286,351 495,091 654,842 650,932 617,814
Intangible assets 2,881 3,072 2,279 1,277 635
Other assets 492,248 735,552 736,316 917,212 911,351
Total assets 1,554,545 1,563,289 1,772,771 2,058,310 1,978,329
Before 134,050 68,611 344,987 589,216 652,280
Current distribution
liabilities After 240,274 101,806 344,987 589,216 652,280
distribution
Non-current liabilities 75,603 247,561 214,379 184,769 110,983
Before 209,653 316,172 559,366 773,985 763,263
Total distribution
liabilities After 315,877 349,367 559,366 773,985 763,263
distribution
Equity attributable to owners 0 0 0 0 0| Not applicable
of the parent
Share capital 663,898 663,898 663,898 663,898 663,898
Additional paid-in capital 396,582 396,582 396,701 503,465 526,972
Before 301,998 200,619 193,518 151,957 66,386
Retained distribution
earnings After 195,774 167,424 193,518 151,957 66,386
distribution
Other equity (17,586) (13,982) (16,525) (10,808) (18,003)
Treasury shares 0 0 (24,187) (24,187) (24,187)
Non-controlling interests 0 0 0 0 0
Before 1,344,892 1,247,117 1,213,405 1,284,325 1,215,066
Total equit distribution
quty After 1,238,668 1,213,922 1,213,405 1,284,325 1,215,066
distribution
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3. Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income (Consolidated)

Unit: NTD thousand

Financial data in the most recent five years Financial data as
Item of March 31,
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Operating revenue 854,165 620,635 856,083 1,250,628 1,121,229 217,044
Gross profit 381,340 194,878 286,421 321,181 207,186 45,580
Operating income or loss 237,651 42,391 63,684 21,732 (89,716) (18,964)
Non-operating income and 1,376 15,473 34,072 25,638 78,628 7,155
expenses
Net income before tax 239,027 57,864 97,756 47,370 (11,088) (11,809)
Net income of continuing 220,600 27,586 74,657 22,709 (28,814) (14,883)
operations in this period
Loss on discontinued 0 0 0 0 0 0
operations
I]jeertigé"ﬁt for the current 220,600 27,586 74,657 22,709 (28,814) (14,883)
Other comprehensive
income for the current
period (Net amount after (15,266) 5,260 (3,071) 7,492 (9,763) 9,851
tax)
Total comprehensive 205,334 32,846 71,586 30,201 (38,577) (5,032)
income for this period
Net income attributable to 207,711 4,845 26,094 (36,049) (85,571) (18,760)
owners of parent company
Net profit attributable to 12,889 22,741 48,563 58,758 56,757 3.877
non-controlling interest
Total comprehensive
income attributable to 196,782 8,449 23,551 (30,332) (92,766) (11,436)
owners of the parent
Total comprehensive
income attributable to non- 8,552 24,397 48,035 60,533 54,189 6,404
controlling interest
Earnings per share (EPS) 3.40 0.07 0.39 (0.55) (1.30) (0.29)

Note 1: The financial data of Q1 2024 were audited by the CPAs.
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4. Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income (Parent Company Only)

Unit: NTD thousand

Financial data in the most recent five years Financial data as
Item of March 31,
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Operating revenue 590,239 362,418 356,988 525,671 398,921
Gross profit 244,906 75,832 52,104 61,674 (10,668)
Operating income or loss 149,102 339 (40,865) (64,333) (113,123)
Non-operating income and 52,022 15,559 71,426 30,703 32,661
expenses
Net income before tax 201,124 15,898 30,561 (33,630) (80,462)
Net income of continuing

ST . 207,711 4,845 26,094 (36,049) (85,571)
operations in this period
Loss on discontinued 0 0 0 0 0
operations
I]jeertigg"ﬁt for the current 207,711 4,845 26,094 (36,049) (85,571)
Other comprehensive Not applicable
income for the current
period (Net amount after (10,929) 3,604 (2,543) 5,717 (7,195)
tax)
Total comprehensive 196,782 8.449 23,551 (30,332) (92,766)
income for this period
Net income attributable to 0 0 0 0 0
owners of parent company
Net profit att.rlbl.ltable to 0 0 0 0 0
non-controlling interest
Total comprehensive
income attributable to 0 0 0 0 0
owners of the parent
Total comprehensive
income attributable to non- 0 0 0 0 0
controlling interest
Earnings per share (EPS) 3.40 0.07 0.39 (0.55) (1.30)
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(IT) Names and audit opinions of external auditors for the most recent five years

Year | CPA firm name External auditor Audit opinions or review report
2019 | PwC Taiwan Lin Tzu-Yu and Liu Tze-Meng | Unqualified opinion
2020 | PwC Taiwan Lin Tzu-Yu and Liu Tze-Meng | Unqualified opinion
2021 | PwC Taiwan Lin Tzu-Yu and Liu Tze-Meng | Unqualified opinion
2022 | PwC Taiwan Lin Tzu-Yu & Lin Yong-Chi Unqualified opinion
2023 | PwC Taiwan Lin Yong-Chi, Yeh Fan-Ting Unqualified opinion

II. Financial analysis for the most recent five years
(D Analysis on consolidated financial statements

Financial data in the most recent five years

Financial data as

Analysis item of March 31,
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Debt ratio 19.40 26.00 35.88 40.92 36.64 34.96
Financial  [Ratio of long-term
structure (%) |capital to property, plant 276.63 204.84 152.47 157.38 184.37 177.26
and equipment
Current ratio 389.19 356.46 157.27 139.70 162.40 156.41
Solvency (%) |Quick ratio 360.01 290.62 115.16 103.99 131.53 125.34
Interest earned ratio 77.34 10.72 16.33 3.87 0.57 (1.50)
Receivables turnover 3.75 2.94 341 3.44 3.12 0.77
(times)
Average collection 97.37 124.14 107.03 106.10 116.99 116.88
period (days)
Inventory turnover 7.62 4.00 3.34 3.74 3.06 0.65
(times)
Operating  |Payables turnover
performance |(times) 8.34 7.49 6.80 6.51 5.74 1.35
Average days in sales 47.90 91.25 109.28 97.59 119.28 138.00
Property, plant and 1.84 0.80 0.75 0.94 0.89 0.19
equipment turnover
Total assets turnover 0.59 0.30 0.35 0.43 0.36 0.07
(times)
?)/et)“m on total assets 15.34 1.59 3.3 1.25 (0.26) (0.36)
0
Return on equity (%) 18.81 1.75 4.39 1.28 (1.50) (0.75)
.- Income before tax to
Profitability paid-in capital (%) 36.00 8.72 14.72 7.14 (1.67) (1.78)
Profit margin (%) 25.83 4.44 8.72 1.82 (2.57) (6.86)
Earnings per share (NTS$)
Note 2 3.40 0.07 0.39 (0.55) (1.30) (0.29)
Cash flow ratio (%) 90.77 28.42 14.51 (3.85) 18.68 (1.26)
Cash flow ~ |Cash flow adequacy ratio 69.17 41.01 39.67 32.45 39.33 NA
(Note3)  [(0) .
(Co/aih remvestment ratio 11.94 (1.35) 2.80 (1.55) 7.66 (0.49)
0
Operating leverage 2.06 7.00 6.51 21.04 (3.88) NA
Leverage
Financial leverage 0.99 1.16 1.11 4.18 0.78 NA
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Specify the reasons that caused the changes in the financial ratios in the last two years (analysis is not required for changes by

less than 20%):

(1) Solvency: The decline in interest earned ratio compared with the previous period was mainly due to the decline in net
profit and the increase in financial costs.

(2) Operating performance: The average inventory turnover days have increased due to reduced industrial demand leading to
decreased turnover rate and increased number of sales days.

(3) Profitability: Due to the economic downturn, metal mask revenue decreased in the current period. Non-operating
expenses increased due to losses from overseas subsidiaries and financial costs, resulting in a net loss after tax. This led to
negative figures in related indicators.

(4) Cash flow: Revenue and accounts receivable decreased at year-end, leading to increased relevant ratios due to higher net
cash inflow from operating activities.

(5) Leverage: In the current period, low revenue and gross profit led to an operating loss and negative operating leverage.
Rising interest rates increased financial costs, resulting in lower financial leverage than the previous period.

Note 1: The financial data of Q1 2024 were audited by the CPAs.

(IT) Analysis on parent company only financial statements

Financial data in the most recent five years Financial data as
Analysis item of March 31,
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Debt ratio 13.49 20.22 31.55 37.60 38.58
Financial Ratio of long-term capital to

structure (%)  |property, plant and 496.07 301.90 218.03 225.69 214.64
equipment
Current ratio 576.70 480.35 109.96 82.97 68.76

Solvency (%) |Quick ratio 540.34 390.37 84.35 63.72 57.81
Interest earned ratio 105.97 7.18 14.00 3.95 (6.13)
Receivables turnover (times) 3.98 2.98 3.43 4.11 2.69
Average collection period 91.78|  122.50|  106.35 88.73|  135.85
(days)
Inventory turnover (times) 5.94 5.04 391 4.41 4.05

Operating Payables turnover (times) 7.03 7.15 6.17 6.47 6.26

performance
Average days in sales 61.47 72.38 93.35 82.77 90.12
Property, plant and
equipment turnover 2.07 1.27 0.62 0.81 0.63| Nt applicable
Total assets turnover (times) 0.47 0.23 0.21 0.27 0.20
Return on total assets (%) 16.62 0.44 1.68 (1.60) (3.79)
Return on equity (%) 19.50 0.37 2.12 (2.89) (6.85)
Income before tax to paid-in

Profitability capital (%) p 30.29 2.39 4.60 (5.07) (12.12)
Profit margin (%) 35.19 1.34 7.31 (6.86) (21.45)
Earnings per share (NTS$)
Note 2 3.40 0.07 0.39 (0.55) (1.30)
Cash flow ratio (%) 159.71 55.41 9.04 (5.00) 18.36

Cash flow  |Cash flow adequacy ratio

(Note 3) (%) 159.85 65.24 46.10 40.50 47.44

Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 10.38 4.11) (0.12) (1.69) 7.26

Operating leverage 1.93 380.00 (3.17) (1.60) (0.75)
Leverage

Financial leverage 1.01 (0.15) 0.95 0.90 0.91
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Specify the reasons that caused the changes in the financial ratios in the last two years (analysis is not required for changes by

less than 20%):

(1) Solvency: The negative interest earned ratio is mainly due to decreased revenue, net loss before tax, and increased
financial costs.

(2) Operating performance: Weak demand in the panel industry led to lower net sales and decreased turnover rates for
receivables, real estate, plant and equipment, and total assets.

(3) Profitability: Revenue decreased by up to 25% compared with the previous period, resulting in a net loss after tax for the
current period and negative trends in profitability-related indicators.

(4) Cash flow: In this period, more receivables were collected, leading to an increase in net operating cash flow compared
to the previous period, and the related ratios also increased.

(5) Leverage: The operating loss for this period was greater than the previous period, primarily due to decreased revenue.
As a result, the operating leverage remained negative but increased compared to the previous period.

Note 1: Formula
1. Financial structure

(1) Ratio of liabilities to assets=Total liabilities/Total Assets.

(2) Ratio of long-term fund to property, plant and equipment=
(Total equity + Non-current liabilities)/Property, plant and equipment, net.

2. Solvency

(1) Current ratio = Current assets/Current liabilities.

(2) Quick ratio = (Current assets - Inventory - Prepaid expenses)/Current liabilities.

(3) Interest earned ratio = Net income before tax and interest expense/Interest expenses in this
period.

3. Operational ability

(1) Receivables (including accounts receivable and notes receivable resulting from operation)
turnover = net sales / balance of average accounts receivable (including accounts
receivable and notes receivable resulting from operation).

(2) Average cash collection days=365/Receivables turnover.

(3) Inventory turnover=Cost of goods sold/Average inventory.

(4) Payables (including accounts payable and notes payable resulting from operation) turnover
= cost of goods sold / balance of average accounts payable (including accounts payable
and notes payable resulting from operation).

(5) Average inventory turnover days=365/Inventory turnover.

(6) Property, plant and equipment turnover=net sales/average property, plant and equipment,
net.

(7) Total assets turnover=net sales/average total assets.

4. Profitability

(1) ROA= [Profit or loss after tax + interest expenses X (1- tax rate)]/average total assets.

(2) ROE=Profit or loss after tax/Average total equity.

(3) Profit margin=Profit or loss after tax/Net sales.

(4) Earnings per share= (Income attributable to owners of the parent-Preferred stock
dividend)/Weighted average number of outstanding shares. (Note 2)

5. Cash flow
(1) Cash flow ratio = Net cash flows from operating activities/Current liabilities.
(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio = Net cash flow from operating activities for the most recent five
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6.

years/ (Capital expenditures + Inventory increment + Cash dividends) for the most recent
five years.

(3) Cash reinvestment ratio= (Net cash flow from operating activities-Cash dividends)/ (Gross
property, plant and equipment+ Long-term investments+ Other non-current assets+
working capital). (Note 3)

Leverage:

(1) Operating leverage= (Net operating revenues-Variable operating costs and
expenses)/Operating income (Note 4)

(2) Financial leverage=Operating income/ (Operating income-Interest expenses).

Note 2: When calculating said earnings per share, please note that:

1.

The weighted average number of common shares shall apply, instead of the number of
outstanding shares at the end of the year.

In the case of cash capital increase or treasury stock transactions, the calculation shall take the
period of circulation into account when calculating the weighted average number of
outstanding shares.

In the case of recapitalization from earnings or recapitalization from capital surplus, the
calculation of earnings per share for the previous year and for a half of year shall make
adjustment retroactively subject to the proportion of capital increase, irrelevant with the
issuance period for the capital increase.

If the preferred stock refers to non-convertible cumulative preferred stock, the stock dividend
for the current year (whether allocated or not) shall be deducted from the income after tax or
add the loss after tax. If the preferred stock is not cumulative one, the preferred stock dividend
shall be deducted from the net profit after tax, if any. Notwithstanding, no adjustment is

required, in the case of loss.

Note 3: Cash flow analyses shall take the following factors into account:

1.

Note 4:

Net cash flow from operating activities refers to net cash inflow from operating activities as stated
in the Statement of Cash Flow.

Capital expenses refer to the amount of annual cash outflow spent on capital investments.
The increase in inventory is included only when the balance at the ending is more than that at
beginning. If the inventory decreases at the end of the year, it shall be calculated as “zero”.
Cash Dividends include the dividends in cash paid to holders of common shares and preferred
shares.
Gross property, plant and equipment refers to the amount before deducting accumulated

depreciation.
The issuer is required to classify operating costs and expenses between fixed and variable

portions; any estimate or subjective judgment used in the classification needs to be reasonable

and consistent.
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Note 5: If the Company’s shares have no par value or if the par value of each share is not NT$10, said
percentage of the paid-in capital shall be substituted by the equity attributable to owners of the

parent referred to in the balance sheet.

III. The Audit Committee’s Review Report on the financial report for the most recent year:
Please refer to Pages 97

IV. The Consolidated Financial Statements and External Auditor’s Audit Report for the most
recent year: Please refer to Pages 112-182

V. The Parent Company Only Financial Statements and External Auditor’s Audit Report for
the most recent year: Please refer to Pages 183-256

VI. If the Company or its affiliates have experienced financial difficulties in the most recent
fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report, the annual report shall
explain how said difficulties will affect the Company's financial situation: None.
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FineMat Applied Materials Co., Ltd.

Audit Committee’s Review Report

The Board of Directors has prepared the Company's 2023 business report,
consolidated and parent company-only financial statements, and earnings distribution
proposal. The consolidated and parent company-only financial statements have been
audited by Lin Yong-Chi, Yeh Fan-Ting, CPAs of PwC Taiwan, who have issued an
unqualified audit report. Said business report, consolidated and parent company only
financial statements and earnings distribution proposal have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee and found to have no inconsistencies. This report is issued in
accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act and Company Act. Please review it
accordingly.

FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.

Convener of Audit Committee Meeting: Tseng Chung-Nan

March 14, 2024
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Seven. A review and analysis of the Company’s financial status and financial performance,

and risk management

I. Financial status

(D Main causes for significant changes in accounting titles in the balance sheet for the most recent two

years, and effects posed by such changes

Unit: NTD thousand

Hem 2003 2022 Difference
Amount %

Current asset 1,647,568 1,382,820 264,748 19.15
Property, plant and 1,166,213 1,350,136 (183,923) (13.62)
equipment

Intangible assets 57,557 65,964 (8,407) (12.74)
Other assets 293,352 315,716 (22,364) (7.08)
Total assets 3,164,690 3,114,636 50,054 1.61
Current liabilities 1,014,497 989,852 24,645 2.49
Total liabilities 1,159,664 1,274,589 (114,925) (9.02)
Share capital 663,898 663,898 0 0.00
Additional paid-in capital 526,972 503,465 23,507 4.67
Retained earnings 66,386 151,957 (85,571) (56.31)
Other equity (18,003) (10,808) (7,195) 66.57
Treasury shares (24,187) (24,187) 0 0.00
Non-controlling interests 789,960 555,722 234,238 42.15
Total equity 2,005,026 1,840,047 164,979 8.97

Company.

Remark on the significant changes: (analysis is not required for changes by less than 20%)

1. The changes in retained earnings was primarily a result of the operating loss generated in 2023 resulting
the decrease in undistributed earnings.

2. Said difference was caused by the Company’s business adjustment in response to the changes in the
industry and market environment and also the need for business development strategy, by taking into
account the integration of resources and scale of economy, which poses no significant impact to the
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II. Financial performance

(I) Comparative list of financial performance comparison for the most recent two years
Unit: NTD thousand

Difference
Item 2023 2022
Amount Amount
Operating revenue 1,121,229 1,250,628 (129,399) (10.35)
Gross profit 207,186 321,181 (113,995) (35.49)
Operating income or loss (89,716) 21,732 (111,448) (512.83)
Non-operating income and expenses 78,628 25,638 52,990 206.69
Net income before tax (11,088) 47,370 (58,458) (123.41)
Net income of continuing operations (28.814) 22.709 (51,523) (226 88)
in this period
Loss on discontinued operations 0 0 0 0.00
Current income (28,814) 22,709 (51,523) (226.88)
Other comprehenswe income for the (9.763) 7.492 (17.255) (23031)
current period
;fs:iaoldcomprehenswe income for this (38.577) 30.201 (68.778) (227.73)
Net income attributable to owners of (85.571) (36,049) (49,522) 137.37
parent company
Net 1ncc_)me_attr1butable to non- 56.757 58.758 (2,001) (3.41)
controlling interests
Total comprehensive income
attributable to owners of parent (92,766) (30,332) (62,434) 205.84
company
Total comprehensive income
attributable to non-controlling 54,189 60,533 (6,344) (10.48)
interests
Earnings per share (EPS) (1.30) (0.55) (0.75) 136.36

Remark on the significant changes: (analysis is not required for changes by less than 20%)
1. Changes in operating and related income or loss: The operating income in 2023 decreased compared
with the previous period, while operating costs and related expenses increased, resulting in higher

operating losses.

2. Changes in non-operating income: Mainly due to the liquidation of the equity interests held by

Huangshi Quanyang Photoelectric and the increase in investment profits from the disposal.

(I) Sales volume forecast and the basis thereof: Please refer to the outlined business plan referred to in A

Message to Shareholders herein.

(IIT) Effect upon the Company's business and finance, as well as the plans to be taken in response: Please

refer to the Overview of Market and Production & Marketing in Overview of Operation herein for

details.
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(IT) Major causes for profit or loss thereof, improvements

Unit: NTD thousand

Recognized in

Major causes for profit or

Investee Principle business lines 2023 loss thereof Improvement
Sense Pad TECHCO., General investee 5,707 Re.cogmtlon of investment
LTD. gains
Htc & Solartech Sgrvwe General investee 29437 Re.cogmnon of investment
(Samoa) Corporation gains
ELAN Microelectronics Prp duction and sale .Of The investees’ business
microwave and semiconductor 32,002
Corp. grows stably
components and parts
Production and sale of
electronic components and As it is the new industry
Etch Home Technolo communication machine & which the Company is
gy equipment, wholesale and retail (42,004)|engaged in, the Company
Co., Ltd. . . el .
of electronic materials, is still trying to learn more
telecommunications equipment about it.
and machine & equipment
Sale of semiconductor
. equipment, electromechanical
Galloptech Intgmatlonal equipment and optical Not applicable (Note 1)
Company Limited. .
equipment, and after-sale
service
Production and sale of N
. one
Etch Home Technology electronic components and ' .
. parts, communication machine | Not applicable (Note 1)
Co., Ltd. (Vietnam) X
& equipment, and other metal
products
Flnerpat (Shanghal) Sale of electronic gomponents Market conditions are
Applied Materials Co., and parts, general instruments 3,356
. . stable
Ltd. and electronic materials
Production of other metal Liquidate the equity held
Solar Applied Materials  [products, electronic components in Huangshi Quanyang
Technology (Shanghai) and parts, computers and 43,583|Photoelectric Technology
CO., LTD. peripheral devices, and sale of Co., Ltd., so there are
electronic materials disposal interests
Production of other metal
FineMat (HuangShi) products, electronic components Uncertain economic
Applied Materials Co., and parts, computers and (32,096)|situation and weak market
Ltd. peripheral devices, and sale of demand
electronic materials
. Production and sale of other
Huangshi Quanyang metal products, electronic
Photoelectric Technology P ’ (7,530) (Note 2)

Co., Ltd.

materials and semiconductor
components and parts

Note 1: Pursuant to the requirements, the Company may be exempted from disclosing the investment income
recognized for the current period.

Note 2: The equity held has been liquidated in August 2023, so the profit and loss from January to July 2023 is

recognized

(3) Investment plans for next year: None.

-101-




VI. Risk analysis and assessment from the most recent year until the date of publication of the
annual report

(I) Impacts of interest rate/foreign exchange rate fluctuation and inflation to the Company's income, and future
responsive measures:

1. Changes in interest rate

Unit: NTD thousand and %

It 2022 2023
em
Amount  |To net operating revenue (%)| Amount | To net operating revenue (%)
Interest revenue 2,569 0.21 6,756 0.60
Interest 16,529 1.32 25,908 231
expenses

A. Impact to the income:

The interest revenues of the Company and its subsidiaries were NT$2,569 thousand and NT$6,756
thousand, respectively, in 2022 and 2023, i.e. 0.21% and 0.601% of the net operating revenue. The
impact posed therefor is considered minor. The interest expenses of the Company and its subsidiaries
were NT$16,529 thousand and NT$25,908 thousand, respectively, in 2022 and 2023, i.e. 1.32% and
2.31% of the net operating revenue. The impact posed therefor is considered minor. Therefore, the
changes in interest posed no significant impact to the Company. Interest expenses increased by
NT$9,379 thousand mainly due to the increase in financing from financial institutions for the operations
of overseas subsidiaries.

B. Future responsive measures:

The Group doesn’t necessarily rely on the loans from financial institutions, but it still will maintain
good relationship with banks, verify changes in interest rates at any time, and strive for preferential
interest rates.

2. Changes in interest rate

Unit: NTD thousand and %

2022 2023
Item . -
To net operating To net operating
Amount revenue (%) Amount revenue (%)
Net exchange gain (loss) 7,424 0.59 (3,404) (0.30)

A. Impact to the income:
The net exchange gains (losses) of the Company and its subsidiaries were NT$7,424 thousand
and NT$(3,404) thousand, respectively, in 2022 and 2023, i.e. 0.59% and (0.30%) of the net operating
revenue. The exchange gains (losses) were generated primarily due to the volatility in the foreign

exchange rate for USD, while they impose no significant impact to the entire income.

B. Future responsive measures:

For the foreign exchange fund allocation, the Company will offset the foreign currency claims
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against debts through regular export and import of goods, in order to achieve the natural hedging effect
and mitigate the foreign exchange rate risk. In the future, the Company will keep adopting the foreign
exchange position natural hedging as the main strategy to control the foreign interest rate risk, and
exercise the forward exchange transactions in a timely manner to mitigate the risk over changes in
foreign exchange rate. The finance unit keeps close connection with the financial institutions and
continue observing the changes in foreign exchange rates.

3. Inflation:

No significant impact has been posed by the inflation to the Company’s income by the date of
publication of the annual report. Therefore, the inflation is expected to pose limited impact to the
Company’s income. In the future, the Company will still continue observing the inflation status and take
appropriate actions to mitigate the impact posed by it to the Company’s operations.

(IT) Policies on high-risk and highly leveraged investments, loans to third parties, endorsements/guarantees, and
derivatives trading, main causes of profit or loss incurred and future responsive measures:

1. The Company has adopted the “Operating Procedure for Loaning to Others,” “Operating Procedure
for Making of Endorsements/Guarantees™ and “Procedure for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets,” et
al., to be followed by the Company.

2. The Company never engaged in the business activities such as high-risk and highly leveraged
investments by the date of publication of the annual report.

3. Until the date of publication of the annual report, the Company has engaged in the derivatives trading
to evade the risk from recorded foreign currency financial assets or financial liabilities. All
transactions were conducted in accordance with the “Procedure for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets.”

4. Until the date of publication of the annual report, the recipients of the endorsements/guarantees and
loans provided by the Company and its subsidiaries have been limited to the affiliated companies of
the Company or the subsidiaries.

(I1I) Future R&D plans and expected R&D expenditure:

The Company will continue to commit itself to the improvement of etching precision, upgrading of
the mask size, multi-layer mask diffusion welding technology, design and construction of new process
machine, and implementation and certification of heat dissipation materials subject to new specifications.
The R&D expenses to be invested will be prepared subject to the product development progress.
Meanwhile, the Company will continue to invest capital in professional technicians and development of
equipment and new technology, in order to ensure the Company’s competitive strength. The estimated
R&D expenses in 2024 are approximately 7.0% - 9.0% of the revenue.

(IV)Impact on the Company’s business and finance due to changes in domestic or foreign policies and laws,
and responsive measures:
The Company runs its business following related domestic and foreign laws and regulations, and the
management keep observing the development of important policies at home and abroad. Meanwhile, the
Company will assign its professional staff to attend related training programs from time to time, in order

to connect with the international trend and improve the Company’s competitiveness in the world. No
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significant impact has been posed by the changes in important policies and laws at home and abroad to

the Company’s business and finance by the date of publication of the annual report.

(V) Impact on the Company’s business and finance due to technological (including cyber security risk) or
industrial changes, and responsive measures:

The Company keeps observing the technological or industrial changes in the industry which it is
engaged in from time to time, and also verifies the industrial development rapidly. Meanwhile, the
Company keeps improving its own R&D abilities, applies for patents to protect its innovative ideas and
design developments, and expands the future market applications proactively, in order to deal with the
impacts on the Company due to technological or industrial changes. The Company checks and takes an
inventory of the information security equipment, services and human resource each year to prepare the
resources related to information security management, ensure the maintenance of the Company’s and
subsidiaries’ overall cyber security and mitigate the overall cyber security risk.

(VD) Impact on crisis management in the event of a change in corporate identity, and responsive measures:

Since the Company was incorporated, it has always complied with related laws and regulations,
improved its internal management and also management quality and performance proactively, and
maintained the harmonious labor-management relationship, in order to maintain the excellent corporate
identity. No changes affecting the corporate identity have occurred from the most recent year until the

date of publication of the annual report.

(VII) Expected benefits and possible risks of merger and acquisition, and responsive measures:
The Company has had no the plan for merger and acquisition of another company in the most recent
year or by the date of publication of the annual report. If the Company is involved in, or has the plan for,
merger & acquisition, it will conduct the evaluation on various effects and control the risk with care per

the relevant operational requirements, in order to protect the Company’s interest and shareholders’

equity.

(VIII) Expected benefits and possible risks of plant expansion, and responsive measures:

The plant expansion will cause the increase in operating cost, but will also result in the increase in
operating revenue to cover the additional operating cost at the same time. In order to deal with the risk,
the Company will improve the production capacity and market share proactively, in an attempt to expand
the operating revenue. The new plant construction projects will be evaluated by the Company with care
before they are executed; therefore, operating risk is not likely to be caused to the Group.

(IX)Risks and responsive measures associated with concentrated purchases or sales:
1. For purchases:

The Company purchases goods from suppliers primarily providing metal sheets. There are a great
number of such suppliers engaged in selling multiple product types. Notwithstanding, in consideration of
the stable quality and production capacity, the Company’s purchases appear to be concentrated for the
time being. Notwithstanding, in order to mitigate the concentrated purchases, the Company is also

working with other domestic and foreign suppliers which provide quality products proactively. The
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Company has maintained the long-term cooperative and dependent partnership with most main suppliers.
With the stably growing sales performance, the Company’s cooperative relationship with suppliers
becomes more and more advantageous. Therefore, as far as the Company is concerned, there is no risk
associated with excessive concentrated purchases.

2. For sales:

In companies with sales amount accounting for more than 10%, sales after deducting related party
transactions accounted for 58.16% and 58.21% of the total sales in 2023 and 2022, respectively. The
Company's main customer structure has not changed.

In 2023, the sales of metal masks accounted for 44% of the group's total revenue, the sales of
microwave and semiconductor components accounted for about 37%, and the sales of thermal materials
and precision cleaning industries accounted for about 10% and 8% of the total sales, respectively. The

Group's sales are not too concentrated.

(X) Impact and risk on the Company due to major transfer or conversion of equity by directors, supervisors,
or shareholders with more than 10% ownership interest, and responsive measures:
From the most recent year until the date of publication of the annual report, no significant changes have
occurred upon transfer of the equity by the Company’s directors and major shareholders with more than
10% ownership interest. Therefore, there is no impact or risk on the Company’s business due to major

transfer or conversion of equity.

(XD Impact and risks on the Company due to a change of the right of management: None.

(XII) Litigious and non-litigious matters: If there has been any material impact upon shareholders' equity or
prices for the Company's securities as a result of any litigation, non-litigious proceeding, or
administrative dispute involving any of the Company’s directors, supervisors, President, de facto
responsible person, or major shareholders with a stake of more than 10 percent, and the matter was
finalized or remained pending, please disclose the facts in dispute, amount in dispute, commencement
date, main parties involved, and current status of the case until the date of publication of the annual

report: None.

(XIII) Other important risks and responsive measures:
1. Information security:

In order to support the Company’s overall business development and ensure effective
application of the information resource, and balance the security of information system and operation,
the Company has taken the following protection measures: establishment of fire walls and information
security software as the preventive network security protection mechanism, daily backup and periodic
remote storage of the server data, establishment of the local synchronization system backup measures,
periodic exercise of system restoration drills, and performance of information security evaluation each
year to improve the information system’s security protection ability and mitigate the damage caused to
the information system effectively.
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2. Labor health and safety:

The Company has adopted related EHS operation management regulations governing
wastewater, drinking water, waste gas, waste, chemicals, water and electricity resources, stackers, lifting
equipment and production equipment, etc., and also passed ISO 14001 certification to have the eco-
friendly waste reduction, pollution prevention and zero labor disaster.

Occupational accidents in 2023

Number of | Number of | As % of the Related improvement
case person employees measures

Disability 0 case 0 person 0 Not applicable.
accident

Death 0 case 0 person 0 Not applicable.
accident

Fire 0 case 0 person 0 Not applicable.
accident

Total 0 case 0 person 0

VIIL. Other important matters: None.
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Eight. Special Notes
I. Information about affiliated companies:
(I)  Organizational Chart of Affiliated Companies (December 31, 2023)

Taiwan
Finemat Applied Materials
Co., Ltd
100% 37.35% 90.81% 73.73%
Taiwan SAMOA
SAMOA Taiwan .
Sense Pad TECHCO., LTD. Wave Power Technology Inc. Etch Home Technology Co., e Solartecl.l Service
Ltd. Corporation
100%
100% China Finemat Vietnam China 100%
(Shanghai) Applied Materials Etch Home Technology Co., _FineMat (HuangShi) Applied
Co., Ltd. Ltd. Materials Co., Ltd.
i 49% Hong Kong China Solar Applied Materials 100%
o Galloptech International Technology (Shanghai) CO.,
Company Limited. LTD.
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(I) Name, Date of Establishment, Address, Paid-in Capital and Main Business Lines of Affiliated

Companies
December 31, 2023
Unit: NTD thousand or thousand in foreign currency
Company Date of Address Paid-in Main business or product
Establishment capital lines
Sense Pad TECHCO., 2007.02.15. Leyel 2, Lotemau Centre, Vaea Street, USD 750|General investment
LTD. Apia, Samoa.
. Le Sanalele Complex, Ground Floor,
Htc & Solartech Service | 411 1031 |vaea Street, Saleﬁﬁ, PO Box 1868, Apia,| USD11,631|General investment
(Samoa) Corporation S
amoa
Sale of semiconductor
Galloptech International Unit B1, 2/F., Morlite Building 40 Hung equipment, electromechanical
C o 2008.01.07. |To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong HKD3,948|equipment and optical
ompany Limited. K .
ong. equipment, and after-sale
service

Finemat (Shanghai) Sale of electronic components

Applied Mater;gals Co., 2016.08.08. ﬁgonl\l/[{%3069, A.p t. 10, No. 1988’ Fanghe CNY3,000|and parts, general instrll)lments

Ltd. » Minhang Dist., Shanghai City and electronic materials
Precision cleaning and
regeneration; Production of

Solar Applied Materials . other metal products, electronic

Technology (Shanghai) 2012.05.09. Egon}; 201}; Al:]);'.ét’ I\g})l Sl’hc.h ér}tgyln USD1,000{components and parts,

CO., LTD. » paoshan List., Shanghat Lty computers and peripheral
devices, and sale of electronic
materials
Precision cleaning and
regeneration; Production of

FineMat (HuangShi) No. 116, East Pengcheng Avenue, other metal products, electronic

Applied Materials Co., 2017.10.12.  |Economic-Technological Development USD12,575|components and parts,

Ltd. Area, Huangshi City, Hubei Province computers and peripheral
devices, and sale of electronic
materials

ELAN Microclectronics No. 31, Lane 598, Zhongzheng Rd., Production and sale of

C 2002.12.31 |Neighborhood 11, Xinhua Vil., Toufen NTD341,000/microwave and semiconductor

orp. ) Lo
City, Miaoli County components and parts
Production and sale of
electronic components and
R communication machine &
]étch Home Technology 2010.11.24. No. 196,.Changr0ng Rd‘.’ Zhangxin Vil., NTD47,000|{equipment, wholesale and retail
0., Ltd. Luzhu Dist., Taoyuan City . .
of electronic materials,
telecommunications equipment
and machine & equipment
Production and sale of
Heping Province, Liangshan County, electronic components and
Etch Home Technology 2020.08.21. |Heshanshe, No. 6 National Road, km36, USDA4,680|parts, communication machine

Co., Ltd. (Vietnam)

Liangshan Industrial Park

& equipment, and other metal
products

Note 1: USD exchange rate on the reporting date: 30.71

Note 2: HKD exchange rate on the reporting date: 3.94

Note 3: CNY exchange rate on the reporting date: 4.41

(III) Information about the same shareholder presumed to have control and affiliation: None.
(IV) Overall Relationship Between the Industries Covered by the Business Operations of the Affiliated

Companies: production of the metal masks, pad printing molds and spare parts of LED TVs, NBs,

mobile phones, semiconductors, contact lenses, medical parts and thermal modules, etc. requiring

precision etching, spare parts cleaning and regeneration services, and microwave and semiconductor
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parts.

V)

or capital contribution to the affiliated companies:

Names of directors, supervisors and presidents of the affiliated companies, and their shareholdings in

December 31, 2023

Shares held
Company Title Name or representative Number of  |Shareholding
shares (share) %
. Representative of FINEMAT APPLIED
Sense Pad TECH CO., LTD. Director MATERIALS CO., LTD.: Chao Ching-Hsiao 7,580,000 100.00
. Representative of FINEMAT APPLIED
Htc & Solartech Service . . .
(Samoa) Corporation Director MATERIALS CO., LTD.: Chao Ching-Hsiao 8,575,900 73.73
. Representative of FINEMAT APPLIED
Chairman  INJATERIALS CO., LTD.: Chao Ching-Hsiao
. . Director-cum- [Representative of FINEMAT APPLIED
ELAN Microelectronics Corp. |, o G qe MATERIALS CO., LTD.: Chen Han-Ying 12,736,987 37.35
Direct Representative of FINEMAT APPLIED
frector MATERIALS CO., LTD.: Li Fan-Chun
Galloptech International . Representative of Sense Pad TECH CO., LTD.:
Company Limited. Director Chao Ching-Hsiao 1,934,400 49.00
Executive Representative of Sense Pad TECH CO., LTD.:
Finemat (Shanghai) Applied Director Chao Ching-Hsiao (Note) 100.00
Materials Co., Ltd. . Representative of Sense Pad TECH CO., LTD.: '
Supervisor .
Tsai Tsung-Hung
) _ ED)i(reeCcl;z)l:-i m- Representative of Htc & Solartech
Solar Applied Materials Presid 4 Service(Samoa)Corporation: Ni Hui-Min
Technology (Shanghai) CO., resident (Note) 100.00
LTD. Supervisor Representative of Htc & Solartech Service
P (Samoa)Corporation: Li Wei-Cheng
E)fecutlve Representative of Htc & Solartech Service
Director-cum- (Samoa)Corporation: Ni Hui-Min
FineMat (HuangShi) Applied  [President P : (Note) 100.00
Material ., Ltd. . . ’
aterials Co., Ltd Supervisor Representative of Htc & Solartech Service
p (Samoa)Corporation: Li Wei-Cheng
Chairman Representative of FINEMAT APPLIED
Etch Home Technology Co., MATERIALS CO., LTD.: Chao Ching-Hsiao
Ltd. . Representative of FINEMAT APPLIED
Etch Home Technology Co., [Tt MATERIALS CO., LTD.: Li Fan-Chun 4,268,000 90.81
Ltd. Director Representative of FINEMAT APPLIED
MATERIALS CO., LTD.: Lai, Yuan-Jhang
Etch Home Technology Co., Executive Representative of Etch Home Technology Co., 4.680.000 100.00
Ltd. (Vietnam) Director Ltd.: Chao Ching-Hsiao T '

Note: No information about shares is available, since it is a limited company.
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(VII) Consolidated financial statements of affiliated companies: Please refer to Page 112.
(VII) Affiliation Report: N/A.

II. Private placement of securities during the most recent year and up to the date of publication
of the annual report: None.

III. Holding or disposal of shares in the Company by the Company's subsidiaries during the
most recent and up to the date of publication of the annual report: None.

IV. Other Supplementary Notes: None.

V. Any occurrences of events defined under Subparagraph 2, Paragraph 3, Article 36 of the
Securities and Exchange Act in the most recent year up till the date of publication of the
annual report that significantly impacted shareholders’ equity or security price: None.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO.,
LTD.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of FINEMAT APPLIED
MATERIALS CO., LTD. and its subsidiaries (collectively referred herein as the “Group”)
as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years then ended,

and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31,
2023 and 2022, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards, International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee Interpretations, and Standing Interpretations Committee
Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory

Commission.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial
Statement Audit and Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and
Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of
China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Group’s 2023 consolidated financial statements. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements
as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matters for the Group’s 2023 consolidated financial statements are stated as

follows:

Existence of sales revenue

Description

Refer to Note 4(28) for the accounting policy on revenue recognition and Note 6(21) for
the details of operating revenue.

The Group sells electronic components, high precision metal masks, other metal products,
microwave semiconductor devices, provide services for precision equipment clearing and
recycling. Since the Group’s customers are located in Taiwan, Asia and other areas, sales
are easily affected by the terminal market demand. Also, the verification of the transaction
existence takes a relatively longer time due to the massive transaction volume of sales
revenue. Thus, we considered the existence of sales revenue as one of the key audit matters
for this year’s audit.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures in response of the above key audit matter:

A. We confirmed the process of revenue recognition, including reviewing customer basic
information and credit limit table, revenue recognition basis, authorization procedures
and collection processes to evaluate the management’s effectiveness of internal
controls over sales revenue recognition.

B. We performed a series verification sample test for the sales revenue transactions of the
year, including vouching customers’ orders, shipping orders, export declaration
documents, customer receipt records and sales invoices or subsequent receipts, to
confirm whether the sales revenue transactions really occurred.
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C. We sampled and tested the accounting entries recognized for sales revenue, including
verifying the nature of the entries and checking the supporting documents. For the
same purpose, we also sampled and checked the reasonableness of the debit notes
issued after the balance sheet date and examined the related supporting documents.

Valuation of inventories - Allowance for valuation loss on microwave
semiconductor devices

Description

Refer to Note 4(11) for the accounting policy on inventory valuation, Note 5(2) for the
information on the uncertainty of accounting estimates and assumptions on inventory

valuation, and Note 6(5) for details of allowance for inventory valuation losses.

Due to rapid technology innovations of microwave semiconductor devices, there is a
higher risk of inventory devaluation or obsolescence. Inventories of microwave
semiconductor devices are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The net
realizable value of inventories aged over a certain period and individually recognized as
obsolete is estimated based on regular reviews by management of individual inventory

conditions.

Due to rapid technology innovations in the relevant industry of products produced by
microwave semiconductor devices and given that the determination of the net realizable
value of individually identified obsolete inventories involves subjective judgement, we

considered the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures on the above key audit matter:

A. Obtained an understanding on the provision policies of inventory valuation losses and
assessed the reasonableness of policies and procedures which were adopted in the
provision of allowance for inventory valuation losses based on the accounting
principles and our understanding of the nature of the business and the industry on
microwave semiconductor devices, including the sources of inventory information
used to determine net realizable value and the reasonableness of judging obsolete
inventories.
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B. Assessed the effectiveness of the management’s inventory control, based on our
understanding of the operations of the warehouse management, inspected the annual
inventory taking plan and performed our observation.

C. Verified whether the net realizable value of inventories and the dates used in the
inventory aging reports that were applied to value inventories were appropriate, and
selected samples from inventory items by each sequence number to recalculate its net
realizable value to ascertain the reasonableness of allowance for inventory valuation
loss.

Other matter - Parent company only financial statements

We have audited and expressed an unqualified opinion on the parent company only
financial statements of FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD. as at and for the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for
the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards, International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee Interpretations, and Standing Interpretations Committee
Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Those charged with governance, including audit committee, are responsible for

overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China,
we exercise professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

A. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

B. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

C. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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D. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

E. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

F. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the consolidated financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Lin, Yung-Chih
Independent Accountants

Yeh, Fang-Ting

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan

Republic of China
March 14, 2024

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and
results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the
Republic of China governing the audit of such financial statements may differ from those generally accepted
in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. Accordingly, the accompanying
consolidated financial statements and independent auditors’ report are not intended for use by those who
are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic
of China, and their applications in practice.

As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot
accept any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or
misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Assets Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current assets

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) $ 601,688 19 565,971 18
1136 Financial assets at amortized cost - 6(2) and 8

current 326,749 10 10,836 -
1140 Current contract assets 6(21) 32,242 1 17,866 1
1150 Notes receivable, net 6(3) and 7 4,073 - 3,128 -
1170 Accounts receivable, net 5(2), 6(3), 7 and 12 271,863 9 396,077 13
1200 Other receivables 136,510 4 5,160 -
1210 Other receivables - related parties 7 267 - 59,033 2
1220 Current income tax assets 6(28) 319 - 122 -
130X Inventories 5(2), 6(5) and 8 244,710 8 281,392 9
1410 Prepayments 29,147 1 43,235 1
11XX Total current assets 1,647,568 52 1,382,820 44

Non-current assets

1535 Financial assets at amortized cost - 6(2) and 8

non-current 50,000 2 4,700 -
1550 Investments accounted for under 6(7) and 7

equity method 11,074 - 149,782 5
1600 Property, plant and equipment 6(8),7 and 8 1,166,213 37 1,350,136 43
1755 Right-of-use assets 6(9) and 8 63,711 2 64,493 2
1760 Investment property, net 6(8)(10) and 8 21,545 1 584 -
1780 Intangible assets 6(11) 57,557 2 65,964 2
1840 Deferred income tax assets 6(28) 63,660 2 45,100 2
1915 Prepayments for equipment 6(8) 13,559 - 21,660 1
1920 Guarantee deposits paid 8 24,314 1 24,251 1
1990 Other non-current assets 6(6)(12) 45,489 1 5,146 -
15XX Total non-current assets 1,517,122 48 1,731,816 56
1XXX Total assets $ 3,164,690 100 3,114,636 100

(Continued)
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Liabilities and Equity Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Liabilities
Current liabilities
2100 Short-term borrowings 6(13) and 8 514,095 16 $ 510,617 16
2110 Short-term notes and bills payable 6(14) 50,000 2 - -
2130 Current contract liabilities 6(21) 6,464 - 6,142 -
2150 Notes payable - - 34 -
2170 Accounts payable 143,441 5 117,477 4
2180 Accounts payable - related parties 7 3,750 - 54,034 2
2200 Other payables 6(15) 127,789 4 151,566 5
2220 Other payables - related parties 7 24 - 273 -
2230 Current income tax liabilities 6(28) 6,604 - 19,030 1
2250 Current provisions 917 - 859 -
2280 Current lease liabilities 3,536 - 3,162 -
2320 Long-term liabilities, current portion 6(16) and 8 157,817 5 126,658 4
21XX Total current liabilities 1,014,497 32 989,852 32
Non-current liabilities
2540 Long-term borrowings 6(16) and 8 104,792 4 259,579 8
2570 Deferred income tax liabilities 6(28) 27,895 1 23,500 1
2580 Non-current lease liabilities 3,018 - 1,658 -
2600 Other non-current liabilities 9,462 - - -
25XX Total non-current liabilities 145,167 5 284,737 9
2XXX Total liabilities 1,159,664 37 1,274,589 41
Equity attributable to owners of
parent
Share capital
3110 Common stock 6(18) 663,898 21 663,898 21
Capital reserves
3200 Capital surplus 6(7)(19)(30) 526,972 16 503,465 16
Retained earnings 6(20)(30)
3310 Legal reserve 41,495 1 41,495 1
3320 Special reserve 10,808 - 16,526 1
3350 Unappropriated retained earnings 14,083 1 93,936 3
3400  Other equity interest 6(7) 18,003) - ( 10,808) -
3500  Treasury stocks 6(18) 24,187) ( 1) ( 24,187) ( 1)
31XX Equity attributable to owners of
the parent 1,215,066 38 1,284,325 41
36XX Non-controlling interest 4(3), 6(7)(30) and 7 789,960 25 555,722 18
3XXX Total equity 2,005,026 63 1,840,047 59
Significant Contingent Liabilities and 9
Unrecognized Contract Commitments
Total liabilities and equity 3,164,690 100§ 3,114,636 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except for loss per share amounts)

Year ended December 31

2023 2022
Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
4000 Sales revenue 6(10)(21) and 7 $ 1,121,229 100§ 1,250,628 100
5000 Operating costs 6(5)(11)(17)(26)(27)
and 7 ( 914,043) ( 82) ( 929,447) ( 74)
5900 Gross profit 207,186 18 321,181 26
Operating expenses 6(11)(17)(26)(27), 7
and 12
6100 Selling expenses ( 35,769) ( 3) ( 55,341) ( 5)
6200 General and administrative expenses ( 174,923) ( 16) ( 163,749) ( 13)
6300 Research and development expenses ( 80,562) ( T ( 79,164) ( 6)
6450 Expected credit impairment loss ( 5,648) - ( 1,195) -
6000 Total operating expenses ( 296,902) ( 26) ( 299,449) ( 24)
6900 Operating (loss) profit ( 89,716) ( 8) 21,732 2
Non-operating income and expenses
7100 Interest income 6(22) 6,756 1 2,569 -
7010 Other income 6(23) and 7 40,147 3 47,436 4
7020 Other gains and losses 6(6)(7)(9)(10)(24), 7
and 12 65,542 6 6,900 -
7050 Finance costs 6(9)(25) ( 25,908) ( 2) ( 16,529) ( 1)
7060 Share of loss of associates and joint 6(7)
ventures accounted for under equity
method ( 7,909) ( 1) ( 14,738) ( 1)
7000 Total non-operating income and
expenses 78,628 25,638 2
7900 (Loss) profit before income tax ( 11,088) ( 1) 47,370 4
7950 Income tax expense 6(28) ( 17,726) ( 1) ( 24,661) ( 2)
8200 (Loss) profit for the year ($ 28,814) ( 2) $ 22,709 2
Other comprehensive (loss) income (Net)
Comp ts of other comprehensive
income (loss) that will be reclassified to
profit or loss
8361 Financial statements translation
differences of foreign operations ($ 37,363) ( 3) $ 35,224 2
8370 Share of other comprehensive income 6(7)
(loss) of associates and joint ventures
accounted for under equity method - will
be reclassified to profit or loss 25,415 2 ( 26,154) ( 2)
8399 Income tax related to components of 6(28)
other comprehensive income that will be
reclassified to profit or loss 2,185 - ( 1,578) -
8300 Other comprehensive (loss) income for
the year ($ 9,763) ( 1 $ 7,492 -
8500 Total comprehensive (loss) income for the
year ($ 38,577) ( 3) $ 30,201 2
(Loss) profit attributable to:
8610 Owners of the parent ($ 85,571) ( 7 ($ 36,049) ( 3)
8620 Non-controlling interest 56,757 5 58,758 5
(Loss) profit for the year ($ 28,814) ( 2) § 22,709 2
Comprehensive (loss) income attributable
to:
8710 Owners of the parent ($ 92,766) ( 8) ($ 30,332) ( 3)
8720 Non-controlling interest 54,189 5 60,533 5
Total comprehensive (loss) income for
the year ($ 38,577) ( 3) $ 30,201 2
Loss per share (in dollars) 6(29)
9750 Basic ($ 1.30) ($ 0.55)
9850 Diluted ($ 1.30) ($ 0.55)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Year ended December 31

Notes 2023 2022
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) profit before tax ($ 11,088 ) $ 47,370
Adjustments
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Expected credit impairment loss 12 5,648 1,195
Loss on inventory market price decline 6(5) 18,251 4,051
Gain on disposal of non-current assets held for  6(6)(24)
sale ( 1,266) -
Share of loss of associates and joint ventures 6(7)
accounted for under equity method 7,909 14,738
Gain on disposal of investments accounted for  6(7)(24)
under equity method ( 81,111) -
Depreciation 6(8)(9)(10) 118,474 113,333
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and 6(24)
equipment 10,789 ( 548 )
Gain from lease modification 6(9)(24) ( 38) -
Amortization 6(11)(26) 11,985 11,895
Interest income 6(22) ( 6,756 ) ( 2,569 )
Interest expense 6(25) 25,908 16,529
Changes in assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets
Current contract assets ( 14,376 ) 552
Notes receivable ( 945) 1,538
Accounts receivable 118,700  ( 97,241 )
Other receivables 24,686 606
Other receivables - related parties 14,621  ( 59,033 )
Inventories 19,364 ( 118,701 )
Prepayments 14,088  ( 13,008 )
Changes in operating liabilities
Current contract liabilities 322 5,612
Notes payable ( 34) ( 7,896 )
Accounts payable 25,964 20,766
Accounts payable - related parties ( 50,284 ) 44,459
Other payables ( 10,495) 24,808
Other payables - related parties ( 249 ) 171
Current provisions 58 347
Other non-current liabilities 9,462 -
Cash inflow generated from operations 249,587 8,884
Dividends received 6(7) 2,350 -
Interest received 6,756 2,569
Income tax received 12 -
Interest paid ( 26,876 ) ( 12,569 )
Income tax paid ( 42,281 ) ( 36,987)
Net cash flows from (used in) operating
activities 189,548  ( 38,103 )
(Continued)
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Year ended December 31

Notes 2023 2022
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Increase) decrease in financial assets at amortized
cost - current ($ 361,213 ) $ 47,592
Cash received from disposal of non-current assets 6(31)
held for sale 15,987 -
Cash received from disposal of investments 6(31)
accounted for under equity method 63,570 -
Cash paid for acquisition of property, plant and 6(31)
equipment ( 68,446 ) ( 144,208 )
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 5,479 15,163
Acquisition of intangible assets 6(11) ( 3,604 ) ( 3,251)
Increase in prepayments for equipment ( 11,050 ) ( 18,747 )
(Increase) decrease in guarantee deposits paid ( 117) 5,761
(Increase) decrease in other non-current assets ( 8,563 ) 706
Net cash flows used in investing activities ( 367,957 ) ( 96,984 )
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in short-term borrowings 6(32) 1,863,693 1,619,302
Decrease in short-term borrowings 6(32) ( 1,860,612 ) ( 1,310,240 )
Increase in short-term notes and bills payable 6(32) 270,000 -
Decrease in short-term notes and bills payable 6(32) ( 220,000 ) -
Decrease in other payables 6(32) ( 14,867 ) -
Decrease in other payables - related parties 6(32) - 14,484 )
Payments of lease liabilities 6(32) ( 4,576 ) ( 3,647)
Increase in long-term borrowings 6(32) 7,000 115,704
Decrease in long-term borrowings 6(32) ( 128,722 ) ( 170,024 )
Increase (decrease) in non-controlling interests 6(30) 333,460 ( 26,351)
Net cash flows from financing activities 245,376 210,260
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents ( 31,250) 39,721
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 35,717 114,894
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6(1) 565,971 451,077
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 6(1) $ 601,688 $ 565,971

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated)

1. HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION

(1) FineMat Applied Materials Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated on May 25, 2007 as a
company limited by shares under the provisions of the Company Act of the Republic of China
(R.O.C.) and other relevant regulations. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
herein as the “Group” ) are primarily engaged in the manufacture of electronic components and
computers and its peripherals, duplication of data storage media, wholesale of electronic materials,
secondary processing of steel materials, and other metal products, microwave and semiconductor

devices and provide services for precision equipment clearing and recycling.
(2) The common shares of the Company have been listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange since November

25, 2019.

2. THE DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUANCE OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND PROCEDURES FOR AUTHORIZATION

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on March

14,2024,

3. APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS

(1) Effect of the adoption of new issuances of or amendments to International Financial Reporting

Standards (“IFRS®”) Accounting Standards that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial

Supervisory Commission (“FSC™)

New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC and became effective from

2023 are as follows:

Effective date by
International Accounting
Standards Board
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments (“IASB”)
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Disclosure of accounting policies’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IAS 8, ‘Definition of accounting estimates’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IAS 12, ‘Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities January 1, 2023
arising from a single transaction’
Amendments to IAS 12, ‘International tax reform - pillar two model May 23, 2023
rules’
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The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition
and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

(2) Effect of new issuances of or amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards as endorsed by the FSC but

not yet adopted by the Group

New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC and will become effective from

2024 are as follows:
Effective date by
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments IASB
Amendments to IFRS 16, ‘Lease liability in a sale and leaseback’ January 1, 2024
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Classification of liabilities as current or January 1, 2024
non-current’

Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Non-current liabilities with covenants’ January 1, 2024
Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7, ‘Supplier finance arrangements’ January 1, 2024

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition

and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

(3) IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

New standards, interpretations and amendments issued by IASB but not yet included in the IFRS
Accounting Standards as endorsed by the FSC are as follows:

Effective date by
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments IASB
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, “Sale or contribution of assets To be determined by
between an investor and its associate or joint venture’ IASB
IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to [FRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2023
Amendment to IFRS 17, ‘Initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 — January 1, 2023
comparative information’
Amendments to IAS 21, ‘Lack of exchangeability’ January 1, 2025

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition

and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

4. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless
otherwise stated.

-126-



(1) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC® Interpretations, and SIC®
Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the FSC (collectively referred herein as the
“IFRSs”).

(2) Basis of preparation

A. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

B. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 5, ‘Critical accounting judgements, estimates and key sources of

assumption uncertainly’.

(3) Basis of consolidation

A. Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements:

(a) All subsidiaries are included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Subsidiaries are
all entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Consolidation
of subsidiaries begins from the date the Group obtains control of the subsidiaries and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiaries.

(b) Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains or losses on transactions between
company within the Group are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(c) Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to
the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(d) Changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in the parent losing
control of the subsidiary (transactions with non-controlling interests) are accounted for as
equity transactions, i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of

the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity.
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(e) When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the Group remeasures any investment retained

in the former subsidiary at its fair value. That fair value is regarded as the fair value on initial

recognition of a financial asset or the cost on initial recognition of the associate or joint venture.

Any difference between fair value and carrying amount is recognized in profit or loss. All

amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary

are reclassified to profit or loss on the same basis as would be required if the related assets or

liabilities were disposed of. That is, when the Group loses control of a subsidiary, all gains or

losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary

should be reclassified from equity to profit or loss, if such gains or losses would be reclassified

to profit or loss when the related assets or liabilities are disposed of.

B. Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements:

Ownership (%)

Business December 31, December 31,
Name of investor Name of subsidiary activities 2023 2022 Note
FineMat Applied Sense Pad TECH. Professional investment 100.00 100.00 -
Materials Co., CO., LTD.
Ltd. (“Sense Pad”)
(“FineMat™)
FineMat Applied HTC & Solartech Professional investment 73.73 73.73 -
Materials Co., Service (Samoa)
Ltd. Corporation
(“FineMat™) (“HTC”)
FineMat Applied WAVE POWER Manufacure and sales of 37.35 41.09 Note
Materials Co., TECHNOLOGY microwaves and
Ltd. INC. semiconductor
(“FineMat™) (“WAVE POWER”) components
FineMat Applied ETCH HOME Manufacture and sales of 90.81 90.81 -
Materials Co., TECHNOLOGY electronic components
Ltd. CO., LTD. and communication
(“FineMat™) (“ETCH HOME”) equipment and
apparatus,
and wholesale and retail
of electronic materials,
telecommunication
apparatus and
machinery and tools
Sense Pad TECH. FineMat Sales of 100.00 100.00 -
CO., LTD. (Shanghai) electronic components,
(“Sense Pad”) Applied Material general instrument and

(“FineMat (Shanghai)”)

electronic materials
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Ownership (%)

Business December 31, December 31,

Name of investor Name of subsidiary activities 2023 2022 Note
HTC & Solartech  Solar Applied Manufacture of 100.00 100.00 -

Service (Samoa)  Materials other metal products,

Corporation Technology electronic components,
(“HTC”) (Shanghai) Co., computers and its

Ltd. peripherals, and sales of
(“Solar (Shanghai)”) electronic materials,

precision equipment
clearing and recycling

HTC & Solartech  FineMat Manufacture of 100.00 100.00 -
Service (Samoa)  (HuangShi) other metal products,
Corporation Applied Material electronic components,

(“HTC”) (“FineMat (HuangShi)”)  computers and its

peripherals, and sales of
electronic materials,
precision equipment
clearing and recycling

ETCH HOME VN ETCH HOME Manufacture and sales of 100.00 100.00 -
TECHNOLOGY TECHNOLOGY electronic components
CO., LTD. COMPANY and communication

(“ETCHHOME”) LTD equipment and

(“VN ETCH HOME”) apparatus, and wholesale
and retail of electronic
materials,
telecommunicati
on apparatus
andmachinery
and tools

(Note) In August 2023, the subsidiary, WAVE POWER, increased its capital. The Group did not
acquire shares proportionally to its interest, which decreased the Group’s ownership
percentage in WAVE POWER from 41.09% to 37.35%. The Group still has control over
WAVE POWER and accordingly, WAVE POWER was included in the consolidated financial
statements.

C. Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements: None.

D. Adjustments for subsidiaries with different balance sheet dates: None.

E. Significant restrictions: None.
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F. Subsidiaries that have non-controlling interest that are material to the Group:
(a) As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the non-controlling interest of the Group amounted to
$789,960 and $555,722, respectively. The information on non-controlling interest and
respective subsidiaries is as follows:

Non-controlling interest
December 31, 2023

Principal location Ownership
Name of subsidiary of business Amount (%) Description
WAVE POWER Taiwan $ 652,502 62.65% (Note)
Htc and its subsidiaries Samoa 132,746 26.27% —
ETCH HOME and its 9.19%
subsidiaries Taiwan 4,712 —
5 789.960

Non-controlling interest
December 31, 2022

Principal location Ownership

Name of subsidiary of business Amount (%) Description
WAVE POWER Taiwan $ 389,277 58.91% (Note)
Htc and its subsidiaries Samoa 157,333 26.27% —
ETCH HOME and its

subsidiaries Taiwan 9,112 9.19% —
$ 555,722

(Note) Refer to Note 4(3) B, ‘Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements’

(Note).

(b) Summarized financial information of the subsidiaries:
WAVE POWER TECHNOLOGY INC.

1. Balance sheets

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Current assets $ 818,654 $ 529,375
Non-current assets 275,645 222,041
Current liabilities ( 83,952) ( 119,417)
Non-current liabilities ( 2,060) -
Total net assets $ 1,008,287 $ 631,999
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II. Statements of comprehensive income

Revenue

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Net income

Total comprehensive income

Comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interest

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest

III. Statements of cash flows

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash (used in) provided by investing
activities

Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
$ 411,448 3 437,189
105,211 142,640
18,440) ( 28,878)
$ 86,771 § 113,762
$ 86,771 § 113,762
$ 49,049 §$ 62,987
$ 63,007 $ 44,782
For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022
$ 160,134 $ 21,313
384,423) 31,623
287,919 ( 77,588)
63,630 ( 24,652)
197,871 222,523
$ 261,501 $ 197,871

Htc & Solartech Service (Samoa) Corporation and its subsidiaries

1. Balance sheets

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total net assets
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December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

$ 260,806 $ 226,159
334,412 552,168

84,929) ( 121,274)

9,120) ( 58,146)

$ 501,169 $ 598,907




II. Statements of comprehensive income

Revenue
Profit (loss) before income tax

Income tax expense (

Net income (loss)
Other comprehensive (loss) income,

net of tax (

Total comprehensive income

Comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interest

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest

III. Statements of cash flows

Net cash (used in) provided by operating
activities

Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities

Net cash (used in) provided by financing
activities

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
$ 91,173 $ 128,089
50,107 ( 1,290)
8,704) ( 1,693)
41,403 ( 2,983)
9,237) 6,556
$ 32,166 $ 3,573
$ 9,541 § 939
$ - $ -
For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022
($ 57,054) $ 1,949
45,309 ( 17,893)
35,051) 81,193
46,796) 65,249
126,921 61,672
$ 80,125 $ 126,921

ETCH HOME TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD., and its subsidiaries

1. Balance sheets

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total net assets
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December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

$ 90,789 $ 164,987
168,917 180,500

203,012) ( 223,679)

16,059) ( 33,501)

$ 40,635 $ 88,307




I1. Statements of comprehensive income

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022

Revenue $ 112,410 $ 130,926
Loss before income tax ($ 59,346) ($ 40,760)
Income tax benefit 13,217 6,445
Net loss ( 46,129) ( 34,315)
Other comprehensive (loss) income,

net of tax ( 1,544) 595
Total comprehensive loss ($ 47,673) ($ 33,720)
Comprehensive loss attributable to

non-controlling interest ($ 4,401) (8 3,931)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest ~ $ - 8 -

III. Statements of cash flows

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022

Net cash (used in) provided by operating

activities ($ 67,097) $ 64,252
Net cash used in investing activities ( 8,560) ( 165,805)
Net cash provided by financing activities 24,080 163,351
(Decrease) increase in cash and

cash equivalents ( 51,577) 61,798
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

()fyear 80,255 18,457
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ~ § 28,678 $ 80,255

(4) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, which is the
Company’s functional currency.

A. Foreign currency transactions and balances

(a) Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

(b) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end are re-
translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences

arising upon re-translation at the balance sheet date are recognized in profit or loss.
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(c) Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value
through profit or loss are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet
date; their translation differences are recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value through other comprehensive
income are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date; their
translation differences are recognized in other comprehensive income. However, non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are not measured at fair
value are translated using the historical exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

(d) All other foreign exchange gains and losses based on the nature of those transactions are

presented in the statement of comprehensive income within ‘other gains and losses’.
B. Translation of foreign operations

(a) The operating results and financial position of all the group entities that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

I. Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange
rate at the date of that balance sheet;
II. Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates of that period; and
III. All resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(b) When the foreign operation partially disposed of or sold is a subsidiary, cumulative exchange
differences that were recorded in other comprehensive income are proportionately transferred
to the non-controlling interest in this foreign operation. In addition, even when the Group
retains partial interest in the former foreign subsidiary after losing control of the former foreign
subsidiary, such transactions should be accounted for as disposal of all interest in the foreign

operation.

(5) Classification of current and non-current items

A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets; otherwise they are

classified as non-current assets:

(a) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realized, or are intended to be
sold or consumed within the normal operating cycle;

(b) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;

(c) Assets that are expected to be realized within 12 months from the balance sheet date;
(d) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are to

be exchanged or used to settle liabilities more than 12 months after the balance sheet date.

-134-



B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities; otherwise they

are classified as non-current liabilities:

(a) Liabilities that are expected to be settled within the normal operating cycle;

(b) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;

(c) Liabilities that are to be settled within 12 months from the balance sheet date;

(d) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than 12
months after the balance sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the

counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its

classification.

(6) Cash equivalents

A. Cash equivalents refer to short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
B. Time deposits that meet the definition above and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term

cash commitment in operations are classified as cash equivalents.

(7) Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost are those that meet all of the following criteria:

A. The objective of the Group’s business model is achieved by collecting contractual cash flow.

B. The assets’ contractual cash flow represent solely payments of principal and interest.

(8) Accounts and notes receivable

A. Accounts and notes receivable entitle the Group a legal right to receive consideration in exchange
for transferred goods or rendered services.
B. The short-term accounts and notes receivable without bearing interest are subsequently measured

at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(9) Impairment of financial assets

For financial assets at amortized cost, at each reporting date, the Group recognizes the impairment
provision for 12 months expected credit losses if there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition or recognizes the impairment provision for the lifetime expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) if such credit risk has increased since initial recognition after taking into
consideration all reasonable and verifiable information that includes forecasts. On the other hand, for
accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing component, the Group recognizes the
impairment provision for lifetime ECLs.

(10) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from

the financial asset expire.
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(11) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted-average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labor, other direct costs and related production overheads (allocated based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. The item by item approach is used in applying the
lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. When the cost of inventory is lower than net realized value, a write-down is
provided and recognized in operating costs. If the circumstances that caused the write-down cease
to exist, such that all or part of the write-down is no longer needed, it should be reversed to that

extent and recognized as deduction of operating costs.

(12) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use,
and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair

value less costs to sell.

(13) Investments accounted for using the equity method / associates

A. Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. In
general, it is presumed that the investor has significant influence, if an investor holds, directly or
indirectly 20 percent or more of the voting power of the investee. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method and are initially recognized at cost.

B. The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognized in profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognized
in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

C. When changes in an associate’s equity do not arise from profit or loss or other comprehensive
income of the associate and such changes do not affect the Group’s ownership percentage of the
associate, the Group recognizes the Group’s share of change in equity of the associate in ‘capital
reserves’ in proportion to its ownership.

D. Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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E. When the Group disposes its investment in an associate and loses significant influence over this
associate, the amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to the
associate, are reclassified to profit or loss, on the same basis as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of. If it retains significant influence over this associate, the
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to the associate are
reclassified to profit or loss proportionately in accordance with the aforementioned approach.

(14) Property, plant and equipment

A. Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Borrowing costs incurred during the
construction period are capitalized.

B. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

C. Property, plant and equipment apply cost model and are depreciated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives. Each part of an item of property,
plant, and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item must
be depreciated separately.

D. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year-end. If expectations for the assets’ residual values and useful
lives differ from previous estimates or the patterns of consumption of the assets’ future economic
benefits embodied in the assets have changed significantly, any change is accounted for as a
change in estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors’, from the date of the change. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

are as follows:

Asset name Useful lives
Buildings and structures 3 ~ 50 years
Machinery and equipment 2 ~ 15 years
Instruments and equipment 2 ~ 10 years
Transportation equipment 3 ~ 15 years
Office equipment 2 ~ 30 years
Other equipment 2 ~ 12 years

(15) Leasing arrangements (lessee) —right-of-use assets/lease liabilities

A. Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group. For short-term leases or leases of low-
value assets, lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.
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B. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the remaining lease payments at the
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing interest rate. Lease payments
are comprised of fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable. The Group subsequently
measures the lease liability at amortized cost using the interest method and recognizes interest
expense over the lease term. The lease liability is remeasured and the amount of remeasurement
is recognized as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset when there are changes in the lease term
or lease payments and such changes do not arise from contract modifications.

C. At the commencement date, the right-of-use asset is stated at cost comprising the following:

(a) The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

(b) Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date; and

(c) Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee.

The right-of-use asset is measured subsequently using the cost model and is depreciated from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the asset’s useful life or the end of the lease term.
When the lease liability is remeasured, the amount of remeasurement is recognized as an

adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

(16) Investment property

An investment property is stated initially at its cost and measured subsequently using the cost model.
Investment property is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 15 ~ 50

years.

(17) Intangible assets

A. Computer software
Computer software is stated initially at cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of 3 ~ 10 years.

B. Goodwill
Goodwill arises in a business combination accounted for by applying the acquisition method.

C. Other intangible assets
Expertise and customer relation acquired in business combination are recognized at fair value at
the acquisition date and are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated lives of 7~ 17

year.

(18) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the recoverable amounts of those assets where there
is an indication that they are impaired. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell or value in use. When the circumstances or reasons for
recognizing impairment loss for an asset in prior years no longer exist or diminish, the impairment
loss is reversed. The increased carrying amount due to reversal should not be more than what the

depreciated or amortized historical cost would have been if the impairment had not been recognized.
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(19) Borrowings

Borrowings comprise long-term and short-term bank borrowings. Borrowings are recognized
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

(20) Notes and accounts payable

A. Accounts payable are liabilities for purchases of raw materials, goods or services and notes
payable are those resulting from operating and non-operating activities.
B. The short-term notes and accounts payable without bearing interest are subsequently measured

at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(21) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is either discharged
or cancelled or expires.

(22) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and reported in the net amount in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle

on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
(23) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated. Provisions are measured at
the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation on the balance
sheet date, which is discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

(24) Employee benefits

A. Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in respect of service rendered by employees in a period and should be recognized as

expense in that period when the employees render service.
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B. Pensions
For defined contribution plans, the contributions are recognized as pension expense when they
are due on an accrual basis. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent of a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments.

C. Employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration
Employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration are recognized as expense and liability,
provided that such recognition is required under legal or constructive obligation and those
amounts can be reliably estimated. Any difference between the resolved amounts and the
subsequently actual distributed amounts is accounted for as changes in estimates. If employee
compensation is paid by shares, the Group calculates the number of shares based on the closing
price at the previous day of the board meeting resolution.

(25) Income tax

A. The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
items recognized directly in equity, in which cases the tax is recognized in other comprehensive
income or equity.

B. The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company operates and generates
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in accordance with applicable tax regulations. It establishes provisions where
appropriate based on the amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. An additional tax is
levied on the unappropriated retained earnings and is recorded as income tax expense in the year
the stockholders resolve to retain the earnings.

C. Deferred tax is recognized, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated balance sheet. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax
is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the
deferred tax liability is settled.

D. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. At each balance sheet

date, unrecognized and recognized deferred tax assets are reassessed.
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E. Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on the balance sheet when the entity has the legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and they are levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same entity or different entities that intend to settle on
a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

F. A deferred tax asset shall be recognized for the unused tax losses to the extent that it is possible

that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credits can be utilized.

(26) Share capital

A. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or stock options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

B. Where the Company repurchases the Company’s equity share capital that has been issued, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is
deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders. Where such shares are
subsequently reissued, the difference between their book value and any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects,

is included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
(27) Dividends
Cash dividends are recorded as liabilities in the Company’s financial statements in the period in
which they are resolved by the Board of Directors. Stock dividends are recorded as stock dividends

to be distributed in which they are resolved by the Company’s shareholders, and are reclassified to

ordinary shares on the effective date of new shares issuance.

(28) Revenue recognition

A. Sales of goods

(a) Sales are recognized when control of the products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion to sell the products, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the customer has
accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, or the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

(b) Sales revenue is recognized based on the contract price, net of the estimated sales taxes,
returns and discounts. For collection terms for sales transactions, as the time interval between
the transfer of committed goods or service and the payment of customer does not exceed one

year, the Group does not adjust the transaction price to reflect the time value of money.
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(c) A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the
payment is due.

B. Sales of service

(a) The Group provides equipment cleaning services. Revenue from providing services is
recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. For fixed-price
contracts, revenue is recognized based on the actual costs performed to the end of the
reporting period relative to the total estimated service costs.

(b) The Group’s estimate about revenue, costs and progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is subject to a revision whenever there is a change in circumstances.
Any increase or decrease in revenue or costs due to an estimate revision is reflected in profit
or loss during the period when the management become aware of the changes in

circumstances.

(29) Government grants

Government grants are recognized at their fair value only when there is reasonable assurance that
the Group will comply with any conditions attached to the grants and the grants will be received.
Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which

the Group recognizes expenses for the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

(30) Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker. The Group’s chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND KEY SOURCES OF ASSUMPTION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of these parent company only financial statements requires management to make critical
judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies and make critical assumptions and estimates
concerning future events. Assumptions and estimates may differ from the actual results and are
continually evaluated and adjusted based on historical experience and other factors. Such assumptions
and estimates have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year; and the related information is addressed below:

(1) Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

None.
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(2) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

A. Valuation of accounts receivable
(a) The Group considers customers’ characteristics, incorporates the forecast ability, historical
collection experience and economic situation, financial condition of the region where the
customer is located, and applies under the simplified approach using a provision matrix to
estimate the expected credit losses. Since the amount of impairment loss is measured and
calculated based on the loss rates established for that assets, significant impairment losses
may incur if the future expected credit losses are greater than expected.
(b) As of December 31, 2023, the carrying amount of accounts receivable (including related
parties) amounted to $ 271,863.
B. Evaluation of inventories
(a) As inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, the Group must
determine the net realizable value of inventories on balance sheet date using judgements and
estimates. Due to the rapid technology innovation, the Group evaluates the amounts of normal
inventory consumption, obsolete inventories or inventories without market selling value on
balance sheet date, and writes down the cost of inventories to the net realizable value. Such
an evaluation of inventories is principally based on the demand for the products within the
specified period in the future. Therefore, there might be material changes to the evaluation.
(b) As of December 31, 2023, the carrying amount of inventories amounted to $ 244,710.
6. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31,2023  December 31, 2022

Cash:
Cash on hand $ 649 $ 738
Demand deposits 533,734 547,605
534383 $ 548,343
Cash Equivalents:
Time deposits 67,305 17,628
$ 601,688 $ 565,971

A. The Group transacts with a variety of financial institutions all with high credit quality to disperse
credit risk, so it expects that the probability of counterparty default is remote.
B. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group has no cash and cash equivalents pledged to others.
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(2) Financial assets at amortized cost

December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022

Current items:

Time deposits with a maturity of over three months ~ $ 320,000 $ -
Pledged time deposits 6,749 10,836
326,749 $ 10,836

Non-current items:

Pledged time deposits $ 50,000 $ 4,700

A. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represents
the financial assets at amortized cost held by the Group was the book value.

B. Details of the Group’s financial assets at amortized cost pledged to others as collateral as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 are provided in Note 8, ‘Pledged assets’.

C. Information relating to credit risk of financial assets at amortized cost is provided in Note 12(2),
‘Financial instrument’. The counterparties of the Group’s investments in certificates of deposits

are financial institutions with high credit quality, so the Group expects that the probability of
counterparty default is remote.

(3) Notes and accounts receivable, net

December 31,2023  December 31, 2022

Notes receivable $ 4,073 $ 3,128
Accounts receivable $ 280,416 $ 399,116
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts ( 8,553) ( 3,039)

$ 271,863 $ 396,077

A. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group’s notes receivable were not past due.

B. The ageing analysis of the Group’s notes and accounts receivable is as follows:

December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022

Not past due $ 253,748 $ 372,186
Up to 30 days 3,725 15,991
31 to 90 days 10,898 8,679
91 to 180 days 4,590 435
Over 181 days 7,455 1,825

$ 280,416 $ 399,116

The above ageing analysis was based on past due date.
C. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, accounts receivable and notes receivable were all from

contracts with customers. As of January 1, 2022, the balance of receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to $ 306,541.
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D. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group did not hold any collateral as security for notes
receivable and accounts receivable.

E. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group has no accounts and notes receivable pledged to
others.

F. Information relating to credit risk of notes receivable and accounts receivable is provided in Note

12(2), ‘Financial instruments’.

(4) Other receivables
December 31,2023  December 31, 2022
Receivables from disposal of non-current assets $ 69,512 $ -
held for sale
Receivables from disposal of investments accounted 42,379 -
for under equity method
Receivables from technical service 21,632 -
Business tax refund receivable 1,928 3,186
Others 1,059 1,974

$ 136,510 § 5,160

(5) Inventories

December 31, 2023

Allowance for market

Cost price decline Book value
Merchandise $ 8,765 ($ 57) $ 8,708
Raw materials 179,746 ( 37,422) 142,324
Supplies 2,757 ( 742) 2,015
Work in progress 52,622 ( 2,438) 50,184
Finished goods 45,525 ( 4,046) 41,479
$ 289,415 ($ 44,705) $ 244,710

December 31, 2022

Allowance for market

Cost price decline Book value
Merchandise $ 12,169 ($ 57) $ 12,112
Raw materials 186,681 ( 20,395) 166,286
Supplies 2,943 ( 508) 2,435
Work in progress 55,041 ( 1,060) 53,981
Finished goods 51,012 ( 4,434) 46,578
$ 307,846 ($ 26,454) $ 281,392
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The cost of inventories recognized as expense for the year:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Cost of goods sold $ 905,107 $ 930,020
Allowance for inventory market price decline 18,251 4,051
Loss on discarding of inventory 77 -
Underapplied fixed manufacturing overhead - 1,184
Revenue from sales of scraps ( 9,392) ( 5,808)
$ 914,043 § 929,447

(6) Non-current assets held for sale, net

A. In August 2023, the Board of Directors of the Group resolved to dispose coating production line

and etching production line equipment of the subsidiary, FineMat (HuangShi) Applied Materials

Co., Ltd., to Huangshi Quanyang Photoelectric Technology Co., Ltd.. Assets related to the

aforementioned transactions were classified as non-current assets held for sale in August 2023.

The abovementioned transaction was completed in December 2023, and the related gain on

disposal of $1,266 was recognized (listed as “Other gains and losses”). The proceeds from disposal
amounted to $117,279, of which $101,292 has not yet been collected as of December 31, 2023

(listed as “Other receivables” and “Other non-current assets”).

B. Movements in non-current assets held for sale were as follows:

Machinery and office equipment

For the year ended
December 31, 2023

At January 1

Transfers from property, plant and equipment
Disposal of non-current assets held for sale
Net currency exchange differences

At December 31

There was no such situation as of December 31, 2022.
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(7) Investments accounted for under the equity method

A. Movements in investments accounted for under equity method are as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022

At January 1 $ 149,782 $ 60,770
Disposal of investments accounted for under

equity method (Note 1) ( 153,864) -
Share of loss of associates and joint

ventures accounted for under equity method ( 7,909) ( 14,738)
Earnings distribution of investments accounted

for under equity method ( 2,350) -
Changes in capital reserves — Adjustment of

retained earnings due to change in interests of

subsidiaries (Note 2) - 129,904
Other equity interest - financial statements

translation differences of foreign operations 25,415 ( 26,154)
At December 31 $ 11,074 § 149,782

(Note 1) On July 28, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Group resolved to sell 40.36% equity
interest in Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics Technology Co., Ltd. held by the
subsidiary, Solar Applied Materials Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., to Magic Star
Technology (Ningbo) Co., Ltd. for $105,949 (RMB 24,000). The Group recognized net
change in equity of associates to its ownership (listed as “Capital reserves”) and the
decrease in non-controlling interest amounting to $95,778 and $34,126, respectively, and
the related gain on disposal of investment of $81,111 (listed as “Other gains and losses”).
As of December 31, 2023, the uncollected portion of the relevant price amounted to
$42,379 (listed as "Other receivables").

(Note 2)Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics Technology Co., Ltd. (“Huangshi Quanyang
Optoelectronics”) increased its capital for the year ended December 31, 2022. The Group
did not acquire shares proportionally to its interest, which decreased the Group’s
ownership percentage in Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics from 50.8475% to
40.36%. The Group recognized the change in the investment accounted for under equity
method not proportionate to its ownership (listed as “Capital reserves”) and an increase

in non-controlling interest amounting to $95,778 and $34,126, respectively.

B. Details of investments accounted for under equity method:

Name of investee companies December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Associates
Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics Technology $ - S 138,629
Co., Ltd. (Note)
Galloptech International Company Limited 11,074 11,153
$ 11,074 § 149,782
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(Note) The Group held a 40.36% equity interest in Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics.
Considering the quantity and distribution of voting rights between the Group and other
shareholders, evaluating the control that the Group and other shareholders have over the
market operation resources in the local country and assessing the operational policy-
making process, there is no specific indicator which indicates that the Group has control
over the investee and the Group has no current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee. Thus, the Group has no control, but only has significant influence, over the

investee.

C. The summarized financial information of the associates that are material to the Group is as follows:
(a) Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics Technology Co., Ltd.
Balance sheet
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Current assets $ - 3 281,950
Non-current assets - 233,323
Current liabilities - ( 109,451)
Non-current liabilities - -
Total net assets $ - 9 405,822
Share in associate’s net assets $ -3 163,790
Intangible assets (Note) - ( 25,161)
Carrying amount of the associate $ -3 138,629

(Note) In August 2022, the Group agreed to sell and transfer the intellectual property rights
related to the etching technology developed by FineMat (HuangShi) to Huangshi
Quanyang Optoelectronics.

Statement of comprehensive income

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Revenue $ 76,895 $ 122,287
Loss for the year (3 24,606) ($ 39,537)
Total comprehensive loss for the year $ 24,606) ($ 39,537)
Dividends received from associates $ - 3 -

(b) Based on the Group’s assessment, Galloptech International Company Limited was immaterial
to the Group, and therefore the disclosure of its financial information is not required.

D. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the share of profit (loss) of associates and joint
ventures accounted for under equity method was ($7,909) and ($14,738), respectively, which were
assessed based on the investees’ financial statements audited by independent auditors for the
corresponding periods.

E. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, no investments accounted for under equity method held by
the Group were pledged to others.
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. Property, plant and equipment of the Group were all for its own use as of December 31, 2023 and

2022.

. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, no borrowing cost was capitalized as part of

property, plant and equipment.

. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, no impairment loss was recognized as part of

property, plant and equipment.

. Information about property, plant and equipment that were pledged to others as collateral as of

December 31, 2023 and 2022 is provided in Note 8, ‘Pledged assets’.

(9) Lease transactions —lessee

A.The Group leases various assets including land, warehouse and business vehicles. Rental contracts

are typically made for periods of 1 to 50 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose

covenants.

B. The carrying amount of right-of-use assets and the depreciation charge are as follows:

Carrying amounts:

December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022

Land use rights $ 57,141 $ 59,651
Transportation equipment (Business vehicles) 6,570 4,842
$ 63,711 $ 64,493

Depreciation charge:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Land use rights $ 1,654 $ 1,614
Buildings and structures 686 -
Transportation equipment (Business vehicles) 3,988 3,657
$ 6,328 $ 5,271

C. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the additions to right-of-use assets were $10,861

D.

E.

and $481, respectively.

The information on income and expense accounts relating to lease contracts is as follows:
For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022
Items affecting profit or loss
Interest expense on lease liabilities $ 213§ 90
Expense on short-term lease contracts 5,363 11,004
Gain from lease modification ( 38) -

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group’s total cash outflow for leases were
$10,152 and $14,741, respectively.
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F. Information about right-of-use assets that were pledged to others as collateral as of December 31,
2023 and 2022 is provided in Note 8, ‘Pledged assets’.
(10) Investment property, net

Movements of investment property are as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

Buildings and structures 2023 2022
At January 1
Cost $ 30,454 § 30,454
Accumulated depreciation ( 2,432) ( 2,126)
Accumulated impairment ( 27,438) ( 27,438)
$ 584 § 890
Net value at January 1 $ 584 § 890
Transfers from property, plant and equipment 21,772 -
Depreciation ( 490) ( 306)
Net currency exchange differences 321 -
Net value at December 31 $ 22,187 $ 584
At December 31
Cost $ 53,353  § 30,454
Accumulated depreciation ( 4,370) ( 2,432)
Accumulated impairment ( 27,438) ( 27,438)
$ 21,545 ' $ 584

A. Rental income from investment property and direct operating expenses arising from investment
property are shown below:
For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022

Rental income from the lease of the investment

property (listed as “Sales revenue™) $ 595 8 .
Direct operating expenses arising from the

investment property that generated income

during the year (Note) $ 185 $ -
Direct operating expenses arising from the

investment property that did not generate

rental income during the year (Note) $ 305 $ 306

(Note) Listed as “Other gains and losses”.

B. The fair values of the investment property held by the Group as at December 31, 2023 and 2022
were $54,542 and $15,358, respectively, which were valued by referring to the actual price
registration and discounted recoverable amounts of future rent income. Valuations were
categorized within Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

C. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, no borrowing cost was capitalized as part of

investment property.
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D. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, no impairment loss was recognized as part of
investment property.
E. Information about investment property that was pledged to others as collateral as of December
31,2023 and 2022 is provided in Note 8, ‘Pledged assets’.
(11) Intangible assets

Customer
Software  Goodwill Expertise relations Total
At January 1, 2023
Cost $ 25096 $ 11,896 $ 44,497 $ 13,473 $ 94,962

Accumulated amortization ( 11,720) - (15362) ( 1,916) ( 28,998)

$ 13,376 $ 11,896 §$ 29,135 § 11,557 § 65,964

2023
At January 1 $ 13,376 $ 11,896 $ 29,135 § 11,557 $ 65,964
Additions 3,604 - - - 3,604
Amortization (  4,836) - ( 6,357) ( 792) ( 11,985)
Net currency exchange differences ( 26) - - - ( 26)
At December 31 $ 12,118 $ 11,896 §$ 22,778 § 10,765 § 57,557
At December 31, 2023

Cost $ 28,661 $ 11,896 $ 44,497 § 13,473 § 98,527

Accumulated amortization ( 16,543) ( 21,719) ( 2,708) ( 40,970)
$ 12,118 $ 11,896 §$ 22,778 § 10,765 $ 57,557

Customer
Software  Goodwill Expertise relations Total
At January 1, 2022

Cost $ 21,762 $ 11,896 $ 44,497 § 13,473 § 91,628
Accumulated amortization ( 6,964) - (9,005) ( 1,123) ( 17,092)

$ 14,798 $ 11,896 §$ 35492 § 12,350 § 74,536

2022
At January 1 $ 14,798 $ 11,896 §$ 35492 § 12,350 $ 74,536
Additions 3,251 - - - 3,251
Amortization ( 4,745) - (6357 ( 793) ( 11,895)
Net currency exchange differences 72 - - - 72
At December 31 $ 13,376 $ 11,896 $ 29,135 § 11,557 §$ 65,964
At December 31, 2022

Cost $ 25,006 $ 11,896 $ 44,497 § 13,473 §$ 94,962

Accumulated amortization ( 11,720) ( 15,362) ( 1,916) ( 28,998)
$ 13,376 $ 11,896 §$ 29,135 § 11,557 §$ 65,964
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A. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, no borrowing cost was capitalized as part of
intangible assets.

B. Details of amortization on intangible assets are as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Manufacturing expense $ 278§ 223
Selling expenses 33 30
General and administrative expenses 8,449 8,952
Research and development expenses 3,225 2,690
$ 11,985 $ 11,895

C. The recoverable amount of intangible assets acquired from business combinations was determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial forecasts estimated by the management covering a five-year period as well as the
following estimated growth rates when the period of cash-flow over a five-year period. The
recoverable amount of all cash-generating units calculated using the value-in-use exceeded their
carrying amount, so intangible assets acquired from business combinations was not impaired. The

key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows

Gross profit margin ~ Growth rate Discount Rate
For the year ended December 31, 2023 49% ~ 53% 10% 17.91%
For the year ended December 31, 2022 48% ~ 50% 12% ~ 23% 15.47%

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on its expectations of market
development. The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included

in industry reports. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant operating segments.
(12) Other non-current assets

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Receivables from disposal of non-current assets $ 31,780 § -

held for sale
Receivables from technical service 10,815 -
Others 2,894 5,146
$ 45,489 $ 5,146

-154-



(13) Short-term borrowings

Nature December 31, 2023 Interest rate range Collateral
Bank unsecured bank borrowings $ 364,095 1.91%~6.72% None
Bank secured bank borrowings 150,000 0.5%~2.36% Note
$ 514,095
Nature December 31, 2022 Interest rate range Collateral
Bank unsecured bank borrowings $ 388,617 1.725%~5.79% None
Bank secured bank borrowings 122,000 1.75%~2.229% Note
$ 510,617
(Note) Information about the collateral for the above borrowings is provided in Note 8, ‘Pledged
assets’.

For more information about interest expenses recognized by the Group for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, refer to Note 6(25), ‘Finance cost’.
(14) Short-term notes and bills payable

Nature December 31, 2023 Interest rate range Collateral
Commercial papers payable $ 50,000 1.45%~1.78% None

There was no such situation for the year ended December 31, 2022.

A. The above commercial papers were issued and unsecured by China Bills Finance Corporation
and MEGA BILLS FINANCE CO., LTD..

B. For more information about interest expenses recognized by the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2023, refer to Note 6(25), ‘Finance cost’.

(15) Other payables

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Wages and salaries and bonuses payable $ 40,009 § 24,053

Employees’ compensation and directors’
remuneration payable 15,675 32,420
Accounts payable financing 15,195 30,493
Equipment payable 12,899 9,915
Others 44 011 54,685
$ 127,789  $ 151,566
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(16) Long-term borrowings

Interest
Nature Borrowing period rate range  Collateral December 31, 2023
NTD secured 2020.7.27~2026.9.24  1.2896%~  Note $ 134,179
borrowings 2.23%
Foreign currency RMB 3,794 thousand 4.5%~ Note 22,474

secured borrowings ~ VND 4,866,350 thousand  7.53%
2021.1.25~2026.1.25

NTD unsecured 2020.12.15~2025.12.15  1.22%~ None 65,288
borrowings 2.10%
Foreign currency RMB 9,400 thousand 4.9076%~ None
unsecured borrowings 2021.3.23~2024.3.7 5.1912% 40,668
262,609
Less: Current portion ( 157,817)
$ 104,792
Interest
Nature Borrowing period rate range Collateral December 31, 2022
NTD secured 2020.7.27~2026.9.24 1.1575%~ Note $ 204,558
borrowings 1.8%
Foreign currency RMB 5,481 thousand 4.75%~ Note 32,141

secured borrowings ~ VND 6,216,477 thousand 7.53%
2021.1.25~2026.1.25

NTD unsecured 2020.12.15~2025.12.15  1.095%~ None 80,432
borrowings 1.975%
Foreign currency USD 900 thousand 3.2955%~ None
unsecured borrowings RMB 9,400 thousand 6.12%
2020.12.21~2024.3.22 69,106
386,237
Less: Current portion ( 126,658)
$ 259,579

(Note) Information about the collateral for the above borrowings is provided in Note 8, ‘Pledged
assets’.

For more information about interest expenses recognized by the Group for the years ended

December 31, 2023 and 2022, refer to Note 6(25), ‘Finance cost’.

(17) Pensions

Effective July 1, 2005, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries have established a defined
contribution pension plan (the “New Plan”) under the Labor Pension Act (the “Act”), covering all
regular employees with R.O.C. nationality. Under the New Plan, the Company and its domestic
subsidiaries contribute monthly an amount based on 6% of the employees’ monthly salaries and
wages to the employees’ individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labor Insurance. The benefits
accrued are paid monthly or in lump sum upon termination of employment. The other subsidiaries

are subject to local government sponsored defined contribution plan. In accordance with related
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laws of the respective local government, the independent pension fund of employees is administered
by the government. Other than the monthly contributions, these subsidiaries do not have further
obligations. The pension costs under the defined contribution pension plans of the Group for the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were $10,440 and $9,521, respectively.

(18) Share capital

A. Movements in the number of the Company’s ordinary shares outstanding are as follows (in
thousands of shares):
For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022
Beginning and ending balance 65,788 65,788

B. Treasury stocks

(a) Reason for share reacquisition and movements in the number of the Company’s treasury
stocks are as follows (in thousands of shares):

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Beginning and ending Beginning and ending
Reason for reacquisition balance balance
To be reissued to employees 602 602

(b) Pursuant to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act, the number of shares bought back as
treasury share should not exceed 10% of the number of the Company’s issued and
outstanding shares and the amount bought back should not exceed the sum of retained
earnings, paid-in capital in excess of par value and realized capital surplus. As of December
31,2023 and 2022, the balances of treasury shares purchased by the Company both amounted
to $24,187.

(c¢) Pursuant to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act, treasury shares should not be pledged as

collateral and is not entitled to dividends before it is reissued.

(d) Pursuant to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act, treasury shares should be reissued to the
employees within 5 years from the reacquisition date and shares not reissued within the 5
years period are to be retired.

C. As of December 31, 2023, the Company’s authorized capital was $1,000,000 (including $60,000

reserved for employee stock options), and the paid-in capital was $663,898, consisting of 66,390

thousand shares of ordinary stock, with a par value of $10 (in dollars) per share, which were

issued in instalments. All proceeds from shares issued have been collected.
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(19) Capital reserve

Pursuant to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital surplus arising from paid-in capital in excess of par
value on issuance of common stocks and donations can be used to cover accumulated deficit or to
issue new stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their share ownership, provided that the
Company has no accumulated deficit. Further, the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act requires that
the amount of capital surplus to be capitalized mentioned above should not exceed 10% of the paid-
in capital each year. However, capital surplus should not be used to cover accumulated deficit unless

the legal reserve is insufficient. Movements in capital surplus are as follows:

Difference between

consideration and Changes in
carrying amount ownership Net change
For the year ended Share of subsidiaries interests in in equity of
December 31, 2023 premium  acquired or disposed  subsidiaries associates Total
At January 1 $ 394,674 $ 12,782 $ 231§ 95,778 '$ 503,465
Adjustments for changes in capital
reserve of investee companies - - 325 - 325
Changes in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures accounted for
under equity method - - - ( 95,778) ( 95,778)
Adjustment of capital reserve due to
change in interest of subsidiaries - - 118,960 - 118,960
At December 31 $ 394,674 $ 12,782 § 119,516 $ - $ 526972
Difference between
consideration and Changes in
carrying amount ownership Net change
For the year ended Share of subsidiaries interests in in equity of
December 31, 2022 premium  acquired or disposed  subsidiaries associates Total
At January 1 $ 394,674 $ -3 2,027 $ - $ 396,701
Transactions with non-controlling
interests shareholders of
subsidiaries - 12,782 - - 12,782
Adjustments for changes in capital
reserve of investee companies - - 274 - 274

Changes in subsidiaries, associates

and joint ventures accounted for

under equity method - - - 95,778 95,778
Adjustments for changes in retained

earnings of investee companies - - ( 2,070) - ( 2,070)

At December 31 $ 394,674 § 12,782 § 231 $ 95,778 $§ 503,465
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(20) Retained earnings

A. The legal reserve shall be exclusively used to cover accumulated deficit, to issue new stocks, or
to distribute cash to shareholders in proportion to their share ownership. The use of legal reserve
for the issuance of stocks or each dividends to shareholders in proportion to their share ownership
is permitted provided that the balance of such reserve exceeds 25% of the Company’s paid-in
capital.

B. Under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the current year’s earnings, if any, shall first be
used to pay all taxes and offset prior years’ operating losses and then 10% of the remaining
amount shall be set aside as legal reserve, but if legal reserve has accumulated to an amount
equal to the paid-in capital, then legal reserve is no longer required to be set aside. In addition,
after special reserve is set aside or reversed in accordance with relevant regulations, the
remainder along with accumulated unappropriated earnings will be proposed by the Board of
Directors and resolved at the shareholders’ meeting to be distributed as dividends. The
Company’s dividend policy takes into account not only the Company’s current and future
investment environment, capital needs, domestic and foreign competition, and capital budget,
etc. but also the shareholders’ interests, balanced dividends and the Company’s long-term
financial plan, etc. Each year, the appropriation is proposed by the Board of Directors and then
reported to the shareholders’ meeting for approval. The Company is in the growth stage and has
a plan to expand its production lines and capital needs in the coming years, and thus the balanced
dividend policy is adopted to have a sound financial structure and maintain a good capital
adequacy ratio. In addition to appropriating the earnings in accordance with the aforementioned
regulations, the dividend and bonus may be distributed in the form of cash or shares, and if there
are any earnings in the current year, 10% ~ 80% of distributable earnings of the current year shall
be appropriated as dividends and bonuses to shareholders, of which cash dividends shall account
for at least 10% of the total dividends distributed. The Board of Directors of the Company may,
upon resolution adopted by a majority vote at a meeting of the Board of Directors attended by
two-thirds of the total number of directors, distribute dividends and bonus, legal reserve or capital
surplus, in whole or in part, in the form of cash, which shall also be reported at the shareholders’
meeting. The above distribution is not subject to approval by the shareholders.

C. In accordance with the regulations, the Company shall set aside special reserve from the debit
balance on other equity items at the balance sheet date before distributing earnings. When debit
balance on other equity items is reversed subsequently, the reversed amount could be included
in the distributable earnings.

The special reserve previously set aside by the Company on initial application of IFRSs in
accordance with the Order No. Financial-Supervisory-Securities-Corporate-1010012865, dated
April 6, 2012, amounted to $369.

D. On March 18, 2022, the Board of Directors of the Company resolved not to distribute earnings

except for the appropriation of legal reserve and special reserve. On March 14, 2024, the Board

of Directors resolved not to distribute earnings due to loss incurred during the year.
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(21) Operating revenue

A. The Group’s revenue is mainly from sales contracts of products sales, equipment cleaning with
customers and lease, and such revenue is derived from the transfer of goods at a point in time in

the following major product or service lines:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022

Recognize at a point in time:
Metal masks $ 490,470 $ 547,580
Microwave and semiconductor parts 411,448 437,189
Thermal module 117,051 123,909
Optical bonding materials - 10,475
Others 11,087 5,895
1,030,056 1,125,048

Recognize over time:

Semi clean and regeneration process 90,578 125,580
Plant rental income 595 -
91,173 125,580
$ 1,121,229  § 1,250,628

B. The Group has recognized the following revenue-related contract liabilities:
December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022 January 1, 2022
Current contract assets $ 32242 $ 17,866 $ 18,418
Current contract liabilities $ 6,464 $ 6,142 $ 530

For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022

Revenue recognized that was included in the concract
liability balance at the beginning of the year $ 6,054 § 471
(22) Interest income

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Interest income from bank deposits $ 4,506 $ 1,765
Other interest income 2,250 804
$ 6,756 $ 2,569
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(23) Other income

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022

Technical service income $ 26,849 $ 39,351
Government grant income 3,710 2,249
Resale of electricity income 2,707 -
Administrative service income 1,177 1,392
Waste liquid recycling income 428 2,502
Other income 5,276 1,942

$ 40,147  $ 47,436

(24) Other gains and losses

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Gain on disposal of investments $ 81,111 § -
Gain on disposal of non-current assets
held for sale 1,266 -
Gain from lease modification 38 -
(Loss) gain on disposals of property, plant and
equipment ( 10,789) 548
Currency exchange (loss) gain ( 3,404) 7,424
Depreciation charges on investment property ( 490) ( 306)
Other losses ( 2,190) ( 766)
$ 65,542 $ 6,900
(25) Finance costs
For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022
Interest expense:
Bank borrowings $ 24,168 $ 13,309
Other finance expense 1,527 3,130
Lease liabilities 213 90
$ 25,908 $ 16,529
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(26) Expenses by nature

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Operating costs Operating expenses Total
Employee benefit expense $ 158,847 $ 148,798 $ 307,645
Depreciation 93,045 24,939 117,984
Amortization 278 11,707 11,985
$ 252,170 § 185,444 $ 437,614

For the year ended December 31, 2022

Operating costs Operating expenses Total
Employee benefit expense $ 164,818 $ 145843 § 310,661
Depreciation 87,863 25,164 113,027
Amortization 223 11,672 11,895
$ 252,904 $ 182,679 $ 435,583

(27) Employee benefit expense

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Operating costs Operating expenses Total
Wages and salaries $ 131,465 §$ 127,424 $ 258,889
Labour and health insurance fees 12,415 10,119 22,534
Pension costs 5,467 4,973 10,440
Other personnel expenses 9,500 6,282 15,782
$ 158,847 $ 148,798 $ 307,645

For the year ended December 31, 2022

Operating costs Operating expenses Total
Wages and salaries $ 139,583 § 126,523  §$ 266,106
Labour and health insurance fees 10,831 8,188 19,019
Pension costs 5,152 4,369 9,521
Other personnel expenses 9,252 6,763 16,015
$ 164,818 $ 145,843 §$ 310,661

A. In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, a ratio of distributable profit of
the current year shall be distributed as employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration.
The ratio shall be 8%~ 15% for employees’ compensation and shall not be higher than 5% for
directors’ remuneration. Provided that the Company has accumulated deficit, earnings shall be
first used to cover accumulated deficit. Directors’ remuneration is distributed in the form of cash
while employees’ compensation may be distributed in the form of cash or shares. The employees,
including the employees of the Company’s subsidiaries, who meet certain specific requirements
are entitled to receive the above cash or shares. The profit of the current year is the profit before
deducting tax, employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration. The distribution of
employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration is subject to the approval of more than
half of directors present at a meeting where more than two-thirds of the directors are in

attendance and shall also be reported at the shareholders’ meeting.
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B. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, there was no employee’ compensation and
directors’ remuneration. The aforementioned amounts were recognized in salary expenses and
were estimated and accrued based on the earnings of current year and the percentage specified
in the Articles of Incorporation of the Company. As the Company had no profit in 2023 and 2022,
there was no need to estimate and pay remuneration to employees and directors.

Information about employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration of the Company as
resolved at the meeting of Board of Directors will be posted in the “Market Observation Post

System” at the website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.
(28) Income tax
A. Income tax expense:

(a) Components of income tax expense:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022

Current income tax:

Income tax incurred in current year $ 30,990 $ 30,656

Tax on undistributed earnings - 1,520

Prior year income tax over estimation ( 1,284) ( 500)
Total current income tax 29,706 31,676
Deferred income tax:

Origination and reversal of temporary

differences ( 11,980) ( 7,015)

Income tax expense $ 17,726 ' $ 24,661

(b) The income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income is as follows:

For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022

Financial statements translation differences of
foreign operations (S 2,185) § 1,578
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B. Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit:

Tax calculated based on profit before tax

and statutory tax rate

Effects from items disallowed by tax regulation
Change in assessment of realisation of deferred

tax assets
Effect from investment tax credits
Tax on undistributed earnings

Prior year income tax over estimation

Separate taxation
Income tax expense

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
$ 28283 $ 30,206
( 17) ( 1,464)
( 8,170) ( 5,542)
( 2,385) -
- 1,520
( 1,284) ( 500)
1,299 441
$ 17,726  $ 24,661

C. Amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities as a result of temporary differences and tax losses

are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:
Temporary differences:
Financial statements
translation differences of
foreign operations
Allowance for doubtful
accounts
Loss on inventory market
value decline
Loss on investments accounted
for under equity method
Impairment loss
Unrealized loss on foreign
currency exchange
Unrealized warranty provision
expense
Book-tax difference on land cost
Unused compensated absences
Tax losses

2023
Recognized
Recognized in other
in profit comprehensive
January 1 or loss income December 31
$ 2,982 - 2,185 § 5,167
71 - - 71
5,291 3,650 - 8,941
5,908 8,082 - 13,990
2,938 ( 131) - 2,807
34 996 - 1,030
172 11 - 183
9,501 - - 9,501
1 27 - 28
18,202 3,740 - 21,942
$ 45,100 16,375 ' $ 2,185 $ 63,660
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2023

Recognized
Recognized in other
in profit comprehensive
January 1 or loss income December 31
Deferred tax liabilities:
Temporary differences:
Gain on investments accounted ($ 13,362) ($ 6,086) $ - (8 19,448)
for under equity method
Provision for land appreciation tax  ( 209) - - ( 209)
Unrealized gain on foreign
currency exchange ( 542) 514 - ( 28)
Unrealized expense ( 8,110) 1,402 - ( 6,708)
Gain recognized in bargain
purchase transaction ( 1,277) - - ( 1,277)
Government grant income - ( 225) - ( 225)
$ 23,500) ($ 4,395) § - (8 27,895)
$ 21,600 § 11,980 $ 2,185 § 35,765
2022
Recognized
Recognized in other
in profit comprehensive
January 1 or loss income December 31
Deferred tax assets:
Temporary differences:
Financial statements
translation differences of
foreign operations $ 4,560 $ - 8 1,578) $ 2,982
Allowance for doubtful
accounts 71 - - 71
Loss on inventory market
value decline 4,481 810 - 5,291
Loss on investments accounted
for under equity method 1,291 4,617 - 5,908
Impairment loss 3,069 ( 131) - 2,938
Unrealized loss on foreign
currency exchange 100 ( 66) - 34
Unrealized warranty provision
expense 102 70 - 172
Book-tax difference on land cost 9,501 - - 9,501
Unused compensated absences 226 ( 225) - 1
Tax losses 17,544 658 - 18,202
$ 40,945 $ 5,733 ($ 1,578) $ 45,100
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Deferred tax liabilities:

Temporary differences:
Gain on investments accounted (%
for under equity method

2022

Provision for land appreciation tax  (

Unrealized gain on foreign
currency exchange

Unrealized expense

Gain recognized in bargain

purchase transaction

Recognized
Recognized in other

in profit comprehensive
January 1 or loss income December 31
13,705) $ 343§ - (8 13,362)
232) 23 - ( 209)
- ( 542) - ( 542)
( 9,568) 1,458 - ( 8,110)
1,277) - - 1,277)
3 24,782) § 1,282 § - (8 23,500)
$ 16,163 $ 7,015 ($ 1,578) § 21,600

D. Expiration dates of unused tax losses and amounts of unrecognized deferred tax assets are as

follows:

December 31, 2023

Unrecognized
Amount filed/ deferred
Year incurred assessed Unused amount tax assets Expiry year
2013 $ 12,636 $ 12,636 $ 12,636 2023
2014 16,383 16,383 - 2024
2020 1,642 1,642 - 2030
2022 28,014 28,014 - 2032
2023 63,671 63,671 - 2033
December 31, 2022
Unrecognized
Amount filed/ deferred
Year incurred assessed Unused amount tax assets Expiry year
2012 $ 50,807 $ 50,807 $ 50,807 2022
2013 12,636 12,636 - 2023
2014 16,383 16,383 - 2024
2020 1,642 1,642 - 2030
2022 60,349 60,349 - 2032

E. The Company’s income tax returns through 2021 have been assessed and approved by the Tax

Authority. There were no disputes existing between the Company and the Tax Authority as of

March 14, 2024.
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(29) Loss per share

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Weighted average
number of Loss per
Amount shares outstanding share
after tax (shares in thousands) (in dollars)
Basic loss per share
Loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent ($ 85,571) 65,788 ($ 1.30)

For the year ended December 31, 2022

Weighted average
number of Loss per
Amount shares outstanding share
after tax (shares in thousands)  (in dollars)
Basic loss per share
Loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent (% 36,049) 65,788 ($ 0.55)

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, potential common shares were excluded from the

calculation of diluted loss per share because of their anti-dilutive effect.

(30) Transactions with non-controlling interest

A. ETCH HOME TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

In January 2022, ETCH HOME increased capital by issuing new shares. The Group did not

acquire shares proportionally to its interest, which resulted in a decrease in the equity attributable

to owners of the parent and an increase in the non-controlling interest both by $4,449.
B. VN ETCH HOME TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LTD.

In February 2022, ETCH HOME acquired the remaining 30% equity interest in its subsidiary,

VN ETCH HOME, for a consideration of $14,934. The carrying amount of related non-

controlling interest was $11,484 at the acquisition date. This transaction resulted in a decrease in

the non-controlling interest by $3,450 and a decrease in the equity attributable to owners of

ETCH HOME TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. by $3,450. The Company decreased capital reserves,

retained earnings and non-controlling interest by $2,070, $1,063 and $10,152, respectively,

proportionately to its ownership percentage.
C. WAVE POWER TECHNOLOGY INC.

(a) In August 2022, the subsidiary, WAVE POWER, filed for an initial public offering with Taipei
Exchange. As part of the public trading process, the Group partially disposed its shares in
WAVE POWER through public market for a total cash consideration of $20,239. The carrying
amount of investment accounted for under the equity method was $7,457 at the disposal date.
These transactions resulted in an increase in the equity attributable to owners of the parent
and the non-controlling interest by $12,782 and $7,457, respectively.
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(b) In August 2023, WAVE POWER increased capital by issuing new shares. The Group did not
acquire shares proportionally to its interest, which resulted in an increase in the equity

attributable to owners of the parent (capital reserves) and the non-controlling interest by

$118,960 and $276,717, respectively.

(31) Supplemental cash flow information

A. Investing activities with partial cash payments:

(a) Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Add: Opening balance of other payables
Less: Ending balance of other payables

Cash paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

(b) Proceeds from disposal of investments
accounted for using equity method

Less: Ending balance of other receivables

Cash received from disposal of investments
accounted for under equity method

(c) Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets
held for sale

Less: Ending balance of other receivables

Ending balance of other non-current assets (

Cash received from disposal of non-current
assets held for sale

For the years ended December 31,

B. Operating, investing and financing activities with no cash flow effects:

(a) Inventories transferred to property,
plant and equipment

(b) Other receivables - related parties
transferred to other receivables (Note 1)

(c) Property, plant and equipment transferred to
inventories

(d) Property, plant and equipment transferred to
non-current assets held for sale

(e) Property, plant and equipment transferred to
investment properties

(f) Prepayments for equipment transferred to
property, plant and equipment
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2023 2022

$ 71,430 S 133,036
9,915 21,087

( 12,899) ( 9,915)
$ 08,446 § 144,208
$ 105,949 § -
( 42,379) -
$ 63,570 -
$ 117,279  § -
( 69,512) -
31,780) -
$ 15,987 § -

For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022

$ - $ 2,215
$ 44,145 $ -
$ 933 § -
$ 115973 § -
$ 21,772 § -
$ 19,151 $ 23,274




For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022

(g) Other payables - related parties
transferred to other payables (Note 2) $ - § 41,694

(Note 1) In August 2023, the subsidiary, Solar Applied Materials Technology (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd., sold its 40.36% shares of Huangshi Quanyang Photoelectric Technology Co., Ltd.

to Magic Star Technology (Ningbo) Co., Ltd.. Consequently, Huangshi Quanyang
Photoelectric Technology Co., Ltd. was no longer a related party of the Group since
August 2023.

(Note 2) In February 2022, Supremo Technology Limited sold the remaining 30% equity interest
in VN ETCH HOME to ETCH HOME. Consequently, Supremo Technology Limited
was no longer a related party of the Group since February 2022.

(32) Changes in liabilities from financing activities

Long-term Liabilities
borrowings from
(including financing
Short-term Commercial Other Lease current activities -
borrowings  papers payable payables liabilities portion) gross
At January 1, 2023 $ 510,617 $ - 3 30,493 § 4820 $ 386,237 $ 932,167

Changes in cash flow

from financing

activities 3,081 50,000 ( 14,867) ( 4,576) ( 121,722) ( 88,084)
Changes in cash flow

from other non-

financing activities - - - 6,310 - 6,310
Impact of changes in
foreign exchange rate 397 - ( 431) - ( 1,906) ( 1,940)
At December 31,2023 $§ 514,095 § 50,000 § 15,195 § 6,554 § 262,609 $§ 848,453
Long-term Liabilities
borrowings from
(including financing
Short-term Other Lease current activities -
borrowings payables liabilities portion) gross
At January 1, 2022 $ 192,994 $ -3 7,986 § 436,936 $§ 637,916

Changes in cash flow

from financing

activities 309,062 ( 14,484) ( 3,647) ( 54,320) 236,611
Changes in cash flow

from other non-

financing activities - 41,694 481 - 42,175
Impact of changes in

foreign exchange rate 8,561 3,283 - 3,621 15,465
At December 31, 2022 $ 510,617 $ 30,493 § 4,820 $§ 386,237 $ 932,167
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7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(1) Names of related parties and relationship

Names of related parties Relationship with the Group
Galloptech International Company Limited (“Galloptech”) Associate
Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics™)
HTC & SOLAR TECH SERVICE LIMITED (“HTC & SOLAR

Associate (Note 1)

TECH") Other related party
YOUNG SAM INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD. (“YOUNG SAM”) Other related party
Supremo Technology Limited (“Supremo”) Other related party (Note 2)

(Note 1) In August 2023, the Group’s subsidiary, Solar Applied Materials Technology (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd., sold its 40.36% shares of Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics to Magic Star
Technology (Ningbo) Co., Ltd.. Consequently, Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics was no
longer a related party of the Company since August 2023.

(Note 2) In February 2022, Supremo sold the remaining 30% equity interest in VN ETCH HOME to
ETCH HOME. Consequently, Supremo Technology Limited was no longer a related party of
the Group since February 2022.

(2) Significant related party transactions

A. Operating revenue

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Sales of goods and services:
Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics $ 26,655 § 57,989
Other related parties 580 3,347
$ 27,235 ' $ 61,336

The sales prices and credit terms from related parties were the same with third parties. Collection
terms are 60 ~ 90 days after monthly statements for related parties and 30 ~120 days after monthly
statements for third parties.

B. Purchases

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics $ 51,487 $ 84,596
Other related parties 19,491 35,704
$ 70,978 § 120,300

The purchase prices and payment terms from related parties were the same with third parties.
Payment terms are 60~90 days after monthly statements for related parties and 30 ~ 90 days after
monthly statements for third parties.

C. Processing expenses
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For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022
Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics $ - S 4,557

D. Technical service income

For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022

Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics $ 25340 $ 39,351

E. Receivables from related parties

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Notes receivable:

Other related parties $ - 8 16
Accounts receivable:
Other related parties $ 16 $ .
Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics - 15,605
$ 16 § 15,621
Other receivables:
Other related parties $ 267 $ -
Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics - 59,033
$ 267§ 59,033

The receivables from related parties arise mainly from sales transactions and technical services.
The receivables are unsecured in nature and bear no interest. The receivables from related parties

have no provisions.

F. Payables to related parties

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Accounts payable:
YOUNG SAM $ 3484 § 5,732
HTC & SOLAR TECH 266 10,061
Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics - 38,241
$ 3,750 § 54,034
Other payables (excluded loans to related parties):
Other related parties $ 24§ 136
Associates - 137
$ 24§ 273

The payables to related parties arise mainly from purchase transactions and administrative service

expense and are unsecured in nature and bear no interest.

G. Property transactions
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(a) Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
$ 180 § -

Other related parties

(b) Disposal of property, plant and equipment
For the year ended December 31, 2022

Proceeds from Loss (gain)
disposal on disposal
Huangshi Quanyang Optoelectronics $ 1,542 § 597
Other related parties 1,878 ( 657)
$ 3,420 (8 60)

There was no such situation for the year ended December 31, 2023.

(c) Transactions of acquisition
For the year ended
December 31, 2022
Item Number of shares  Object of transaction  Acquisition of price
504 thousand shares VN ETCH HOME

Supremo Investments
Technology accounted for
Limited using equity

method $ 14,934

There was no such situation for the year ended December 31, 2023.

(3) Key management compensation
For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
$ 18,153 § 17,596

Short-term employee benefits
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8. PLEDGED ASSETS

The Group’s assets pledged as collateral are as follows:

Book value
Pledged asset December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022 Purpose
Restricted time deposits (Note 1) $ 56,749 $ 15,536 Customs deposit,
performance
guarantees
and warranty
Land (Note 2) 280,354 280,354 Financing
Buildings and structures, net (Note 2) 455,134 461,296 7
Machinery equipment (Note 2) 3,862 4,731 7
Right-of-use of land (Note3) 15,252 15,270 7
Guarantee deposits paid Performance
guarantees
15,611 17,078 and warranty
$ 826,962 § 794,265

(Note 1) Shown as ‘Fnancial assets at amortized cost - current’ and ‘Financial assets at amortized cost -
non - current’.

(Note 2) Shown as ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and ‘Investment property, net’.

(Note 3) Shown as ‘Use-of-right assets’.

9. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGNIZED CONTRACT
COMMITMENTS

(1) As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group’s remaining balance due for construction in progress
and prepayments for equipment were $19,469 and $51,708, respectively.

(2) Endorsements and guarantees provided by the Group to subsidiaries are as follows:

Nature December 31, 2023 ~ December 31, 2022
VN ETCH HOME Financing facilities $ 168.879 $ 197,835
TECHNOLOGY COMPANY
LTD
Htc & Solartech Service Financing facilities 92,115 140,140
(Samoa) Corporation
FineMat (HuangShi) Financing facilities 46,058 112,789
Applied Material
ETCH HOME TECHNOLOGY Financing facilities
CO., LTD. 80,000 50,000
$ 387,052 ' § 500,764

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the actual amount provided by the Group for above subsidiaries
were $156,765 and $225,673, respectively.
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10. SIGNIFICANT DISASTER LOSS

None.

11. SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

None.

12. OTHERS

(1) Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Group also ensures it has sufficient financial resources
and operating plans to support the working capital needs, capital expenditures, dividend payments,
etc. in the future.

(2) Financial instruments

A. Information on the Group’s financial instruments by category is provided in Note 6.
B. Financial risk management policies
(a) The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial position and financial
performance.
(b) Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (Group treasury) under
policies approved by the Board of Directors. Group treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units.

C. Significant financial risks and degrees of financial risks

(a) Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

I. The Group operates internationally and is exposed to exchange rate risk arising from
various currencies, primarily with respect to the USD, RMB, JPY and VND. Foreign
exchange rate risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognized assets and

liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

II. Management has set up a policy to require groups to manage their foreign exchange risk
against their functional currency. The companies are required to hedge their entire foreign
exchange risk exposure with the Group treasury. Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions, recognized assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency

that is not the entity’s functional currency.
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III. The Group has certain investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to
foreign currency translation risk. However, as the objective of the net investments in

foreign operations is for strategic purposes, the Group does not hedge the investments.

IV. The Group’s businesses involve some non-functional currency operations (the
Company’s functional currency: NTD, the subsidiaries’ functional currency: USD,
RMB and VND). The information on assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies whose values would be materially affected by the exchange rate fluctuations

is as follows:

December 31, 2023

Foreign currency Book

amount (In thousands) Exchange rate value

(Foreign currency: functional currency)
Financial assets

Monetary items

USD:NTD $ 5,021 30,66 $ 153,928

RMB:NTD 8,766 4.302 37,713

JPY:NTD 120,578 0.2152 26,096
Non-monetary items

USD:NTD 361 30.705 11,074

Financial liabilities
Monetary items

USD:NTD 1,872 30.755 57,562
RMB:NTD 9,852 4.352 42,878
December 31, 2022
Foreign currency Book
amount (In thousands) Exchange rate value

(Foreign currency: functional currency)
Financial assets

Monetary items

USD:NTD $ 5,736 30.66 $§ 175,881
RMB:NTD 9,942 4.383 43,628
JPY:NTD 9,536 0.2304 2,197
Non-monetary items
USD:NTD 363 30.71 11,153
RMB:NTD 37,167 3.73 138,629
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD:NTD 1,910 30.76 58,768
RMB:NTD 6,801 4.433 30,147
JPY:NTD 49,686 0.2344 11,566
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V. Sensitivity analysis of foreign exchange risk is primarily for foreign currency monetary
items at financial reporting date. If the exchange rate of NTD to other currencies had
appreciated/depreciated by 1% with all other variables held constant, the Group’s post-
tax profit for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 would increase/decrease by $
938 and $970, respectively.

VI. Total exchange (loss) gain, including realized and unrealized, arising from significant
foreign exchange variation on the monetary items held by the Group for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022 amounted to ($3,404) and $7,424, respectively.

Price risk

The Group did not engage in any financial instrument transactions with price variations, and

thus the Group does not expect market risk arising from variations in the market prices.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

I. The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from short-term and long-term borrowings with
variable rates, which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. However, partial
interest rate risk is offset by cash and cash equivalents held at variable rates. For the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group’s borrowings at variable rate were mainly
denominated in NTD, USD and RMB.

II. If the borrowing interest rate had increased/decreased by 10% with all other variables held
constant, (loss) profit, net of tax for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 would
have decreased/increased by $1,933 and $1,065, respectively. The main factor is that
increases/decreases in interest expense result from floating rate borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

L. Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss to the Group arising from default by the clients
or counterparties of financial instruments on the contract obligations. The main factor is
that counterparties could not repay in full the accounts receivable based on the agreed terms.

II. The Group manages its credit risk taking into consideration the entire group’s concern.

According to the Group’s credit policy, the Group is responsible for managing and
analyzing the credit risk for each of the new clients before standard payment and delivery
terms and conditions are offered. Internal risk control assesses the credit quality of the
customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits
set by the Board of Directors. The utilization of credit limits is regularly monitored.

III. In line with the credit risk management procedure, payment reminders are sent when the

contract payments are past due, and the default occurs when the contract payments are

past due over a certain period of time.
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IV. The Group classifies customer’s accounts receivable in accordance with credit risk on
trade. The Group applied the modified approach using a provision matrix to estimate the
expected credit loss, and used the forecast ability to adjust historical and timely
information to assess the default possibility of accounts receivable. On December 31, 2023

and 2022, the provision matrix is as follows:

December 31, 2023 Expected loss rate Total book value Loss allowance
Not past due 0.03%~0.24% $ 253,748 $ 505
Up to 30 days 0.03%~1.58% 3,725 57
31 to 90 days 0.03%~6.92% 10,898 373
91 to 180 days 1.37%~36.35% 4,590 368
Over 181 days 97.25% 7,455 7,250

$ 280,416 $ 8,553

December 31, 2022 Expected loss rate ~ Total book value Loss allowance
Not past due 0.03%~0.26% $ 372,186 $ 715
Up to 30 days 0.03%~2.82% 15,991 11
31 to 90 days 2.36%~13.66% 8,679 364
91 to 180 days 31.65% 435 124
Over 181 days 100% 1,825 1,825

$ 399,116 $ 3,039

V. Movements in relation to the Group applying the modified approach to provide loss

allowance for accounts receivable are as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
At January 1 $ 3,039 % 1,828
Expected credit impairment loss 5,648 1,195
Effect of foreign exchange ( 134) 16
At December 31 $ 8,553 $ 3,039

(¢) Liquidity risk
I. Cash flow forecasting is performed in finance division of the Group. Finance division

monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient
cash to meet operational needs.

II. Group treasury invests surplus cash in interest bearing current accounts and time deposits,
choosing instruments with appropriate maturities or sufficient liquidity to provide
sufficient headroom as determined by the abovementioned forecasts. The Group is

expected to readily generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.
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III. The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Floating rate:

Expiring within one year $ 721,880 $ 620,723
Expiring beyond one year - 109,612
$ 721,880 $ 730,335

IV. The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts

disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Lessthan  Between 1 Between 3
December 31, 2023 1 year and 3 years and 5 years Over 5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Short-term borrowings $ 515,987 $ - 8 - 8§ -
Short-term notes and bills payable 50,000 - - -
Accounts payable (including

related parties) 147,191 - - -
Other payables (including

related parties) 127,813 - - -
Lease liabilities 3,640 2,552 542 -
Long-term borrowings

(including current portion) 161,079 106,631 - -

Lessthan  Between 1  Between 3
December 31, 2022 1 year and 3 years and 5 years Over 5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Short-term borrowings $ 513919 $ - 8 - -
Notes payable 34 - - -
Accounts payable (including

related parties) 171,511 - - -
Other payables (including

related parties) 151,839 - - -
Lease liabilities 3,204 1,666 - -
Long-term borrowings

(including current portion) 132,952 249,689 15,436 -

V. The Group does not expect the timing of occurrence of the cash flows estimated through
the maturity date analysis to be significantly earlier, nor expect the actual cash flow amount

to be significantly different.
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(3) Fair value information

A. Fair value information of investment property at cost is provided in Note 6(10), ‘Investment
property, net’.

B. The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments not measured at fair value (including
cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable, accounts receivable, other receivables (including
related parties), guarantee deposits paid, short-term borrowings, short-term notes and bills
payable, notes payable, accounts payable (including related parties), other payables (including

related parties) and long-term borrowings (including current portion)) are approximate to their
fair values.

13. SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES

(According to the regulatory requirements, only information related to the year ended December 31,
2023 is disclosed.)

(1) Significant transactions information

A. Loans to others: Refer to table 1.

B. Provision of endorsements and guarantees to others: Refer to table 2.

C. Holding of marketable securities at the end of the period (not including subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures): None.

D. Acquisition or sale of the same security with the accumulated cost exceeding $300 million or
20% of the Company’s paid-in capital: None.

E. Acquisition of real estate reaching $300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.

F. Disposal of real estate reaching $300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.

G. Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties reaching $100 million or 20% of paid-in
capital or more: None.

H. Receivables from related parties reaching $100 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.

I. Trading in derivative instruments undertaken during the reporting periods: None.

J. Significant inter-company transactions during the reporting periods: Refer to table 3.

(2) Information on investees

Names, locations and other information of investee companies (not including investees in Mainland
China): Refer to table 4.

(3) Information on investments in Mainland China

A. Basic information: Refer to table 5.

B. Significant transactions, either directly or indirectly through a third area, with investee companies
in the Mainland Area: Except for endorsements and guarantees as described in table 2, there is
no such situation.

(4) Major shareholders information

Major shareholders information: Refer to table 6.
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14. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(1) General information

The management of the Group has identified the operating segments based on how the Group’s chief

operating decision maker regularly reviews information in order to make decisions.

(2) Measurement segment information

The chief operating decision-maker evaluates the performance of operating segments based on
pretax income excluding non-recurring income. For details of operating segments’ accounting

policies, refer to Note 4.

(3) Information about segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

The segment information provided to the chief operating decision-maker for the reportable segments

is as follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2023

WAVE FineMat FineMat
FineMat POWER  (Shanghai) (HuangShi) Others Total

Segment revenue  $ 398,921 § 411,448 § 175,343 § 88,215 § 133,060 $1,206,987
Inter-segment

revenue 65,331 - 1,078 17,420 1,929 85,758
External revenue 333,590 411,448 174,265 70,795 131,131 1,121,229
Depreciation and

amortization 59,625 30,848 904 24,818 14,264 130,459
Segment pre-tax

(loss) income (  80,462) 98,062 3,497 ( 44,015) 36,972 14,054
Segment assets 1,039,945 1,146,329 104,374 521,263 352,779 3,164,690

Segment liabilities 762,596 92,930 41,383 92,005 170,750 1,159,664

For the year ended December 31, 2022

WAVE FineMat FineMat
FineMat POWER  (Shanghai) (HuangShi) Others Total

Segment revenue  $ 525,671 $ 437,189 §$ 135,694 $ 118,068 $ 167,768 $1,384,390
Inter-segment

revenue 93,557 - 2,183 24,958 13,064 133,762
External revenue 432,114 437,189 133,511 93,110 154,704 1,250,628
Depreciation and

amortization 55,752 27,712 908 27,895 12,961 125,228
Segment pre-tax

(loss) income ( 33,630) 135,491 ( 403) 12,357 ( 55,300) 58,515
Segment assets 1,084,269 810,595 76,990 596,596 546,186 3,114,636

Segment liabilities 773,069 127,765 37,941 114,130 221,684 1,274,589
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(4) Reconciliation for segment income

A. Sales between segments are carried out at arm’s length. The revenue from external customers
reported to the chief operating decision-maker is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the statement of comprehensive income. A reconciliation of reportable segments pre-tax income

to profit before income tax from continuing operations is provided as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Reportable segments pre-tax (loss) income ($ 22918) § 113,815
Other segments pre-tax income (loss) 36,972 ( 55,300)
Inter segments gain ( 25,142) ( 11,145)
(Loss) profit before income tax (% 11,088) $ 47,370

B. The amounts provided to the chief operating decision-maker with respect to total assets and total
liabilities are measured in a manner consistent with that of the financial statements. No

reconciliation is needed.

(5) Information on products and services

Revenue from external customers is mainly from manufacturing and sales of metal masks,
microwave and semiconductor components, thermal modules and optical adhesive materials and

equipment cleaning business. Details of operating revenue are provided in Note 6(21), “Operating
revenue”.

(6) Geographical information

Geographical information for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2023 Year ended December 31, 2022
Revenue (Note) Non-current assets Revenue (Note) Non-current assets
China $ 553,782 $ 337,899 § 616,677 $ 417,996
Taiwan 529,214 891,396 617,892 940,513
Others 38,233 138,779 16,059 149,474

$ 1,121,229 § 1,368,074 ' $ 1,250,628 $ 1,507,983

(Note) The revenue is classified based on the location of the customer’s country.
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(7) Major customer information

Major customer information of the Group for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 is as

follows:
Year ended December 31, 2023 Year ended December 31, 2022
Client Revenue Segment Revenue Segment
A $ 176,253 FineMat 199,296 FineMat
B 173,931 WAVE POWER 123,305 WAVE POWER
C 158,465 FineMat, Solar 240,281 FineMat, Solar
(Shanghai) and others (Shanghai) and others
D 143,657 WAVE POWER 139,376 WAVE POWER
E - WAVE POWER 25,989 WAVE POWER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO.,
LTD.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying parent company only balance sheets of FINEMAT
APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD. (the “Company”) as at December 31, 2023 and 2022,
and the related parent company only statements of comprehensive income, of changes in

equity and of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the parent company only
financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying parent company only financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2023
and 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial
Statement Audit and Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and
Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the parent company
only financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the
Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the Company’s 2023 parent company only financial statements.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the parent company only
financial statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters for the Company’s 2023 parent company only financial statements are
stated as follows:

Existence of sales revenue

Description

Refer to Note 4(24) for the accounting policy on revenue recognition and Note 6(16) for
the details of operating revenue.

The Company sells electronic components, high precision metal masks and other metal
products and so forth. Since the Company’s customers are located in Taiwan, Asia and
other areas, sales are easily affected by the terminal market demand. Also, the verification
of the transaction existence takes a relatively longer time due to the massive transaction
volume of sales revenue. Thus, we considered the existence of sales revenue as one of the
key audit matters for this year’s audit.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures in response of the above key audit matter:

A. We confirmed the process of revenue recognition, including reviewing customer basic
information and credit limit table, revenue recognition basis, authorization procedures
and collection processes to evaluate the management’s effectiveness of internal
controls over sales revenue recognition.

B. We performed a series verification sample test for the sales revenue transactions of the
year, including vouching customers’ orders, shipping orders, export declaration
documents, customer receipt records and sales invoices or subsequent receipts, to
confirm whether the sales revenue transactions really occurred.

C. We sampled and tested the accounting entries recognized for sales revenue, including
verifying the nature of the entries and checking the supporting documents. For the
same purpose, we also sampled and checked the reasonableness of the debit notes
issued after the balance sheet date and examined the related supporting documents.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for
the parent company only financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company
only financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation
of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of parent company only financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the parent company only
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

A. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
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appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

B. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

C. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

D. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the parent company only financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

E. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the parent company only
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

F. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the parent company only
financial information of the entities or business activities within the Company to
express an opinion on the parent company only financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the parent company only financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Lin, Yung-Chih
Independent Accountants

Yeh, Fang-Ting

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan
Republic of China
March 14, 2024

The accompanying parent company only financial statements are not intended to present the financial
position and results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and
practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such financial statements may differ from those
generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. Accordingly, the
accompanying parent company only financial statements and independent auditors’ report are not intended
for use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally
accepted in the Republic of China, and their applications in practice.

As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot
accept any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or
misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Assets Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current assets

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) $ 204,725 11 132,101 6
1136 Financial assets at amortized cost - 6(1) and 8

current 1,049 - 1,036 -
1150 Notes receivable, net 6(2) 85 - 2,541 -
1170 Accounts receivable, net 5(2), 6(2) and 12 95,865 5 121,921 6
1180 Accounts receivable - related parties, 5(2) and 7

net 15,385 1 59,107 3
1200 Other receivables 2,162 - 3,210 -
1210 Other receivables - related parties 7 58,868 3 56,588 3
1220 Current income tax assets 6(23) 302 - - -
130X Inventories 6(3) 64,811 3 97,900 5
1410 Prepayments 5,277 - 14,485 1
11XX Total current assets 448,529 23 488,889 24

Non-current assets

1550 Investments accounted for under 6(4) and 7

equity method 864,399 44 873,398 42
1600 Property, plant and equipment 6(5),7 and 8 617,814 31 650,932 32
1755 Right-of-use assets 6(6) 3,258 - 4,230 -
1760 Investment property, net 6(7) and 8 279 - 584 -
1780 Intangible assets 6(8) 635 - 1,277 -
1840 Deferred income tax assets 6(23) 37,122 2 33,248 2
1920 Guarantee deposits paid 5,691 - 4,883 -
1990 Other non-current assets 602 - 869 -
15XX Total non-current assets 1,529,800 77 1,569,421 76
IXXX Total assets $ 1,978,329 100 2,058,310 100

(Continued)
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Liabilities and Equity Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Liabilities
Current liabilities
2100 Short-term borrowings 6(9) and 8 $ 410,000 21 377,000 18
2110 Short-term notes and bills payable 6(10) 50,000 2 - -
2130 Current contract liabilities 6(16) 2,469 - 878 -
2170 Accounts payable 58,457 3 60,513 3
2180 Accounts payable - related parties 7 833 - 11,104 1
2200 Other payables 33,572 2 50,398 3
2230 Current income tax liabilities 6(23) - - 9 -
2280 Current lease liabilities 2,095 - 2,768 -
2320 Long-term liabilities, current portion 6(11) and 8 94,854 5 86,546 4
21XX Total current liabilities 652,280 33 589,216 29
Non-current liabilities
2540 Long-term borrowings 6(11) and 8 79,613 4 168,444 8
2570 Deferred income tax liabilities 6(23) 20,725 1 14,831 1
2580 Non-current lease liabilities 1,183 - 1,494 -
2600 Other non-current liabilities 9,462 1 - -
25XX Total non-current liabilities 110,983 6 184,769 9
2XXX Total liabilities 763,263 39 773,985 38
Equity
Share capital
3110 Common stock 6(13) 663,898 33 663,898 32
Capital reserves
3200 Capital surplus 6(14) 526,972 27 503,465 25
Retained earnings 6(15)
3310 Legal reserve 41,495 2 41,495 2
3320 Special reserve 10,808 - 16,526 1
3350 Unappropriated retained earnings 14,083 1 93,936 4
3400  Other equity interest ( 18,003) ( 1) ( 10,808) ( 1)
3500  Treasury stocks 6(13) ( 24 ,187) ( 1) ( 24,187) ( 1)
3XXX Total equity 1,215,066 61 1,284,325 62
Significant Contingent Liabilitiesand 7 and 9
Unrecognized Contract Commitments
3X2X Total liabilities and equity $ 1,978,329 100 $ 2,058,310 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements.
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except for loss per share amounts)

Year ended December 31

2023 2022
Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
4000 Sales revenue 6(16) and 7 $ 398,921 100 $ 525,671 100
5000 Operating costs 6(3)(8)(12)(21)
(22)and 7 ( 409,589) (___102) ( 463,997) ( 88)
5900  Gross (loss) pofit ( 10,668) ( 2) 61,674 12
Operating expenses 6(8)(12)(21)(22),
7 and 12
6100 Selling expenses ( 20,007) ( 5 ( 34,455) ( 7)
6200 General and administrative
expenses ( 47,544) ( 12) ( 53,3006) ( 10)
6300 Research and development
expenses ( 35,536) ( 9)( 37,463) ( 7)
6450 Expected credit impairment gain
(loss) 632 - ( 783)
6000 Total operating expenses ( 102,455) ( 26) ( 126,007) ( 24)
6900  Operating loss ( 113,123)( 28) ( 64,333) ( 12)
Non-operating income and
expenses
7100 Interest income 6(17) and 7 4,239 1 1,378 -
7010 Other income 6(18) and 7 13,256 3 9,491 2
7020 Other gains and losses 6(7)(19) and 12 1,316 1 15,481 3
7050 Finance costs 6(6)(20) ( 11,292) ( 3)( 6,792) ( 1)
7070 Share of profit of subsidiaries,  6(4)
associates and joint ventures
accounted for under equity
method 25,142 6 11,145 2
7000 Total non-operating income
and expenses 32,661 8 30,703 6
7900 Loss before income tax ( 80,462) ( 20) ( 33,630) ( 6)
7950 Income tax expense 6(23) ( 5,109) ( 1) ( 2,419) ( 1)
8200  Loss for the year ($ 85,571)(__ 21)($ 36,049) ( 7)
Other comprehensive (loss)
income (Net)
Components of other
comprehensive (loss) income that
will be reclassified to profit or
loss
8361 Financial statements translation  6(4)
differences of foreign operations ($ 8,994) ( 2) $ 7,146 1
8399 Income tax related to 6(23)
components of other
comprehensive income that will
be reclassified to profit or loss 1,799 - ( 1,429)
8300 Other comprehensive (loss)
income for the year ($ 7,195) ( 2) $ 5,717 1
8500 Total comprehensive loss for the
year ($ 92,766) ( 23) ($ 30,332) ( 6)
Loss per share (in dollars) 6(24)
9750 Basic ($ 1.30)($ 0.55)
9850 Diluted (3 1.30)($ 0.55)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements.
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Year ended December 31

Notes 2023 2022
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax ($ 80,462 ) ($ 33,630)
Adjustments
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Expected credit impairment (gain) loss 12 ( 632 ) 783
Loss on inventory market price decline 6(3) 5,307 3,420
Share of profit of subsidiaries, associates and 6(4)
joint ventures accounted for under equity
method ( 25,142 ) ( 11,145)
Depreciation 6(5)(6)(7) 58,983 54,667
Gain on disposal of property, plant and 6(19)
equipment -« 606 )
Amortization 6(8)(21) 642 1,085
Interest income 6(17) ( 4,239) ( 1,378)
Interest expense 6(20) 11,292 6,792
Changes in assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets
Notes receivable 2,456 463
Accounts receivable 26,688 3,505
Accounts receivable - related parties 43,722 ( 39,441 )
Other receivables 1,048 473
Other receivables - related parties 16,463  ( 16,730 )
Inventories 27,782  ( 19,763 )
Prepayments 9,208 ( 8,736 )
Changes in operating liabilities
Current contract liabilities 1,591 814
Accounts payable ( 2,056 ) ( 5,665)
Accounts payable - related parties ( 10,271 ) 5,528
Other payables ( 12,150 ) 2,643
Other non-current liabilities 9,462 -
Cash inflow (outflow) generated from
operations 79,692  ( 56,921 )
Interest received 4,239 1,378
Dividends received 6(4) 48,654 32,717
Interest paid ( 11,247 ) ( 6,527)
Income tax paid ( 1,601 ) ( 90 )
Net cash flows from (used in) operating
activities 119,737 ( 29,443 )
(Continued)
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase in financial assets at amortized cost -

current

Increase in other receivables - related parties

Acquisition of investments accounted for under

equity method - subsidiary

Proceeds from disposal of investments accounted

for under equity method - subsidiaries

Cash paid for acquisition of property, plant and

equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Acquisition of intangible assets

Increase in guarantee deposits paid

Decrease in other non-current assets

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in short-term borrowings

Decrease in short-term borrowings
Increase in short-term notes and bills payable
Decrease in short-term notes and bills payable
Payments of lease liability
Increase in long-term borrowings
Decrease in long-term borrowings
Net cash flows (used in) from financing
activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements.

Year ended December 31

Notes 2023 2022
($ 13) ($ 8)
( 18,743 ) ( 39,858 )

7
- 121,729)

7
- 20,239

6(25)

( 27,475 ) ( 50,144 )
- 1,827
6(8) - 83)
( 808 ) -
267 460
( 46,772 ) ( 189,296 )
6(26) 1,410,000 1,253,300
6(26) ( 1,377,000 ) ( 971,300 )
6(26) 270,000 -
6(26) ( 220,000 ) -
6(26) ( 2,818) ( 2,738 )
6(26) 7,000 35,024
6(26) ( 87,523 ) ( 101,884 )
( 341) 212,402
72,624 ( 6,337)
6(1) 132,101 138,438
6(1) $ 204,725  $ 132,101
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated)

1. HISTORY AND ORGANISATION

(1) FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD. (the “Company”’) was incorporated on May 25, 2007
as a company limited by shares under the provisions of the Company Act of the Republic of China

(R.O.C.) and other related regulations. The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacture of
electronic components and computers and its peripherals, duplication of data storage media,

wholesale of electronic materials, secondary processing of steel materials and other metal products.

(2) The common shares of the Company have been listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange since November
25,2019.

2. THE DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUANCE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
PROCEDURES FOR AUTHORISATION

These parent company only financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors
on March 14, 2024.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS

(1) Effect of the adoption of new issuances of or amendments to International Financial Reporting

Standards (“IFRS®”) Accounting Standards that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial

Supervisory Commission (“FSC”)

New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC and became effective from

2023 are as follows:

Effective date by
International Accounting
Standards Board
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments ("IASB")
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Disclosure of accounting policies’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to [AS 8, ‘Definition of accounting estimates’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IAS 12, ‘Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities January 1, 2023
arising from a single transaction’
Amendments to IAS 12, ‘International tax reform - pillar two model May 23, 2023
rules’

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Company’s financial
condition and financial performance based on the Company’s assessment.
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(2) Effect of new issuances of or amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards as endorsed by the FSC

but not yvet adopted by the Company

New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC and will become effective from

2024 are as follows:

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Effective date by IASB
Amendments to [FRS 16, ‘Lease liability in a sale and leaseback’ January 1, 2024
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Classification of liabilities as current or January 1, 2024

non-current’
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Non-current liabilities with covenants’ January 1, 2024
Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7, ‘Supplier finance arrangements’ January 1, 2024

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Company’s financial
condition and financial performance based on the Company’s assessment.

(3) IFRS Accounting Standards issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC
New standards, interpretations and amendments issued by IASB but not yet included in the IFRS
Accounting Standards as endorsed by the FSC are as follows:

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Effective date by IASB
Amendments to I[FRS 10 and IAS 28, ‘Sale or contribution of assets To be determined by
between an investor and its associate or joint venture’ [IASB
IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2023
Amendment to IFRS 17, ‘Initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 — January 1, 2023
comparative information’
Amendments to IAS 21, ‘Lack of exchangeability’ January 1, 2025

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Company’s financial

condition and financial performance based on the Company’s assessment.

4. SUMMARY OF MATERIJAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these parent company only financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(1) Statement of compliance

The parent company only financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance

with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

(2) Basis of preparation

A. The parent company only financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost

convention.
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B. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC® Interpretations, and SIC® Interpretations
that came into effect as endorsed by the FSC (collectively referred herein as the “IFRSs”) requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the parent company only financial statements are disclosed in Note 5, critical

accounting judgements, estimates and key sources of assumption uncertainly.

(3) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency’). The parent
company only financial statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, which is the Company’s

functional and presentation currency.

A. Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are recognized in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

B. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end are re-translated
at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising upon re-

translation at the balance sheet date are recognized in profit or loss.

C. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value through
profit or loss are re-translated at the exchange rates pre vailing at the balance sheet date; their
translation differences are recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value through other comprehensive income are re-
translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date; their translation differences
are recognized in other comprehensive income. However, non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are not measured at fair value are translated using the

historical exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

D. All foreign exchange gains and losses are based on the nature of those transactions are presented

in the statement of comprehensive income within ‘other gains and losses’.

(4) Classification of current and non-current items

A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets; otherwise they are

classified as non-current assets:

(a) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realized, or are intended to be

sold or consumed within the normal operating cycle;

(b) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;
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(c) Assets that are expected to be realized within 12 months from the balance sheet date;

(d) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are to

be exchanged or used to settle liabilities more than 12 months after the balance sheet date.

B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities; otherwise they

are classified as non-current liabilities:

(a) Liabilities that are expected to be settled within the normal operating cycle;
(b) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;

(c) Liabilities that are to be settled within 12 months from the balance sheet date;

(d) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than 12
months after the balance sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its

classification.

(5) Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost are those that meet all of the following criteria:
A. The objective of the Company’s business model is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows.
B. The assets’ contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.

(6) Accounts and notes receivable

A. Accounts and notes receivable entitle the Company a legal right to receive consideration in

exchange for transferred goods or rendered services.

B. The short-term accounts and notes receivable without bearing interest are subsequently measured

at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(7) Impairment of financial assets

For financial assets at amortized cost, at each reporting date, the Company recognizes the impairment
provision for 12 months expected credit losses if there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition or recognizes the impairment provision for the lifetime expected credit
losses (ECLs) if such credit risk has increased since initial recognition after taking into consideration
all reasonable and verifiable information that includes forecasts. On the other hand, for accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing component, the Company recognizes the

impairment provision for lifetime ECLs.

(8) Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows

from the financial asset expire.
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(9) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted-average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labor, other direct costs and related production overheads (allocated based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. The item by item approach is used in applying the lower of
cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
When the cost of inventory is higher than net realized value, a write-down is provided and recognized
in operating costs. If the circumstances that caused the write-down cease to exist, such that all or part
of the write-down is no longer needed, it should be reversed to that extent and recognized as deduction
of operating costs.

(10) Investments accounted for using the equity method / subsidiaries

A. Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Company. The
Company controls an entity when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over

the entity.

B. Unrealized gains or losses resulting from inter-company transactions with subsidiaries are
eliminated. Necessary adjustments are made to the accounting policies of subsidiaries, to be

consistent with the accounting policies of the Company.

C. After acquisition of subsidiaries, the Company recognizes proportionately the share of profit and
loss and other comprehensive income in the income statement as part of the Company’s profit and
loss and other comprehensive income, respectively. When the share of loss from a subsidiary
exceeds the carrying amount of Company’s interest in that subsidiary, the Company continues to

recognize its share in the subsidiary’s loss proportionately.

D. According to Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Statements by Securities
Issuers, “Profit for the year” and “Other comprehensive income for the year” reported in an entity’s
nonconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, shall equal to “profit for the year” and
“Other comprehensive income” attributable to owners of the parent reported in that entity’s
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Total equity reported in an entity’s non-
consolidated financial statements, shall equal to equity attributable to owners of parent reported

in that entity’s consolidated financial statements.

(11) Property, plant and equipment

A. Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Borrowing costs incurred during the

construction period are capitalized.
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B. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss

during the financial period in which they are incurred.

C. Property, plant and equipment apply cost model and are depreciated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives. Each part of an item of property,
plant, and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item must

be depreciated separately.

D. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year-end. If expectations for the assets’ residual values and useful
lives differ from previous estimates or the patterns of consumption of the assets’ future economic
benefits embodied in the assets have changed significantly, any change is accounted for as a
change in estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors’, from the date of the change. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

are as follows:

Asset Useful lives
Buildings and structures 3 ~ 50 years
Machinery and equipment 3 ~ 12 years
Instruments and equipment 3 ~ 8 years
Office equipment 3 ~ 5 years
Other equipment 2 ~ 10 years

(12) Leasing arrangements (lessee) —right-of-use assets/lease liabilities

A. Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Company. For short-term leases or leases of
low-value assets, lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

B. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the remaining lease payments at the
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing interest rate. Lease payments
are comprised of fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable. The Company
subsequently measures the lease liability at amortized cost using the interest method and
recognizes interest expense over the lease term. The lease liability is remeasured and the amount
of remeasurement is recognized as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset when there are changes
in the lease term or lease payments and such changes do not arise from contract modifications.

C. At the commencement date, the right-of-use asset is stated at cost comprising the following:

(a) The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

(b) Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date; and
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(c) Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee.

The right-of-use asset is measured subsequently using the cost model and is depreciated from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the asset’s useful life or the end of the lease term.
When the lease liability is remeasured, the amount of remeasurement is recognized as an

adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

(13) Investment property

An investment property is stated initially at its cost and measured subsequently using the cost model.
Investment property is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 15 ~ 50

years.

(14) Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise computer software, which is stated at cost and amortized on a straight-

line basis over its estimated useful life of 3 to 5 years.

(15) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date the recoverable amounts of those assets where
there is an indication that they are impaired. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell or value in use. When the circumstances or reasons
for recognizing impairment loss for an asset in prior years no longer exist or diminish, the
impairment loss is reversed. The increased carrying amount due to reversal should not be more than
what the depreciated or amortized historical cost would have been if the impairment had not been

recognized.

(16) Borrowings
Borrowings comprise long-term and short-term bank loans. Borrowings are recognized initially at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is

recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

(17) Notes and accounts payable

A. Accounts payable are liabilities for purchases of raw materials, goods or services and notes
payable are those resulting from operating and non-operating activities.
B. The short-term notes and accounts payable without bearing interest are subsequently measured

at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(18) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is either discharged

or cancelled or expires.
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(19) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and reported in the net amount in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle

on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(20) Employee benefits

A. Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in respect of service rendered by employees in a period and should be recognized as
expense in that period when the employees render service.

B. Pensions
For defined contribution plans, the contributions are recognized as pension expense when they
are due on an accrual basis. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent of a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments.

C. Employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration
Employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration are recognized as expense and liability,
provided that such recognition is required under legal or constructive obligation and those
amounts can be reliably estimated. Any difference between the resolved amounts and the
subsequently actual distributed amounts is accounted for as changes in estimates. If employee
compensation is paid by shares, the Company calculates the number of shares based on the

closing price at the previous day of the board meeting resolution.

(21) Income tax

A. The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
items recognized directly in equity, in which cases the tax is recognized in other comprehensive
income or equity.

B. The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in accordance with applicable tax regulations. It establishes provisions
where appropriate based on the amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. An additional
tax is levied on the unappropriated retained earnings and is recorded as income tax expense in

the year the stockholders resolve to retain the earnings.

C. Deferred tax is recognized, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the parent
balance sheet. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at

the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not give
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rise to equal taxable and dedutible temporary differences. Deferred tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Company and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred tax liability is
settled.

D. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. At each balance sheet

date, unrecognized and recognized deferred tax assets are reassessed.

E. Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on the balance sheet when the entity has the legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and they are levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same entity or different entities that intend to settle on

a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

F. A deferred tax asset shall be recognized for the carryforward of unused tax credits to the extent
that it is possible that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credits

can be utilized.

(22) Share capital
A. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new

shares or stock options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

B. Where the Company repurchases the Company’s equity share capital that has been issued, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is
resolved from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders. Where such shares are
subsequently reissued, the difference between their book value and any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects,

is included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
(23) Dividends
Cash dividends are recorded as liabilities in the Company’s financial statements in the period in
which they are resolved by the Board of Directors. Stock dividends are recorded as stock dividends

to be distributed in which they are resolved by the Company’s shareholders and are reclassified to

ordinary shares on the effective date of new shares issuance.
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(24) Revenue recognition

A. Sales of goods

(a) Sales are recognized when control of the products has been transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion to sell the products,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the customer
has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, or the Company has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

(b) Sale revenue is recognized based on the contract price, net of the estimated sales taxes, returns
and discounts. For collection terms for sales transactions, as the time interval between the
transfer of committed goods or service and the payment of customer does not exceed one
year, the Company does not adjust the transaction price to reflect the time value of money.

(c) A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the

payment is due.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND KEY SOURCES OF ASSUMPTION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of these parent company only financial statements requires management to make critical
judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies and make critical assumptions and estimates
concerning future events. Assumptions and estimates may differ from the actual results and are
continually evaluated and adjusted based on historical experience and other factors. Such assumptions
and estimates have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year ; and the related information is addressed below:

(1) Critical judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies

None.

(2) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Valuation of accounts receivable

A. The Company considers customers’ characteristics, incorporates the forecast ability, historical
collection experience and economic situation, financial condition of the region where the customer
is located, and applies under the simplified approach using a provision matrix to estimate the
expected credit losses. Since the amount of impairment loss is measured and calculated based on
the loss rates established for that assets, significant impairment losses may incur if the future

expected credit losses are greater than expected.

B. As of December 31, 2023, the carrying amount of accounts receivable (including related parties)
was $111,250.
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6. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Cash on hand $ 241 % 246
Demand deposits 204,484 131,855
$ 204,725  $ 132,101

A. The Company transacts with a variety of financial institutions all with high credit quality to

disperse credit risk, so it expects that the probability of counterparty default is remote.

B. Details of the Company’s time deposits pledged to others as collateral as of December 31, 2023
and 2022 (shown as ‘Financial assets at amortized cost - current’) are described in Note 8.

(2) Notes and accounts receivable, net

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Notes receivable $ 8 $ 2,541

Accounts receivable $ 96,571 $ 123,259

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts ( 706) ( 1,338)
$ 95,865 $ 121,921

A. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’s notes receivable were not past due.
B. The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (including related parties) is as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Not past due $ 107,531 $ 181,070
Up to 30 days 3,613 82
31 to 90 days 131 539
91 to 180 days 681 675

$ 111,956 $ 182,366

The above ageing analysis was based on past due date.

C. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, accounts receivable and notes receivable were all from
contracts with customers. As of January 1, 2022, the balance of receivables from contracts with

customers amounted to $149,434.

D. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company did not hold any collateral as security for notes
receivable and accounts receivable.

E. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company has no accounts and notes receivable pledged
to others.

F. Information relating to credit risk of notes receivable and accounts receivable is provided in Note
12(2), ‘Financial instruments’.
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(3) Inventories

December 31, 2023
Allowance for market

Cost price decline Book value

Merchandise $ 57 ($ 57) $ -
Raw materials 81,265 ( 20,859) 60,406
Supplies 2,640 ( 742) 1,898
Work in progress 1,316 ( 409) 907
Finished goods 1,990 ( 390) 1,600
$ 87,268 ($ 22,457) $ 64,811

December 31, 2022
Allowance for market

Cost price decline Book value
Merchandise $ 57 ($ 57) § -
Raw materials 99,502 ( 13,653) 85,849
Supplies 2,691 ( 508) 2,183
Work in progress 1,278 - 1,278
Finished goods 11,522 ( 2,932) 8,590
$ 115,050 ($ 17,150) $ 97,900

The cost of inventories recognized as expense for the year:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Cost of goods sold $ 405,397 $ 466,385
Allowance for inventory market price decline 5,307 3,420
Loss on discarding of inventory 77 -
Revenue from sales of scraps ( 1,192) ( 5,808)
$ 409,589 $ 463,997
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(4) Investments accounted for under the equity method

A. Movements in investments accounted for under equity method were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022

At January 1 $ 873,398 $ 685,082
Addition of investments accounted for under

equity method - 117,280
Disposal of investments accounted for under

equity method - ( 7,457)
Share of profit or loss of investments accounted

for under equity method 25,142 11,145
Net change in equity of investments accounted

for under equity method 23,507 92,919
Earnings distribution of investments accounted

for under equity method ( 48,654) ( 32,717)
Other equity interest-financial statements

translation differences of foreign operations ( 8,994) 7,146
At December 31 $ 864,399 $ 873,398

B. Details of investments accounted for under equity method:

December 31,2023  December 31, 2022

ETCH HOME TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. $ 42,054 $ 85,460
Sense Pad TECH. CO., LTD. 53,027 52,811
Htc & Solartech Service (Samoa) Corporation 368,421 441,574
WAVE POWER TECHNOLOGY INC. 400,897 293,553

$ 864,399 § 873,398

C. For more information regarding the subsidiaries of the Company, refer to Note 4(2) ‘Basis of

consolidation’ in the 2023 consolidated financial statements’.

D. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the share of profit (loss) of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method was $25,142 and $11,145,
respectively, which were assessed based on the investees’ financial statements audited by

independent auditors for the corresponding periods.

E. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, no investments accounted for under equity method held by
the Company were pledged to others.
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A. Property, plant and equipment of the Company were all for its own use as of December 31, 2023
and 2022.

B. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, no borrowing cost was capitalized as part of
property, plant and equipment.

C. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, no impairment loss was recognized as part of

property, plant and equipment.

D. Information about property, plant and equipment that were pledged to others as collateral as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 is provided in Note 8, ‘Pledged assets’.

(6) Leasing arrangements — lessee

A. The Company leases various assets including business vehicles. Rental contracts are typically
made for periods of 1 to 3 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a

wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose covenants.
B. The carrying amount of right-of-use assets and the depreciation charge are as follows:

Carrying amounts:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Transportation equipment (Business vehicles) $ 3,258  § 4,230

Depeciation charge:

For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022
Transportation equipment (Business vehicles) $ 2,806 $ 2,754

C. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the additions to right-of-use assets were $1,834
and $ —, respectively.

D. The information on income and expense accounts relating to lease contracts is as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Items affecting profit or loss
Interest expense on lease liabilities $ 35§ 62
Expense on short-term lease contracts 599 1,126

E. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’s total cash outflow for leases
were $3,452 and $3,926, respectively.

-209-



(7) Investment property, net

Movements of investment property are as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

Buildings and structures 2023 2022

At January 1

Cost $ 30,454 $ 30,454

Accumulated depreciation ( 2,432) ( 2,126)

Accumulated impairment ( 27,438) ( 27,438)
$ 584 § 890

Net value at January 1 $ 584 $ 890

Depreciation ( 305) ( 306)

Net value at December 31 $ 279 § 890

At December 31

Cost $ 30,454 § 30,454

Accumulated depreciation ( 2,737) ( 2,432)

Accumulated impairment ( 27,438) ( 27,438)
$ 279§ 584

A. Rental income from investment property and direct operating expenses arising from investment

D.

property are shown below:

For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022

Direct operating expenses arising from the
investment property that did not generate
rental income during the year (Note) $ 305 S 306

(Note) Listed as ‘Other gains and losses’.

. The fair value of the investment property held by the Company as at December 31, 2023 and 2022

was $15,411 and $15,358, respectively, which was valued by referring to the actual price
registration. Valuation is categorized within Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, no borrowing cost was capitalized as part of

investment property.

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, no impairment loss was recognized as part of

investment property.

E. Information about investment property that was pledged to others as collateral as of December 31,

2023 and 2022 is provided in Note 8, ‘Pledged assets’.
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(8) Intangible assets

Computer software cost

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
At January 1
Cost $ 5,444 $ 5,361
Accumulated amortization ( 4,167) ( 3,082)
1,277  $ 2,279

Net value at January 1 1,277 $ 2,279
Additions - 83
Amortization ( 642) ( 1,085)
Net value at December 31 $ 635 $ 1,277
At December 31
Cost $ 5,444 § 5,444
Accumulated amortization ( 4,809) ( 4,167)

$ 635 § 1,277

A. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, no borrowing cost was capitalized as part of

intangible assets.

B. Details of amortization on intangible assets are as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Manufacturing expenses $ 257§ 217
Selling expenses 33 30
General and administrative expenses 149 675
Research and development expenses 203 163
$ 642 $ 1,085
(9) Short-term borrowings
Nature December 31, 2023 Interest rate range Collateral
Bank unsecured borrowings ~ $ 235,000 1.91%~2.36% None
Bank secured borrowings 175,000 0.5%~2.304% Note
$ 410,000
Nature December 31, 2022 Interest rate range Collateral
Bank secured borrowings $ 265,000 1.725%~2.099% Note
Bank unsecured borrowings 112,000 1.75%~2.229% None
$ 377,000

(Note) Information about the collateral for the above borrowings is provided in Note 8, ‘Pledged

assets’.
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For more information about interest expenses recognized by the Company for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, refer to Note 6(20), ‘Finance cost’.
(10) Short-term notes and bills payable

Nature December 31, 2023 Interest rate range Collateral
Commercial papers payable $ 50,000 1.45%~1.78% None

There was no such situation for the year ended December 31, 2022.

A. The above commercial papers were issued and unsecured by China Bills Finance Corporation
and MEGA BILLS FINANCE CO., LTD..

B. For more information about interest expenses recognized by the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2023, refer to Note 6(20), ‘Finance cost’.

(11) Long-term borrowings

Interest
Nature Borrowing period rate range  Collateral December 31, 2023
Bank secured borrowings  2020.7.27~2026.9.24 1.2896%~ Note
$ 134,179
2.23%
Bank unsecured borrowings 2020.12.15~2025.12.15  1.22%~ None
2.10% 40,288
174,467
Less: Current portion ( 94,854)
$ 79,613
Interest
Nature Borrowing period rate range Collateral December 31, 2022
. _ o
Bank secured borrowings  2020.7.27~2026.9.24 1.1575% Note S 204,558
1.8%
Bank unsecured borrowings 2020.12.15~2025.12.15 1.095%~ None
1.975% 50,432
254,990
Less: Current portion ( 86,546)
$ 168,444

(Note) Information about the collateral for the above borrowings is provided in Note 8, ‘Pledged

assets’.

For more information about interest expenses recognized by the Company for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, refer to Note 6(20), ‘Finance cost’.
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(12) Pensions

Effective July 1, 2005, the Company has established a defined contribution pension plan (the “New
Plan”) under the Labor Pension Act (the “Act”), covering all regular employees with R.O.C.
nationality. Under the New Plan, the Company contributes monthly an amount based on 6% of the
employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the employees’ individual pension accounts at the Bureau
of Labor Insurance. The benefits accrued are paid monthly or in lump sum upon termination of
employment. The pension costs under the defined contribution pension plans of the Company for
the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were $5,031 and $4,880, respectively.

(13) Share capital
A. Movements in the number of the Company’s ordinary shares outstanding are as follows (in
thousands of shares):
For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022
Beginning and ending balance 65,788 65,788

B. Treasury stocks

(a) Reason for share reacquisition and movements in the number of the Company’s treasury
stocks are as follows (in thousands of shares):

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Beginning and ending Beginning and ending
Reason for reacquisition balance balance
To be reissued to employees 602 602

(b) Pursuant to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act, the number of shares bought back as
treasury share should not exceed 10% of the number of the Company’s issued and
outstanding shares and the amount bought back should not exceed the sum of retained
earnings, paid-in capital in excess of par value and realized capital surplus. As of December
31,2023 and 2022, the balances of treasury shares purchased by the Company both amounted
to $24,187.

(c) Pursuant to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act, treasury shares should not be pledged as
collateral and is not entitled to dividends before it is reissued.

(d) Pursuant to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act, treasury shares should be reissued to the
employees within 5 years from the reacquisition date and shares not reissued within the 5
year period are to be retired.

C. As of December 31, 2023, the Company’s authorized capital was $1,000,000 (including $60,000
reserved for employee stock options), and the paid-in capital was $663,898, consisting of 66,390
thousand shares of ordinary stock, with a par value of $10 (in dollars) per share, which were
issued in instalments. All proceeds from shares issued have been collected.
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(14) Capital reserve
A. Pursuant to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital surplus arising from paid-in capital in excess of

par value on issuance of common stocks and donations can be used to cover accumulated deficit

or to issue new stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their share ownership, provided

that the Company has no accumulated deficit. Further, the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act

requires that the amount of capital surplus to be capitalized mentioned above should not exceed

10% of the paid-in capital each year. However, capital surplus should not be used to cover

accumulated deficit unless the legal reserve is insufficient.

. Movements in capital surplus for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are summarised

as follows:

Difference between
consideration and

carrying amount

Changes in

ownership

Net change

For the year ended Share of subsidiaries interests in  in equity of
December 31, 2023 premium  acquired or disposed  subsidiaries  associates Total
At January 1 $ 394,674 § 12,782 ' $ 231 $§ 95,778 § 503,465
Ad]ustment§ for changes in f:apltal i i 15 i 125
reserve of investee companies
Changes in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures accounted for - - - ( 95,778) ( 95,778)
under equity method
Adjustments of capital reserve due to
change in interest of subsidiaries - - 118,960 - 118,960
At December 31 $ 394,674 $ 12,782  § 119,516 $ - $ 526972
Difference between
consideration and Changes in
carrying amount ownership ~ Net change
For the year ended Share of subsidiaries interests in  in equity of
December 31, 2022 premium  acquired or disposed  subsidiaries  associates Total
At January 1 $ 394,674 $ - 3 2,027 $ - $ 396,701
Transactions with non-controlling
interests shareholders of - 12,782 - - 12,782
subsidiaries
Ad]ustment§ for changes in f:apltal i i 274 i 274
reserve of investee companies
Changes in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures accounted for - - - 95,778 95,778
under equity method
Adjustments for changes in retained
earnings of investee companies - - ( 2,070) - ( 2,070)
At December 31 § 394,674 § 12,782 ' $ 231 $ 95,778 $§ 503,465

. For more information about changes in adjustments of capital reserve due to change in interest

of subsidiaries, refer to Note 6(30), ‘Transactions with non-controlling interest’ in the 2023

consolidated financial statements.
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(15) Retained earnings

A. The legal reserve shall be exclusively used to cover accumulated deficit, to issue new stocks, or
to distribute cash to shareholders in proportion to their share ownership. The use of legal reserve
for the issuance of stocks or each dividends to shareholders in proportion to their share ownership
is permitted provided that the balance of such reserve exceeds 25% of the Company’s paid-in
capital.

B. Under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the current year’s earnings, if any, shall first be
used to pay all taxes and offset prior years’ operating losses and then 10% of the remaining
amount shall be set aside as legal reserve, but if legal reserve has accumulated to an amount
equal to the paid-in capital, then legal reserve is no longer required to be set aside. In addition,
after special reserve is set aside or reversed in accordance with relevant regulations, the
remainder along with accumulated unappropriated earnings will be proposed by the Board of
Directors and resolved at the shareholders’ meeting to be distributed as dividends. The
Company’s dividend policy takes into account not only the Company’s current and future
investment environment, capital needs, domestic and foreign competition, and capital budget,
etc. but also the shareholders’ interests, balanced dividends and the Company’s long-term
financial plan, etc. Each year, the appropriation is proposed by the Board of Directors and then
reported to the shareholders’ meeting for approval. The Company is in the growth stage and has
a plan to expand its production lines and capital needs in the coming years, and thus the balanced
dividend policy is adopted to have a sound financial structure and maintain a good capital
adequacy ratio. In addition to appropriating the earnings in accordance with the aforementioned
regulations, the dividend and bonus may be distributed in the form of cash or shares, and if there
are any earnings in the current year, 10% ~ 80% of distributable earnings of the current year shall
be appropriated as dividends and bonuses to shareholders, of which cash dividends shall account
for at least 10% of the total dividends distributed. The Board of Directors of the Company may,
upon resolution adopted by a majority vote at a meeting of the Board of Directors attended by
two-thirds of the total number of directors, distribute dividends and bonus, legal reserve or capital
surplus, in whole or in part, in the form of cash, which shall also be reported at the shareholders’
meeting. The above distribution is not subject to approval by the shareholders.

C. In accordance with the regulations, the Company shall set aside special reserve from the debit
balance on other equity items at the balance sheet date before distributing earnings. When debit
balance on other equity items is reversed subsequently, the reversed amount could be included
in the distributable earnings. The special reserve previously set aside by the Company on initial
application of IFRSs in accordance with the Order No. Financial-Supervisory-Securities-
Corporate-1010012865, dated April 6, 2012, amounted to $369.

D. On March 18, 2022, the Board of Directors of the Company resolved not to distribute earnings
except for the appropriation of legal reserve and special reserve. On March 14, 2024, the Board

of Directors resolved not to distribute earnings due to loss incurred during the year.
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(16) Operating revenue

A. The Company’s revenue is mainly from sales contracts with customers, and such revenue is

derived from the transfer of goods at a point in time in the following major product lines:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Metal masks $ 357,342 $ 446,996
Thermal module 15,246 39,537
Optical bonding materials - 10,475
Others 26,333 28,663
$ 398,921 §$ 525,671

B. The Company has recognized the following revenue-related contract liabilities:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022  January 1, 2022

Current contract liabilities $ 2,469 $ 878 $ 64
For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022
Revenue recognized that was included in the contract
liability balance at the beginning of the year $ 790 $ -

(17) Interest income

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Interest income from bank deposits $ 1,165 $ 577
Other interest income 3,074 801
$ 4239 § 1,378

(18) Other income
For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022

Technical service income $ 5719 $ -
Director’s remuneration income 2,860 3,196
Resale of electricity income 2,707 -
Administrative service income 1,177 1,392
Waste liquid recycling income 428 2,502
Other income 365 2,401

$ 13,256 $ 9,491
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(19) Other gains and losses

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Currency exchange gain $ 1,621 $ 15,181
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment - 606
Depreciation charges on investment property ( 305) ( 306)
$ 1,316 § 15,481
(20) Finance costs
For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022
Interest expense:
Interest expense on bank borrowings $ 11,257 § 6,730
Interest expense on lease liabilities 35 62
$ 11,292 § 6,792
(21) Expenses by nature
For the year ended December 31, 2023
Operating costs Operating expenses Total
Employee benefit expense $ 78,880 $ 59,809 $ 138,689
Depreciation 48,683 9,995 58,678
Amortization 257 385 642
$ 127,820 § 70,189 $ 198,009
For the year ended December 31, 2022
Operating costs Operating expenses Total
Employee benefit expense $ 80,923 $ 68,334 $ 149,257
Depreciation 45,994 8,367 54,361
Amortization 217 868 1,085
$ 127,134 § 77,569 $ 204,703
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(22) Employee benefit expense

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Operating costs Operating expenses Total
Wages and salaries $ 64,608 $ 44,837 $ 109,445
Labor and health insurance expense 6,951 5,224 12,175
Pension costs 2,611 2,420 5,031
Directors’ remuneration - 4,486 4,486
Other personnel expenses 4,710 2,842 7,552
$ 78,880 ' $ 59,809 $ 138,689

For the year ended December 31, 2022

Operating costs Operating expenses Total
Wages and salaries $ 67,593 $ 53,458 $ 121,051
Labor and health insurance expense 6,423 4,295 10,718
Pension costs 2,629 2,251 4,880
Directors’ remuneration - 4,792 4,792
Other personnel expenses 4,278 3,538 7,816
$ 80,923 § 68,334 $ 149,257

A. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had 207 and 187 employees, among these, 7

directors were non-employee directors, respectively.

B. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the average employee benefit expense
recognized was $671 and $803, and the average employee salary expense recognized was $547
and $673, respectively. The average wages and salaries in 2023 decreased by approximately 19%
compared with 2022,

C. In accordance with the Company’s compensation policy, directors’ remuneration is determined
by considering the extent of their contribution in the Company’s operations and the general pay
levels in the same industry; managers’ remuneration is assessed based on their positions,
responsibilities of the job, contribution to the Company and performance evaluations during the
year, and by reference to the general pay levels in the same industry. The aforementioned
directors’ and managers’ remunerations shall be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and
submitted to the Board of Directors for resolution. Employees’ compensation is determined by
reference to the pay levels in the industry and their job titles, levels, types, responsibilities, etc.,
and the professional capacities, education and work experience and education levels are also the

main factors considered in the salary evaluation.

D. In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, a ratio of distributable profit of
the current year shall be distributed as employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration.
The ratio shall be 8%~15% for employees’ compensation and shall not be higher than 5% for

directors’ remuneration. Provided that the Company has accumulated deficit, earnings shall be
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first used to cover accumulated deficit. Directors’ remuneration is distributed in the form of cash
while employees’ compensation may be distributed in the form of cash or shares. The employees,
including the employees of the Company’s subsidiaries, who meet certain specific requirements
are entitled to receive the above cash or shares. The profit of the current year is the profit before
deducting tax, employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration. The distribution of
employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration is subject to the approval of more than
half of directors present at a meeting where more than two-thirds of the directors are in

attendance and shall also be reported at the shareholders’ meeting.

E. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, there was no employee’ compensation and
directors’ remuneration. The aforementioned amounts were recognized in salary expenses and
were estimated and accrued based on the earnings of current year and the percentage specified
in the Articles of Incorporation of the Company. As the Company had no profit in 2023 and 2022,

there was no need to estimate and pay remuneration to employees and directors.

Information about employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration of the Company as
resolved at the meeting of Board of Directors will be posted in the “Market Observation Post

System” at the website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.
(23) Income tax
A. Income tax expense:

(a) Components of income tax expense:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022

Current income tax:

Current tax on profits for the year $ 1,299 $ -

Tax on undistributed earnings - 99

Prior year’s income tax over estimation ( 9 -
Total current income tax 1,290 99
Deferred income tax:

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 3,819 2,320
Income tax expense $ 5,109 $ 2,419

(b) The income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income is as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022

Financial statements translation differences of
foreign operations ($ 1,799) $ 1,429
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B. Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit:

For the years ended December 31,

2023
Tax on undistributed earnings $ - 5 99
Prior year’s income tax over estimation ( 9) -
Separate taxation 1,299 -
Change in assessment of realisation of deferred
tax assets 3,819 2,320
Income tax expense $ 5,109 $ 2,419

C. Amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities as a result of temporary differences and tax losses

are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:
Temporary differences:
Financial statements

translation differences
Allowance for doubtful
accounts
Loss on inventory

market value decline
Impairment loss

Unrealized loss on
foreign currency
exchange

Book-tax difference on
land cost

Tax losses

Deferred tax liabilities:
Temporary differences:
Investment income
Unrealized gain on
foreign currency

exchange
Gain recognized in

bargain purchase
transaction

2023

Recognized
in other
Recognized in  comprehensive

January 1 profit or loss income December 31

$ 2,703 § - $ 1,799 § 4,502
71 - - 71

3,430 1,061 - 4,491

2,938 ( 131) - 2,807

- 871 - 871

9,501 - - 9,501

14,605 274 - 14,879

$ 33,248 $ 2,075 $ 1,799 § 37,122
¢ 13,362) ($ 6,086) $ - ($ 19,448)
( 192) 192 - -
( 1,277) - - ( 1,277)
% 14,831) ($ 5,894) § - (8 20,725)
$ 18,417 ($ 3,819) $ 1,799 ' $ 16,397
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Deferred tax assets:
Temporary differences:

Financial statements
translation differences
of foreign operations

Allowance for doubtful
accounts

Loss on inventory
market value decline

Impairment loss

Unrealized loss on
foreign currency
exchange

Book-tax difference on
land cost

Tax losses

Deferred tax liabilities:
Temporary differences:

Investment income

Unrealized gain on
foreign currency
exchange

Gain recognized in
bargain purchase
transaction

2022

Recognized
in other

Recognized in  comprehensive
January 1 profit or loss income December 31
$ 4,132 § - ($ 1,429) § 2,703
71 - - 71
2,746 684 - 3,430
3,069 ( 131) - 2,938
85 ( 85) - -
9,501 - - 9,501
17,544 ( 2,939) - 14,605
$ 37,148 ($ 2,471) ($ 1,429) $ 33,248
(8 13,705) $ 343§ - (8 13,362)
- ( 192) - (8 192)
( 1,277) - - ( 1,277)
3 14,982) $ 151 § - (8 14,831)
$ 22,166 ($ 2,320) ($ 1,429) § 18,417
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D. Expiration dates of unused tax losses and amounts of unrecognized deferred tax assets are as

follows:
December 31, 2023
Unrecognized
Amount filed/ deferred
Year incurred assessed Unused amount tax assets Expiry year
2013 $ 12,636 $ 12,636 $ 12,636 2023
2014 16,383 16,383 - 2024
2020 1,642 1,642 - 2030
2022 9,420 9,420 - 2032
2023 46,952 46,952 - 2033
December 31, 2022
Unrecognized
Amount filed/ deferred
Year incurred assessed Unused amount tax assets Expiry year
2012 $ 50,807 $ 50,807 $ 50,807 2022
2013 12,636 12,636 - 2023
2014 16,383 16,383 - 2024
2020 1,642 1,642 - 2030
2022 42,364 42,364 - 2032

E. The Company’s income tax returns through 2021 have been assessed and approved by the Tax
Authority. There were no disputes existing between the Company and the Tax Authority as of
March 14, 2024.

(24) Loss per share
For the year ended December 31, 2023

Weighted average
number of Loss per
Amount shares outstanding share
after tax (shares in thousands) (in dollars)
Basic loss per share
Loss for the year (% 85,571) 65,788 ($ 1.30)
For the year ended December 31, 2022
Weighted average
number of Loss per
Amount shares outstanding share
after tax (shares in thousands) (in dollars)
Basic loss per share
Loss for the year (3 36,049) 65,788 ($ 0.55)
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For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, potential ordinary shares were excluded from the

calculation of diluted loss per share due to the anti-dilutive effect.

(25) Supplemental cash flow information

Investing activities with partial cash payments:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Purchase of property, plant and equipment $ 22,754 $ 48,918
Add: Opening balance of other payables 5,495 6,721
Less: Ending balance of other payables ( 774) ( 5,495)
Cash paid during the year $ 27475 $ 50,144
(26) Changes in liabilities from financing activities
Long-term Liabilities
borrowings from
Short-term Commercial Lease (including financing
borrowings  papers payable liabilities  current portion) activities - gross
At January 1, 2023 § 377,000 § - S 4262 $ 254,990 $ 636,252
Changes in cash flow from
financing activities 33,000 50,000 ( 2,818) ( 80,523) ( 341)
Changes in cash flow from
other non-cash financing
activities - - 1,834 - 1,834
At December 31, 2023 § 410,000 $ 50,000 § 3278  $ 174,467 $ 637,745
Long-term Liabilities
borrowings from
Short-term Lease (including financing
borrowings liabilities current portion) activities - gross
At January 1, 2022 $ 95,000 $ 7,000 $ 321,850 $ 423,850
Changes in cash flow from
financing activities 282,000 ( 2,738) ( 66,860) 212,402
At December 31, 2022 $ 377,000 $ 4262 $ 254,990 § 636,252
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7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(1) Names of related parties and relationship

Names of related parties Relationship with the Company
Htc & Solartech Service (Samoa) Corporation Subsidiary
Solar Applied Materials Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Subsidiary
FineMat (Shanghai) Applied Materials Co., Ltd. Subsidiary
FineMat (HuangShi) Applied Materials Co., Ltd. Subsidiary
WAVE POWER TECHNOLOGY INC. Subsidiary
ETCH HOME TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. Subsidiary
VN ETCH HOME TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. Subsidiary
Galloptech International Company Limited Associate
Huangshi Quanyang Photoelectric Technology Co., Ltd. Associate (Note)
HTC & SOLAR TECH SERVICE LIMITED Other related party

(Note) In August 2023, the Company’s subsidiary, Solar Applied Materials Technology (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd., sold its 40.36% shares of Huangshi Quanyang Photoelectric Technology Co., Ltd.
to Magic Star Technology (Ningbo) Co., Ltd.. Consequently, Huangshi Quanyang
Photoelectric Technology Co., Ltd. was no longer a related party of the Company since August
2023.

(2) Significant related party transactions

A. Operating revenue

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Sales of goods:
Huangshi Quanyang Photoelectric Technology 3 30975 $ 57324
Co., Ltd.

ETCH HOME TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 18,670 58,686
FineMat (Shanghai) Applied Materials Co., Ltd. 17,964 366
Subsidiaries 250 3,155
Other related parties 400 3,252

$ 68,259 $ 122,783

The sales prices and credit terms from related parties were the same with third parties. Collection
terms are 60 ~ 90 days after monthly statements for related parties and 90 days after monthly

statements for third parties.
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B. Purchases

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Purchases of goods:
HTC & SOLAR TECH SERVICE LIMITED $ 3,620 $ 17,557
Associates 3,011 900
ETCH HOME TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 1,650 8,691
Subsidiaries 98 -
$ 8,379 $ 27,148

The purchase prices and payment terms from related parties were the same with third parties.
Payment terms are 90 days after monthly statements for related parties and 30 ~ 90 days after

monthly statements for third parties.

C. Processing expenses and other expenses (listed as ‘operating cost’)

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
Other related parties $ 131 $ 207
Huangshi Quanyang Photoelectric Technology
- 4,557
Co., Ltd.
Subsidiaries 8 2
$ 139§ 4,766

D. Administrative service revenue

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
HTC & SOLAR TECH SERVICE LIMITED $ 681 § 936
Galloptech International Company Limited 496 456
$ 1,177 $ 1,392

E. Directors’ remuneration income

For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022
WAVE POWER TECHNOLOGY INC. $ 2,860 $ 3,196

F. Technical service income

For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022
FineMat (HuangShi) Applied Materials Co., Ltd. $ 4,396 $ -
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G. Investment transactions
(1) In January 2022, the Company participated in the capital increase of ETCH HOME
TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. for a total investment amounting to $70,000 in cash. As the
Company did not subscribe to the capital increase in proportion to its shareholding ratio,

retained earnings decreased by $4,449.

(2) In August 2022, the subsidiary, WAVE POWER TECHNOLOGY INC., filed for an initial
public offering with the Taipei Exchange. As part of the public process, the Company partially
disposed its shares through public market for a total cash consideration of $20,239. After
deducting the book value of $7,457 on the disposal date, the capital reserve increased by
$12,782.

(3) In December 2022, the Company participated in the capital increase of Htc & Solartech Service

(Samoa) Corporation for a total investment amounting to $51,729 in cash.

H. Receivables from related parties

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Accounts receivable:

FineMat (Shanghai) Applied Materials Co., Ltd. $ 13,379 $ 176
ETCH HOME TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 1,825 40,717
FineMat (HuangShi) Applied Materials Co., Ltd. 112 141
VN ETCH HOME TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 69 2,943

Huangshi Quanyang Photoelectric Technology
Co., Ltd. - 15,130
$ 15,385 § 58,931

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Other receivables (excluding loans to related parties):

HTC & SOLAR TECH SERVICE LIMITED $ 267§ -
VN ETCH HOME TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. - 16,567
ETCH HOME TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. - 163

$ 267§ 16,730

The receivables from related parties arise mainly from sale transactions and purchase of packaging
and machines on behalf of others. The receivables are unsecured in nature and bear no interest.

There are no provisions held against receivables from related parties.

I. Payables to related parties

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Purchase of goods and services:

Subsidiaries $ 666 $ 916
HTC & SOLAR TECH SERVICE LIMITED 167 9,769

Huangshi Quanyang Photoelectric Technology
Co., Ltd. - 419
$ 833 § 11,104
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The payables to related parties arise mainly from purchase transactions and are unsecured in nature

and bear no interest.

J. Loans to related parties

Receivable from related parties:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

ETCH HOME TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. $ 33,853 $ 33,726
VN ETCH HOME TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 24,748 6,132
$ 58,601 $ 39,858

The loans to related parties are payable over 1 year and the interest income was $2,440 and $763
for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

K. Endorsements and guarantees

Endorsements and guarantees provided by the Company to subsidiaries are as follows:

Nature December 31,2023  December 31, 2022
Htc & Solartech Set;vice Financial guarantee g 02,115 $ 140,140
(Samoa) Corporation
FineMat (HuangShi)
Applied Materials 7 46,058 112,789
Co., Ltd.
ETCH HOME
TECHNOLOGY CO., 7 80,000 50,000
LTD.
VN ETCH HOME
TECHNOLOGY CO., 7
LTD. 153,526 153,135
$ 371,699 § 456,064

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the actual amount guaranteed by the Company to the
subsidiaries was $141,412 and $196,893, respectively.

(3) Key management compensation

For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022

Short-term employee benefits $ 10,528 $ 10,804
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8. PLEDGED ASSETS

The Company’s assets pledged as collateral are as follows:

Book value
Pledged asset December 31,2023  December 31, 2022 Purpose
Restricted time deposits (Note 1)  $ 1,049 § 1,036  Customs deposits
Land (Note 2) 227,865 227,865 Financial guarantees
Buildings and structures, net
(Note 2) 253,646 252,223 7
$ 482,560 $ 481,124

(Note 1) Listed as ‘Financial assets at amortized cost - current’.
(Note 2) Listed as ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and ‘Investment property, net’.

9. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGIZED CONTRACT
COMMITMENTS

(1) As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’s remaining balance due for construction in

progress and prepayments for equipment were $404 and $22,635, respectively.
(2) Information about endorsements and guarantees to subsidiaries is provided in Note 7(2)K.

10. SIGNIFICANT DISASTER LOSS

None.

11. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

None.

12. OTHERS

(1) Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Company also ensures it has sufficient financial
resources and operating plans to support the working capital needs, capital expenditures, dividend
payments, etc. in the future.

(2) Financial instruments

A. Information on the Company’s financial instruments by category is provided in Note 6.
B. Financial risk management policies
(a) The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial position

and financial performance.
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(b) Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (Company treasury) under
policies approved by the Board of Directors. Company treasury identifies, evaluates and
hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Company’s operating units.

C. Significant financial risks and degrees of financial risks

(a) Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

I. The Company operates internationally and is exposed to exchange rate risk arising from
various currencies, primarily with respect to the USD, RMB and JPY. Foreign exchange
rate risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and

net investments in foreign operations.

II. Management has set up a policy to require companies to manage their foreign exchange
risk against their functional currency. The companies are required to hedge their entire
foreign exchange risk exposure with the Company treasury. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions, recognized assets or liabilities are denominated in a

currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.

IT1. The Company has certain investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. However, as the objective of the net investments in

foreign operations is for strategic purposes, the Company does not hedge the investments.

IV. The Company’s businesses involve some non-functional currency operations (the
Company’s functional currency: NTD). The information on assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies whose values would be materially affected by the

exchange rate fluctuations is as follows:

December 31, 2023

Foreign currency Book

amount (In thousands)  Exchange rate value

(Foreign currency: functional currency)
Financial assets

Monetary items

USD:NTD $ 6,473 30.66 $§ 198,416
RMB:NTD 11,805 4.302 50,789
Non-monetary items
USD:NTD 13,725 30.71 421,448
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD:NTD 35 30.76 1,063
RMB:NTD 9,852 4.352 42,878
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December 31, 2022

Foreign currency Book

amount (In thousands) Exchange rate value

(Foreign currency: functional currency)
Financial assets

Monetary items

USD:NTD $ 7,220 30.66 § 221,362

RMB:NTD 9,919 4.383 43,472

JPY:NTD 9,323 0.23 2,148
Non-monetary items

USD:NTD 16,099 30.71 494,385

Financial liabilities
Monetary items

USD:NTD 358 30.76 11,017
RMB:NTD 6,801 4.433 30,147
JPY:NTD 19,782 0.2344 4,637

V. Sensitivity analysis of foreign exchange risk is primarily for foreign currency monetary
items at financial reporting date. If the exchange rate of NTD to other currencies had
appreciated/depreciated by 1% with all other variables held constant, the Company’s net
profit after tax for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 would increase/decrease
by $1,642 and $1,769, respectively.

VI. Total exchange gain, including realized and unrealized, arising from significant foreign
exchange variation on the monetary items held by the Company for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022 amounted to $1,621 and $15,181, respectively.

Price risk

The Company did not engage in any financial instrument transactions with price variations,

thus, the Company does not expect market risk arising from variations in the market prices.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Regarding the sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk, if the borrowing interest rate had

increased/decreased by 10% with all other variables held constant, profit (loss), net of tax for

the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 would have decreased/increased by $901 and

$538, respectively. The main factor is that increases/decreases in interest expense result from

floating rate borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

I. Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss to the Company arising from default by the
clients or counterparties of financial instruments on the contract obligations. The main
factor is that counterparties could not repay in full the accounts receivable based on the
agreed terms.
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II. The Company manages its credit risk taking into consideration the entire Company’s
concern. According to the Company’s credit policy, the Company is responsible for
managing and analyzing the credit risk for each of the new clients before standard payment
and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Internal risk control assesses the credit
quality of the customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in
accordance with limits set by the Board of Directors. The utilization of credit limits is
regularly monitored.

II1. In line with the credit risk management procedure, payment reminders are sent when the
contract payments are past due, and the default occurs when the contract payments are
past due over a certain period of time.

IV. The Company classifies customer’s accounts receivable in accordance with credit risk on
trade. The Company applied the simplified approach using the provision matrix, loss rate
methodology to estimate expected credit loss. The Company uses the forecastability of
conditions to adjust historical and timely information to assess the default possibility of

accounts receivable. On December 31, 2023 and 2022, the provision matrix is as follows:

December 31, 2023 Expected loss rate Total book value Loss allowance
Not past due 0.24% $ 107,531 $ 450
Up to 30 days 1.58% 3,613 57
31 to 90 days 6.92% 131 9
91 to 180 days 24.45%~36.35% 681 190

$ 111,956 § 706

December 31, 2022
Not past due 0.34% $ 181,070 $ 621
Up to 30 days 2.44% 82 2
31 to 90 days 7.42% 539 40
Over 181 days 100% 675 675

$ 182,366 $ 1,338

V. Movements in relation to the Company applying the modified approach to provide loss
allowance for accounts receivable are as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022
At January 1 $ 1,338 § 555
Expected credit (gain) loss ( 632) 783
At December 31 $ 706 $ 1,338

(c) Liquidity risk

I. Cash flow forecasting is performed in finance division of the Company. Finance division
monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet operational needs.
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II. Company treasury invests surplus cash in interest bearing current accounts and time
deposits, choosing instruments with appropriate maturities or sufficient liquidity to
provide sufficient headroom as determined by the abovementioned forecasts. The

Company is expected to readily generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

III. The Company has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

December 31,2023  December 31, 2022

Floating rate:

Expiring within one year $ 371,600 $ 221,550
Expiring beyond one year - 76,476
$ 371,600 $ 298,026

IV. The table below analyses the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts

disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Lessthan  Between 1 Between 3 More than
December 31, 2023 1 year and 3 years and 5 years 5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Short-term borrowings $ 411,193 § - 8 - 8§ -
Commercial papers payable 50,000 - - -
Accounts paygble (including 59,290 i i i

related parties)
Other payables 33,572 - - -
Lease liabilities 2,128 1,205 - -
Long-term borrowings

(including current portion) 96,682 80,480 - -

Lessthan  Between 1 Between 3 More than
December 31, 2022 1 year and 3 years and 5 years 5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Short-term borrowings $ 378,553 § - 3 - 3 -
Accounts paygble (including 71,617 i ) )

related parties)
Other payables 50,398 - - -
Lease liabilities 2,800 1,500 - -
Long-term borrowings

(including current portion) 89,154 157,160 13,555 -

V. The Company does not expect the timing of occurrence of the cash flows estimated through
the maturity date analysis to be significantly earlier, nor expect the actual cash flow

amount to be significantly different.
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(3) Fair value information

A. The different levels that the inputs to valuation techniques are used to measure fair value of

financial and non-financial instruments have been defined as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date. A market is regarded as active where a
market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient

frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

B. Fair value information of investment property at cost is provided in Note 6(7) ‘Investment
property, net’.

C. The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments not measured at fair value
(including cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable, accounts receivable (including related
parties), other receivables (including related parties), guarantee deposits paid, short-term
borrowings, short-term notes and bills payable, accounts payable (including related parties),
other payables, and long-term borrowings (including current portion)) are approximate to their

fair values.

D. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, there was no transfer between Level 1 and
Level 2.

13. SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES

(According to the regulatory requirements, only information related to the year ended December 31,
2023 is disclosed)

(1) Significant transactions information

A. Loans to others: Refer to table 1.
B. Provision of endorsements and guarantees to others: Refer to table 2.

C. Holding of marketable securities at the end of the period (not including subsidiaries, associates

and joint ventures): None.

D. Acquisition or sale of the same security with the accumulated cost exceeding $300 million or

20% of the Company’s paid-in capital: None.
E. Acquisition of real estate reaching $300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.
F. Disposal of real estate reaching $300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.

G. Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties reaching $100 million or 20% of paid-in

capital or more: None.

H. Receivables from related parties reaching $100 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.
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I. Trading in derivative instruments undertaken during the reporting periods: None.

J. Significant inter-company transactions during the reporting periods: Refer to table 3.

(2) Information on investees

Names, locations and other information of investee companies (not including investees in Mainland
China) : Refer to table 4.

(3) Information on investments in Mainland China

A. Basic information: Refer to table 5.

B. Significant transactions, either directly or indirectly through a third area, with investee companies

in the Mainland Area: Except for endorsements and guarantees as described in table 2, there is
no such situation.

(4) Major shareholders information

Major shareholders information: Refer to table 6.

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Not applicable.
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Item Description Amount
Cash:
Cash on hand $ 241
Demand deposits — New Taiwan dollar 109,182

— Foreign Currencies  Including USD 2,386 thousand
@ 30.66, RMB 5,144 thousand
@ 4.302 and JPY 199 thousand

@ 0.2152 95,302

$ 204,725
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET
DECEMBER 31, 2023
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Client Name Description Amount Footnote

Company A Accounts receivable $ 48, 029 —

Company B ” 15, 391 _

Company C ” 7,185 _

Company D ” 6, 281 _

Company E ” 9, 069 _

Others (individually less than 5%) ” 14,616 _
96, 571

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts ( 706) _
$ 95, 865

-236-



FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE — RELATED PARTIES
DECEMBER 31, 2023
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Item Description Amount Footnote

Receivable of loans to related partiess =~ ETCH HOME $ 33,853 —
TECHNOLOGY
CO., LTD.
¢ VN ETCH HOME 24,748 —
TECHNOLOGY
COMPANY LTD.
Other receivables HTC & SOLAR TECH —
SERVICE LIMITED 267
$ 58,868
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF INVENTORIES
DECEMBER 31, 2023
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Amount
Item Cost Net Realizable Value Footnote
Merchandise $ 57§ } (Note)
Raw materials 81,265 63,284 ”
Supplies 2,640 1,898 ”
Work in progress 1,316 1,316 ”
Finished goods 1,990 2,715 ”
87,268 $ 69,213
Less: Allowance for inventory valuation losses  ( 22.457)
$ 64,811

(Note) Refer to Note 4(9) ‘Inventories’ of parent company only financial statements for the way the Company
determines net realizable value of inventories.
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT —COST
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Refer to Note 6(5) ‘Property, plant and equipment’of parent company only financial statements.
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ACCUMULATED

DEPRECIATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Refer to Note 6(5) ‘Property, plant and equipment’ of parent company only financial statements.
Refer to Note 4(11) ‘Property, plant and equipment’ of parent company only financial statements for
the depreciation method and useful lives of the assets.
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Refer to Note 6(23) ‘Income tax’ of parent company only financial statements.
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
DECEMBER 31, 2023
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Vendor Name Description Amount
Company F Accounts payable $ 49,568
Others (individually less than 5%) 7 8,889
$ 58,457
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF OTHER PAYABLES
DECEMBER 31, 2023
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Item Description Amount
Wages and salaries and bonuses payable _ $ 18,415
Payable on import/export (customs) expenses _ 2,519
Payable on utilities expense _ 2,043
Payable on labor and health insurance expense _ 1,999
Others (individually less than 5%) — 8,596
$ 33,572
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF OPERATING REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Amount
Item Quantity Subtotal Total Footnote

Metal masks 132 thousand pieces ¢ 360,292 —
Thermal Module 859 thousand pieces 15,251 _
Others 26,344 —

$ 401,887
Less: Sales returns and discounts ( 2,966) —
Operating revenue $ 398,921
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF OPERATING COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

[tem

Merchandise at January 1, 2023
Add: Merchandise purchase
Merchandise at December 31, 2023
Cost of purchasing and selling
Raw materials at January 1, 2023
Add: Raw materials purchased
Less: Sale of raw materials
Disposal of raw materials
Raw materials at December 31, 2023
Raw materials used during the year
Supplies at January 1, 2023
Add: Supplies purchased
Less: Sale of supplies
Supplies at December 31, 2023
Supplies used during the year
Direct labor
Manufacturing overhead
Manufacturing cost
Work in progress at January 1, 2023
Add: Transfers from finished goods
Process and transfer in
Work in progress at December 31, 2023
Cost of finished goods
Finished goods at January 1, 2023
Add: Finished goods purchased
Less: Transfers to work in progress
Finished goods at December 31, 2023
Cost of goods production and markerting
Sale of raw materials
Sale of supplies
Cost of goods sold
Loss on scrapped inventories
Allowance for inventory market price decline
Revenue from sale of scrap

Operating costs
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Amount

57

57)

99,502
181,082
23,752)
77)
81,265)

175,490

2,691
19,008

219)
2,640)

18,840

46,011
122,659

363,000

1,278

19,755
5,257
1,316)

387,974
11,522
3,675

19,755)

1,990)

381,426

23,752
219

405,397

77

5,307
1,192)

409,589




FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.

STATEMENT OF MANUFACTURING EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Item Description Amount Footnote
Wages and salaries — $ 21,208 —
Utilities expense — 19,543 —
Insurance expense — 7,418 —
Depreciation — 48,683 —
Other expenses (individually less than 5%) — 25,807 —
$ 122,659
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF SELLING EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Item Description Amount Footnote
Wages and salaries — $ 4914 —
Freight _ 9,704 _
Import/export (customs) expense _ 2,332 _
Other expenses (individually less than 5%) — 3,057 —
$ 20,007
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.

STATEMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Item Description Amount Footnote
Wages and salaries _ $ 95, 259 _
Professional service fees _ 5, 484 _
Depreciation _ 4,719 _
Insurance expense _ 2,859 _
Other expenses (individually less than 5%) — 9,223 —
$ 47, 544
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.

STATEMENT OF RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Item Description Amount Footnote
Wages and salaries _ 21,570 _
Depreciation _ 4,882 _
Insurance expense _ 2,733 _
Utilities expense _ 2,533 _
Other expenses (individually less than 5%) — 3,818 —
35,536
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF OTHER INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Refer to Note 6(18) ‘Other income’ of parent company only financial statements.
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF FINANCE COST
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Refer to Note 6(20) ‘Finance costs’ of parent company only financial statements.
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FINEMAT APPLIED MATERIALS CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF SUMMARY EMPLOYEE BENEFITS, DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND
AMORTISATION EXPENSES IN THE CURRENT PERIOD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Refer to Note 6(21) ‘Expenses by nature’ and Note 6(22) ‘Employee benefit expense’ of parent
company only financial statements.
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FineMat Applied Materials Co., Ltd.

Chao Chin-Hsiao
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